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China Resources Building
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Hong Kong

tHe CAYMAn IsLAnDs PRInCIPAL sHARe  
 ReGIstRAR AnD tRAnsFeR oFFICe
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P.O. Box 2681
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聯合證券登記有限公司

香港

北角

英皇道338號
華懋交易廣場2期
33樓3301-04室

公司網站

www.legend-strategy.com
www.welcomeinn.com.cn

股份代號
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of 
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the 
“Company” together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)), I am pleased to 
present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 
2016 (the “Year”).

BUsIness ReVIeW

During the Year, the Group principally engaged in budget hotel 
operations in China. Under various adverse effects imposed by markets 
and policies, the hotel operations still failed to achieve breakeven in 
2016. Although competition in hospitality market remained intense 
in 2016, the Group continually devoted to reducing the general hotel 
operating expenses and thus the operating losses were controlled. In 
order to improve the investment return, the management would review 
the asset quality and portfolio regularly, and if necessary, would make 
appropriate stripping or impairment. The Group recorded a net loss 
of approximately HK$98,289,233 for the Year, which was significantly 
decreased as compared with that of last year. The loss was mainly 
due to the provision or written off of property, plant and equipment, 
construction in progress, prepayments of operating lease and other 
receivables.

In addition to the management’s effort in minimising losses in our 
ordinary budget hotel business, we kept looking for good investment 
opportunities, including exploring investment opportunities in new high-
class hotel business in mainland China, Hong Kong or overseas. As 
disclosed in the announcement dated 21 April 2016 of the Company, 
the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a 
memorandum of understanding with a potential vendor during the Year, 
in relation to the proposed acquisition of 51% interests in a five star hotel 
in Sichuan Province, the PRC. Although the definitive agreement has not 
yet been entered into and the exclusivity period expired on 20 October 
2016, the Group is still negotiating with the potential vendor on the 
proposed acquisition and expects to achieve a breakthrough to further 
improve the returns of investment by the Group. In the foreseeable 
future, we will make disclosures to the public in due course if any 
definitive agreement has been reached.

Furthermore, with the support of the public, we completed the placing of 
convertible bonds under general mandate in mid 2016 and successfully 
raised approximately HK$51,000,000 to finance, among others, potential 
acquisition and generate working capital of the Group. Given that the 
nearby subway commenced operation during the Year, we used part of 
the proceeds to upgrade our Nanshan Hotel which is near the Nanshan 
Station of Shenzhen Metro in phrases. The construction is expected 
to be completed in the third quarter of 2017 and will improve our 
performance and increase our investment return. Moreover, we decided 
to effectively and flexibly use the proceeds originally designated for 
financing potential acquisition opportunities by allocating the idle part as 
general capital and to our short-term money-lending business until we 
identify suitable acquisition target(s), as disclosed in the announcement 
dated 13 February 2017 of the Company.

本人謹代表朸濬國際集團控股有限公司（「本公

司」，連同其附屬公司（「本集團」））董事（「董

事」）會（「董事會」）欣然呈報本集團截至二零

一六年十二月三十一日止年度（「本年度」）之全

年業績。

業務回顧

本集團於本年度主要於中國從事經濟型酒店經

營。由於年內受眾多市場和政策不利環境影

響，二零一六年酒店營運仍然未能達致收支平

衡。雖然二零一六年酒店市場競爭依然激烈，

但本集團致力降低一般酒店營運開支，故此營

運虧損已經得到控制。為改善資產投資回報，

管理層會定時檢閱資產質素及組合，在必要

時，本集團會作出適當的剝離或減值。本集團

於本年度錄得虧損淨額約98,289,233港元，與
上年相比明顯收窄，虧損主要來源來自物業、

廠房及設備、在建工程、預付經營租賃款及其

他應收款項之撥備或撇銷。

管理層在日常經濟型酒店業務方面努力削減虧

損之際，我們也不停尋找有利投資機會，包括

在中國，香港或是海外開拓新高端酒店業務的

投資機會。就本年度，誠如本公司日期為二零

一六年四月二十一日之公告所披露，本公司透

過一家全資附屬公司與潛在賣家就建議收購一

家位於中國四川省之五星級酒店51%權益訂立
了一份諒解備忘錄。雖然目前並無訂立正式協

議且儘管排他期已於二零一六年十月二十日屆

滿，本集團及潛在賣家仍就可能收購事項進行

磋商，希望能得到突破性發展以進一步改善集

團的投資回報。在可見的將來，倘任何正式之

協議獲得達成，我們定必將此更新於適當時候

給公眾披露。

此外我們也感謝公眾的支持，在二零一六年年

中，我們完成了根據一般授權配售可換股債

券，成功募集約51,000,000港元以為潛在收購
撥資及作為本集團一般營運資金等。為了配合

本年度附近地鐵的通車，我們動用了部分所得

款項在深圳地鐵南山站旁邊的南山店進行了分

段酒店改善工程，期望改善工程能在二零一七

年第三季度完成並改善業務，提高投資回報。

另外，誠如本公司日期為二零一七年二月十三

日之公告所披露，為了更靈活及有效地利用原

本預留用作融資本集團潛在收購機會的所得款

項，我們也決議將空閒的款項用於一般營運資

金及本集團的短期放債業務上，直至本集團確

定了合適的收購目標為止。
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To facilitate the diversification of our business development in the 
future, we continue to hire more talents. At the end of the Year, we 
were pleased to have Mr. Wu Li Xin, Mr. Lu Zefeng and Mr. Wong Yiu 
Kit Ernest to join us. Leveraging on their established social network and 
extensive experience in finance, economic and legal industry, we expect 
that they will make contributions to the Group in different fields in the 
time ahead.

PRosPeCts

It is expected that the investment environment in the US and other 
developed economies are being less stable than before. Great changes 
may be made to the US monetary and fiscal policies. The accelerating 
interest normalization may influence the global investment atmosphere, 
which may have a material impact on the Chinese economy and trades. 
In view of the above, the Board anticipates a challenging operation and 
investment environment in the coming years, and we would continue 
to manage our business prudently in order to minimise the losses and 
achieve breakeven.

Apart from our hotel business, the Group will also identify other business 
development opportunities. The connectivity between stock markets 
and financial markets of China and Hong Kong marked a new chapter 
with the launch of the long-anticipated Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock 
Connect in December 2016, following the implementation of Shanghai-
Hong Kong Stock Connect jointly announced by China Securities 
Regulatory Commission and Securities and Futures Commission in 
November 2014. Hong Kong is able to maintain the solid position as the 
international financial center and platform, benefited from the launch of 
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock 
Connect, as well as the depreciation of RMB. In view of this, the Group 
will proactively consider to develop comprehensive licensed financial 
services and asset management business in the coming years. The 
Group seeks to achieve synergy between hotel operation and asset 
management with high-calibre talents in asset management in Hong 
Kong or China and abroad. For this purpose, we have been identifying 
appropriate talents to form a team that caters to the above development 
direction. Following the Money Lenders Licence obtained by the Group 
in November 2016, we have submitted the application for the licences 
of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) and 
Type 4 (advising on securities) to the Securities and Futures Commission. 
Faced with the rapid industrial upgrading and emergence of new 
industries, the Group will seek sustainable development opportunities at 
a continued basis, while the management will continuously attempt to 
explore and develop related areas, with the purposes of seeking for new 
opportunities for long-term development.

為配合今後多方面的發展，本集團也不斷吸納

人才。在本年度年底，本集團有幸得到吳立新

先生、陸澤峰先生、黃耀傑先生的加盟，彼等

在金融、經濟和法律方面都有強大的人際網絡

和豐富的經驗，期望彼等能夠在將來帶給本集

團不同方面的貢獻。

展望未來

我們預期美國及其他先進經濟體的投資環境將

不及從前穩定。美國的貨幣及財政政策可能會

出現重大變動。利率正常化加快或會影響全球

投資氣氛，中國經濟和商業活動可能受到重大

的衝擊。因此，董事會認為，今後數年我們的

經營和投資環境將充滿挑戰，而我們將繼續採

取審慎措施管理本集團的業務，希望可以在未

來減少虧損以至收支平衡。

除了酒店業務，本集團也會關注其他業務發展

的空間。隨著二零一四年十一月中國證監會和

香港證監會聯合公告滬港通的開通，隨即期待

已久的深港通於二零一六年十二月亦開通，開

啟了中港股票及金融市場互聯互通的新篇章，

受惠於滬港通和深港通開通的利好及人民幣的

貶值，香港作為國際金融中心及平臺的地位依

然鞏固。因此，本集團未來幾年將積極考慮發

展全牌照金融和資產管理業務，本集團希望

結合香港乃至國內外優秀的資產管理方面的人

才，在酒店經營及資產管理方面發揮協同效

益。為此，我們已經不斷尋找合適的人才來組

織團隊以配合以上發展方向。再者，承接於本

集團二零一六年十一月取得放債人牌照後，我

們已經向證券及期貨事務監察委員會遞交關於

第1號牌照（證券交易）及第2號牌照（期貨合約）
和第4號牌照（為證券提供意見）的申請。面對
著日益激烈的產業升級、新型行業的崛起，本

集團將會一如既往的尋找可持續發展的道路，

管理層會繼續嘗試向相關領域探討和發展，希

望能找出新的空間以供長遠發展。
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It is the core competitiveness of our Board and senior management that 
we not only adopt organic growth strategy but also initiate acquisitions 
when appropriate. When selecting any potential target for acquisition, 
our management will take the interest of our shareholders particularly 
the long-term appreciation of our share price as the highest priority 
consideration. We will only proceed with the acquisition when we are 
confident that such acquisition will create enough value to our existing 
shareholders and all the risks involved in such business acquisition are 
worth taking. We believe that the value we create for our shareholders 
will eventually be reflected in the growth of our sales, assets, profits and 
share price.

Finally, I would like to thank our employees for their dedication, 
independent directors for their guidance and suggestions, hotel 
customers for their patronage, and shareholders for their confidence in 
us and their support. I am grateful to everyone who contributes to the 
success of the Group.

Huang Yun
Executive Director
On Behalf of the Board

30 March 2017

除了內部增長的策略，我們亦考慮伺機進行收

購，這是我們董事會及高級管理層的核心競爭

力所在。在管理層挑選任何潛在收購目標，我

們會把股東的利益（特別是長期股價升值）作為

最重要的考慮。只有在我們深信收購將為我們

現有股東增加足夠價值而值得我們冒業務收購

涉及的一切風險的情況下，我們才會進行有關

收購。我們相信，為股東創造的價值最終一定

能在在相關銷售、資產、盈利及股價的增長體

現出來。

最後，我要感謝所有為我們的成功作出貢獻的

各方：勤奮工作的員工、提供指導及意見的獨

立董事、光顧我們酒店的客戶，以及相信我們

的能力及給予支持的股東。

執行董事

黃雲
代表董事會

二零一七年三月三十日



Management Discussion and Analysis
管理層討論及分析

8 朸濬國際集團控股有限公司
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

BUsIness AnD oPeRAtIonAL ReVIeW

Business and operational review

The Group is principally engaged in budget hotel operations. For the 
financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has 3 leased-and-
operated hotels under operation.

Hotel Operations

Revenue from hotel operations mainly included the sales of hotel rooms 
and hotel membership cards. Revenue was HK$17,654,630 for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease of 
11.2% as compared with revenue of HK$19,884,379 for the same 
period of last financial year.

In view of the difficult business environment for the budget hotel 
operations, the management concentrated to operate the existing 
budget hotels in Shenzhen City without further expansion. The Group 
had also ceased its budget hotel investments in Buji Hotel (located in 
Buji, Longgang District, Shenzhen City) and Huizhou Hotel (located 
in Huicheng District, Huizhou City) during the financial year ended 31 
December 2016.

On the other hand, as mentioned in the Company’s announcements 
dated 21 April 2016 and 20 October 2016 respectively, the Group 
has entered into a memorandum of understanding in relation to the 
proposed acquisition of a 51% interests in a five star hotel which is 
located in Sichuan Province, the PRC. This potential acquisition will be 
in line with the Group’s intention to achieve breakthroughs in the long 
term depression of budget hotel business and eventually bring returns to 
shareholders, in the event it materializes. As at the end of the Year, the 
Group is still in negotiation of the proposed acquisition, no legally binding 
agreement has been entered into.

The Group will continue to look for investment and enhancement 
opportunities and explore new high-class hotel business in the PRC, 
Hong Kong or overseas, so as to optimize the overall hotel assets 
structure and improve efficiency.

業務及營運回顧

業務及營運回顧

本集團主要從事經濟型酒店營運。截至二零

一六年十二月三十一日止財政年度，本集團擁

有三家營運中之租賃經營酒店。

酒店營運

酒店營運之收益主要包括銷售酒店客房及酒店

會員卡之收益。截至二零一六年十二月三十一

日止財政年度，收益為17,654,630港元，較上
個財政年度同期的收益19,884,379港元下降
11.2%。

鑒於深圳經濟型酒店的艱難營運，管理層致力

於營運位於深圳市之現有經濟型酒店並沒有進

一步擴張。於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日

止財政年度，本集團亦已停止位於深圳市龍崗

區布吉鎮的布吉店及位於惠州市惠城區的惠州

店之經濟型酒店投資。

另外，誠如本公司日期分別為二零一六年四月

二十一日及二零一六年十月二十日之公告所

述，本集團已訂立一份諒解備忘錄，內容有關

建議收購一間位於中國四川省之五星級酒店的

51%權益。此項潛在收購（倘落實）將符合本集
團實現突破經濟型酒店業務長期低迷境況並最

終回饋股東之目標。於本年度末，本集團仍在

商議建議收購事項，尚無訂立任何具法律約束

力之協議。

本集團將繼續尋求投資及優化機會及於中國、

香港或海外地區開拓新高端酒店業務，以優化

整體酒店資產結構並提升其效益。
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HoteLs UnDeR oPeRAtIons

Nanshan Hotel

Nanshan Hotel is located at Nanshan Road with 192 rooms and is a 
flagship hotel of the Group. It contributed most of the revenue of the 
Group. For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover 
of Nanshan Hotel has increased by approximately 9.1%. As the 
nearby subway station has been opened since late June 2016 and the 
renovation projects of the hotel have gradually completed during the 
financial year, the Group expects it will attract more guests and boost 
future turnover.

Luohu Hotel

Luohu Hotel is located at the thriving financial center of Luohu District 
in Shenzhen, which enjoys convenient transport access (only about 5 
minutes’ driving distance to Luohu Checkpoint and Convention and 
Exhibition Center), and occupies the high traffic location in Shenzhen. 
The major part of its revenue is based on domestic travellers making 
short trips to Hong Kong. The implementation of one-visit-one-week 
policy by the Hong Kong Government has continuously cast adverse 
impacts on Luohu Hotel, losses continued to be recorded during the 
financial year as a result. Turnover decreased by approximately 15.8% 
during the Year in this hotel. As the prime location of Luohu Hotel will 
provide us a good customer base, the Group is confident to achieve at 
least break-even in the foreseeable future.

Baoan Hotel

Baoan Hotel is located in Baoan District of Shenzhen, which, on a 
geographical and environmental basis, situates at a less prime location. 
As a parking lot nearby was under construction during the financial 
year, which has adverse impacts to the hotel environment, the turnover 
decreased by approximately 20.8% as compared with the last financial 
year. In addition, as some new hotels nearby commenced operations 
during the financial year, the competition within the district is likely to be 
more fierce in the foreseeable future.

營運中的酒店

南山店

南山店位於南山大道，擁有192間客房，為本
集團的旗艦店。其為本集團貢獻了大部分的收

入。截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止財政年

度，南山店的營業額增加約9.1%。由於鄰近的
地鐵站已自二零一六年六月底通車且於財政年

度內酒店翻新工程已逐步完工，本集團預期該

酒店將吸引更多住客並提振營業額。

羅湖店

羅湖店位於深圳市羅湖區繁華金融中心區，交

通非常方便，距離羅湖口岸及會展中心亦只需

約五分鐘車程，實屬深圳高人流地段。該酒店

之大部分收入乃依賴往來香港及內地的短途游

客。因繼續承受香港政府實行一周一行政策的

負面影響，酒店於財政年度內仍錄得虧損。羅

湖店於年內的營業額下降約15.8%。由於羅湖
店位處黃金地段，可提供良好的客戶基礎，本

集團相信在可見將來至少將會達至收支平衡。

寶安店

位於深圳市寶安區的寶安店，就地理和環境上

屬次級地段。由於財政年度期間附近的停車場

進行興建，對酒店環境造成不良影響，營業額

較上個財政年度減少約20.8%。此外，由於附
近有幾間新酒店於財政年度內投入服務，預計

在可見將來區內酒店業競爭日趨白熱化。
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HoteLs UnDeR ConstRUCtIon

As disclosed above and announced on 20 May 2016, the three budget 
hotels under operations were in difficult business environment, the 
management estimated that it would be difficult for Buji Hotel and 
Huizhou hotels to bring reasonable return to the shareholders, and 
may even cause additional loss to the Group. As it was not in the best 
interest of the shareholders to continue investing in these two new 
hotels, the Group has written-off for the preliminary investment of these 
two hotels and terminated the leasing agreements with the landlords, so 
as to reduce the risk exposure of the Group.

FInAnCIAL ReVIeW

The Group has recorded a turnover of HK$17,654,630, compared 
with HK$19,884,379 of last financial year, representing a decrease of 
approximately 11.2%. The Group recorded a total comprehensive loss 
of HK$98,289,233 for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 
compared with a total comprehensive loss of HK$123,835,604 for the 
last financial year.

The comprehensive loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 
mainly includes the following factors:

1. The Group has made a provision of impairment of HK$18,700,000 
on other receivable for the financial year ended 31 December 
2016. It represented the refund of prepayments for property, 
plant and equipment due to the termination of developments of 
two hotels in 2014. Having taken a series of measures to collect 
the refund, the Group was of the view that it is difficult to collect 
the remaining amounts, and provision was made as a result. The 
Group will continue to chase for the remaining amounts.

2. During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group 
has written-off the prepaid operating lease amounting to 
HK$8,931,190. It related to the operating lease payment paid to an 
independent third party in respect of the rental of a hotel premise 
in the PRC for a lease term of 15 years until 30 June 2026. The 
Group estimated that it is difficult to bring reasonable returns to 
shareholders after its assessment. The Group also attempted to 
find suitable new lessee to transfer the lease agreement but failed, 
hence the Group has terminated the leasing agreement with the 
property lessor and has written-off for relevant amounts.

3. During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has 
provided impairment for the property, plant and equipment of the 
Baoan Hotel amounting to HK$597,891, as the hotel continued to 
incur losses.

在建酒店

誠如於上文所披露及於二零一六年五月二十日

所公佈，鑒於三家營運中的經濟型酒店經營艱

難，管理層預計布吉店及惠州店將難以為股東

提供合理回報，並可能為本集團構成額外虧

損。由於繼續投資該兩家新建酒店不符合股東

的最佳利益，本集團已對這兩家酒店的前期投

資作出撇銷並與業主解除租賃合同，從而減低

對本集團的風險。

財務回顧

本集團錄得營業額17,654,630港元，較上個財
政年度之19,884,379港元減少約11.2%。本集
團於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止財政年

度錄得全面虧損總額98,289,233港元，而上個
財政年度之全面虧損總額為123,835,604港元。

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止財政年度之

全面虧損，主要包含下列因素：

1. 本集團於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日

止財政年度已就其他應收款項作出減值撥

備18,700,000港元。其為二零一四年終止
開發兩間酒店的物業、廠房及設備之預付

款項的退款。經本集團採取一系列收款措

施後，本集團認為將難以收回餘下款項，

因此作出撥備。本集團將繼續追索餘下款

項。

2. 於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止財

政年度，本集團亦就預付經營租賃作出

8,931,190港元之撇銷。其與就於中國的
酒店物業租賃（租期為截至二零二六年六

月三十日止十五年）向一名獨立第三方支

付的經營租賃付款有關。經本集團評估

後，預期酒店將難以為股東提供合理回

報。本集團亦曾嘗試尋找合適的新租戶以

求把租約易手，但未能成功。因此本集團

已和物業租賃方終止租約，並就相關款項

作出撇銷。

3. 由於寶安店持續出現虧損，本集團於截至

二零一六年十二月三十一日止財政年度，

就該店的物業，廠房及設備作減值，共

597,891港元。
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4. Save as disclosed above, the Group has terminated the investment 
in Buji Hotel and Huizhou Hotel during the financial year ended 
31 December 2016, hence a write off of HK$29,379,804 for 
construction in progress was provided.

5. Interest expenses of HK$5,873,424 paid for the convertible bonds 
issued.

The following table shows the key information of the total of the Group’s 
leased-and-operated hotels for the financial years ended 31 December 
2015 and 2016 respectively.

 Year ended 31 December
 截至十二月三十一日止年度
  2016 2015 % change
  二零一六年 二零一五年 百分比變動

Total 總計

 Total available room nights  總可出租客房晚數 113,008 111,322 1.51%
 Average occupancy rate  平均入住率 74.85% 79.32% (5.63%)
 ARR (RMB)*  平均房租（人民幣元）* 177.8 174.3 2.02%
 RevPAR (RMB)#  平均每間客房收入（人民幣元）# 133.1 138.3 (3.72%)

* ARR: the total room revenue of all hotels divided by the total occupied 
room nights

# RevPAR: the total room revenue of all hotels divided by the total available 
room nights

Operating Costs

The total  operat ing costs decreased by HK$21,744,528, or 
approximately 16.1%, from HK$134,883,546 for the same period of 
last year to HK$113,139,018 for the financial year ended 31 December 
2016. The decrease in operating expenses was due to the adoption 
of cost saving approach; operating lease expenses decreased by 
HK$5,225,098 mainly due to the termination of the leases in Buji 
Hotel and Huizhou Hotel. Depreciation decreased by HK$480,167 as 
numerous property, plant and equipment were written-off from last 
financial period. The above factors were offset by several write-offs and 
provisions for the financial year, as stated in the financial review above. 
The following table shows the total operating costs for the financial years 
ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 respectively:

4. 除上文所披露者外，於截至二零一六年

十二月三十一日止財政年度，本集團終止

布吉店和惠州店的投資，因此對在建工程

作出29,379,804港元之撇銷。

5. 就已發行可換股債券支付利息開支

5,873,424港元。

下表載列本集團全部租賃經營酒店分別於截至

二零一五年及二零一六年十二月三十一日止財

政年度之主要資料。

* 平均房租：所有酒店之總客房收入除以總入住

客房晚數

# 平均每間客房收入：所有酒店之總客房收入除

以總可出租客房晚數

經營成本

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止財政年度，

總經營成本由去年同期之134,883,546港元減
少21,744,528港元或約16.1%至113,139,018
港元。經營開支減少乃由於採取成本節省措施

所致；經營租賃開支減少5,225,098港元，主
要由於終止租賃布吉店和惠州店。折舊減少

480,167港元，乃由於自上一個財政期間撇銷數
項物業、廠房及設備。惟誠如上文財務回顧中

所述，上述因素被本財政年度數項撇銷及撥備

所抵銷。下表載列分別於截至二零一五年及二

零一六年十二月三十一日止財政年度之總經營

成本：
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 Year ended 31 December
 截至十二月三十一日止年度
  2016 2015 % change
  二零一六年 二零一五年 百分比變動

Operating lease expenses 經營租賃開支 11,832,887 17,057,985 (30.6%)
Depreciation of property,  物業、廠房及設備折舊

 plant and equipment  4,211,016 4,691,183 (10.2%)
Employee benefit expenses 僱員福利開支 21,591,413 14,050,367 53.7%
Utilities 公用設施 1,317,288 2,063,031 (36.2%)
Other operating expenses 其他經營開支 73,706,414 97,020,980 (24.0%)
Amortisation of other assets 其他資產攤銷 480,000 — N/A不適用

  113,139,018 134,883,546

FInAnCe Cost

The finance costs increased by HK$5,870,226 as compared with the 
last financial year. It mainly represented the interest expenses for the 
convertible bonds.

LIQUIDItY, FInAnCIAL ResoURCes AnD 
CAPItAL stRUCtURe

As at 31 December 2016, the Group mainly financed its operations and 
expansion with its own working capital generated internally and fund 
raising activities.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank balances and cash of 
HK$10,100,000 (31 December 2015: HK$47,612,022). Gearing ratio 
is calculated as the amount of interest-bearing borrowings divided by 
total equity. The gearing ratio as of 31 December 2016 is 414.4% (31 
December 2015: Nil), as placing of convertible bonds was completed on 
14 June 2016.

The Group was in net current liabilities position of HK$33,201,249 for the 
year ended 31 December 2016. The substantial shareholder, Mr. Ding 
Yifan has confirmed his intention to provide continuing financial support 
to the Company to enable it to meet its liabilities as and when they fall 
due and to enable to the Company to continue its operations for the 
foreseeable future. Consequently, the financial statements are prepared 
on a going concern basis.

融資成本

融資成本較上一財政年度增加5,870,226港元，
其主要為可換股債券之利息開支。

流動資金、財務資源及資本結構

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團主要以

其內部產生之本身營運資金及融資活動為其營

運及擴展撥付資金。

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團之銀行

結餘及現金為10,100,000港元（二零一五年十二
月三十一日：47,612,022港元）。資本負債比
率乃按附息借貸除以資本總額計算。由於配售

可換股債券已於二零一六年六月十四日完成，

故截至二零一六年十二月三十一日之資本負債

比率為414.4%（二零一五年十二月三十一日：
零）。

本集團於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年

度處於淨流動負債狀況（33,201,249港元）。主
要股東，丁一凡先生已確認其有意繼續為本公

司提供財務支持以使本公司能償還到期負債並

於可見將來持續經營業務。因此，財務報表乃

按持續經營基準編製。
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sIGnIFICAnt InVestMent HeLD, MAteRIAL 
ACQUIsItIons oR DIsPosALs oF 
sUBsIDIARIes AnD AFFILIAteD CoMPAnIes, 
AnD FUtURe PLAns FoR MAteRIAL 
InVestMents oR CAPItAL Assets

As mentioned in the Company’s announcements dated 21 April 2016 
and 20 October 2016 respectively, the Group has entered into a 
memorandum of understanding in relation to the proposed acquisition 
of a 51% interests in a hotel which located in Sichuan Province, the 
PRC. The Group has made the first deposit payment of approximately 
HK$23,988,000 in mid-May 2016. At the end of the financial year, the 
Group is still in negotiation of the proposed acquisition, no legally binding 
agreement has been entered into.

Save as disclosed above and in the Company’s announcements, there 
was no other material investment held, acquired or disposed of by the 
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FoReIGn eXCHAnGe RIsK

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s majority of the assets and 
liabilities, and income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi 
and Hong Kong Dollar. The Group had no significant exposure under 
foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency swaps or other financial 
derivatives.

CAPItAL stRUCtURe

There was no material change in the capital structure of the Group 
during the year ended 31 December 2016. The total number of the 
issued shares of the Company was 393,525,000 as at 31 December 
2016 (2015: 393,525,000).

DIVIDenDs

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the year 
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

sUFFICIenCY oF PUBLIC FLoAt

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and 
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s 
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this 
report.

所持重大投資、附屬公司及聯屬公
司之重大收購或出售以及未來重大
投資或資本資產計劃

誠如本公司日期分別為二零一六年四月二十一

日及二零一六年十月二十日之公告所述，本集

團已訂立一份諒解備忘錄，內容有關一個位於

中國四川省之一間酒店的51%權益的建議收
購。本集團已於二零一六年五月中旬支付首筆

按金約23,988,000港元。於財政年度末，本集
團仍在就建議收購進行磋商，尚未訂立任何具

有法律約束力的協議。

除上文及本公司公告所披露者外，截至二零

一六年十二月三十一日止年度，本集團概無持

有、收購或出售其他重大投資。

外匯風險

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團大部分

資產、負債、收入及開支乃以人民幣及港元計

值。本集團概無因外匯合約、利率、貨幣掉期

或其他金融衍生工具而面臨重大風險。

資本結構

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度，本

集團資本結構概無重大變動。於二零一六年

十二月三十一日，本公司已發行股份總數為

393,525,000股（二零一五年：393,525,000股）。

股息

董事不建議就截至二零一六年十二月三十一日

止年度派付任何股息（二零一五年：無）。

足夠公眾持股量

根據本公司可查閱之公開資料及據董事所知，

本公司已發行股本總額之至少25%於本報告日
期乃由公眾持有。
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eMPLoYee AnD ReMUneRAtIon PoLICIes

The Group had 78 employees as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 
2015: 86 employees). Remuneration is determined with reference 
to market terms and performance, qualifications and experience 
of individual employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual 
performance will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for 
their contributions. Other benefits include contributions to retirement 
scheme.

CHARGes on Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any charges on its 
assets (31 December 2015: Nil).

CAPItAL CoMMItMents AnD ContInGent 
LIABILItIes

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material capital 
commitments (2015: approximately HK$1,440,000, which primarily 
related to the investment in production of TV drama series. As at 31 
December 2016, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2015: 
nil).

oPeRAtInG LeAse CoMMItMents

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total operating lease 
commitments of approximately HK$31,369,000 (31 December 2015: 
HK$76,082,000). The operating lease commitments are mainly related 
to the rental of hotels premises for hotel operations and head office. 
Operating lease commitments decreased as the Group has ceased the 
lease in Buji Hotel and Huizhou Hotel. The management has made great 
efforts to mitigate the overall risks in order to bring maximum returns to 
all stakeholders.

PURCHAse, sALe oR ReDeMPtIon oF tHe 
CoMPAnY’s LIsteD seCURItIes

Save as the placing of the convertible bonds, details of which were 
announced by the Company’s announcements dated 25 May 2016 
and 14 June 2016, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries 
had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the listed securities of the 
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Save as the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries 
had issued or granted any convertible securities, options, warrants or 
similar rights or exercise any conversion or subscription rights under any 
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year 
ended 31 December 2016.

僱員及薪酬政策

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團擁有78
名僱員（二零一五年十二月三十一日：86名僱
員）。薪酬乃參考市場條款與個別僱員之表現、

資歷及經驗釐定。本集團亦向僱員支付基於個

人表現之酌情花紅，以表揚及獎勵彼等作出之

貢獻。其他福利包括退休計劃供款。

資產抵押

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團並無任

何資產抵押（二零一五年十二月三十一日：無）。

資本承擔及或然負債

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團並無重

大資本承擔（二零一五年：約1,440,000港元，
主要與投資於電視劇製作相關）。於二零一六年

十二月三十一日，本集團並無重大或然負債（二

零一五年：無）。

經營租賃承擔

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團擁有經

營租賃承擔總額約31,369,000港元（二零一五
年十二月三十一日：76,082,000港元）。經營租
賃承擔主要與用於酒店經營及總辦事處的酒店

物業的租賃有關。經營租賃承擔減少乃由於本

集團已終止租賃布吉店和惠州店。管理層已盡

力減緩整體風險以致為所有利益相關者帶來最

大回報。

購買、出售或贖回本公司之上市證
券

除配售可換股債券（有關詳情已於本公司日期

為二零一六年五月二十五日及二零一六年六月

十四日之公告中公佈）外，本公司或其任何附屬

公司於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度

概無購買、出售或贖回本公司任何上市證券。

除上述者外，於截至二零一六年十二月三十一

日止年度，本公司或其任何附屬公司概無發行

或授出任何可換股證券、購股權、認股權證或

類似權利或根據任何可換股證券、購股權、認

股權證或類似權利行使任何換股權或認購權。
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Use oF PRoCeeDs In FUnD RAIsInG 
ACtIVItIes

On 28 August 2015, the Company entered into the underwriting 
agreement with Sheng Yuan Securities Limited (the “Underwriter”), 
pursuant to which the Underwriter agreed to underwrite the Offer Shares, 
being not less than 38,404,383 shares and not more than 39,829,383 
shares according to the terms of the underwriting agreement. The 
underwriting was completed on 16 October 2015 with the subscription 
price at HK$0.80 per share in cash. The proceeds raised would be 
applied as investment funds and general working capital of the Group.

The following is a summary of the use of proceeds for the amount of 
HK$63,000,000 after the placing of the shares.

  2016
  二零一六年
  HK$
  港元

General working capital 一般營運資金 36,130,000
Investing activities  投資項目 26,870,000

Total 總計 63,000,000

In addition, on 25 May 2016, the Company entered into a placing 
agreement with Sheng Yuan Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”), 
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue and 
the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a best effort 
basis, not less than six placees to subscribe for the convertible bonds 
with an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$51,000,000 at the 
placing price, conversion price of HK$0.930 per share. The placing was 
completed on 14 June 2016. The proceeds raised would be applied as 
general working capital and used for the operation of the money lending 
business of the Company until the Company has identified suitable 
acquisition target(s). For details, please refer to the announcements 
dated 25 May 2016, 14 June 2016 and 13 February 2017 of the 
Company respectively.

融資活動所得款項用途

於二零一五年八月二十八日，本公司與盛源

證券有限公司（「包銷商」）訂立包銷協議，據

此，包銷商同意根據包銷協議之條款包銷發售

股份，即不少於38,404,383股股份及不多於
39,829,383股股份。包銷事項已於二零一五年
十月十六日以現金按每股股份0.80港元之認購
價完成。所籌得款項將用作本集團的投資資金

及一般營運資金。

以下為配售股份後所得款項63,000,000港元之
用途概要。

此外，於二零一六年五月二十五日，本公司與

盛源證券有限公司（「配售代理」）訂立配售協

議，據此，本公司已有條件同意發行及配售

代理已有條件同意按竭誠盡力基準促使不少

於六名承配人按配售價認購本金額合共最多為

51,000,000港元之可換股債券（換股價每股股
份0.930港元）。配售事項已於二零一六年六月
十四日完成。所籌得款項將用於一般營運資金

及本公司被債業務上，直至本公司確定了合適

的收購目標為止。詳情請參閱本公司日期分別

為二零一六年五月二十五日、二零一六年六月

十四日及二零一七年二月十三日之公告。



Management Discussion and Analysis
管理層討論及分析

16 朸濬國際集團控股有限公司
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

The following is a summary of the use of proceeds for the amounts 
of approximately HK$50,000,000 (after deduction of 2% for the 
commission for the placing agent) after the placing of the convertible 
bonds:

  2016
  二零一六年
  HK$
  港元

General working capital 一般營運資金

— Hotel operation — 酒店營運 13,070,000
— Hotel investment and enhancement fund — 酒店投資及優化資金 29,000,000
Cash 現金 7,930,000

Total 總計 50,000,000

UPDAte on LItIGAtIon

On 8 January 2016 the Company received a writ of summons endorsed 
with a statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”) dated 8 January 
2016 (the “Writ”) issued by Fu Tat Credit Limited (the “Plaintiff”) as plaintiff 
in the High Court of the Court of First Instance (the “High Court”) of the 
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Action”), with Mr. Fong 
Man Kelvin (“Mr. Fong”) named as the 1st defendant and the Company 
as the 2nd defendant (subsequently becoming the fifth defendant 
pursuant to an amended Writ of Summons), in respect of an alleged loan 
arrangement made between the Plaintiff, Mr. Fong and the Company 
on 6 October 2014. At the relevant time, Mr. Fong was the controlling 
shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities 
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the 
“Stock Exchange”), the chairman and executive director of the Company. 
Mr. Fong disposed of all his interest in the Company on or about 29 
May 2015 and resigned as the chairman, executive director, authorised 
representative and compliance officer of the Company on 27 July 2015.

It was stated in the Statement of Claim that the Plaintiff, as a licensed 
money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the 
Laws of Hong Kong), had entered into a loan agreement with Mr. Fong 
as the borrower and the Company as the guarantor on 6 October 2014 
in respect of a sum of HK$3,500,000 (the “Loan”). Under the Statement 
of Claim, the Plaintiff claims against Mr. Fong and the Company for: (1) a 
sum of HK$2,092,871.02; (2) further interest accrued on the outstanding 
loan principal of HK$1,961,932.21 at the rate of 42% per annum from 6 
January 2016 until payment in full; (3) further or other relief; and (4) costs 
of the proceedings on full indemnity basis.

以 下 為 配 售 可 換 股 債 券 後 所 得 款 項 約

50,000,000港元（經扣除2%的配售代理佣金）
之用途概要：

法律訴訟之最近進展

於二零一六年一月八日，本公司收到一份日期

為二零一六年一月八日之註有申索陳述書（「申

索陳述書」）之傳訊令狀（「令狀」），為富達信貸

有限公司（「原告」，作為原告）在香港特別行政

區高等法院原訟法庭（「高等法院」）就方文先生

（「方先生」，作為第一被告）及本公司（作為第二

被告）（其後根據經修訂傳訊令狀成為第五被告）

發出（「法律行動」），內容有關原告、方先生及

本公司於二零一四年十月六日作出之一項指稱

貸款安排。於有關時間，方先生為本公司控股

股東（定義見香港聯合交易所有限公司（「聯交

所」）證券上市規則（「上市規則」））、主席兼執行

董事。方先生於二零一五年五月二十九日或前

後出售其於本公司之所有權益，並於二零一五

年七月二十七日辭任本公司主席、執行董事、

授權代表及合規主任。

申索陳述書中註明，原告（作為香港法例第

163章放債人條例項下之持牌放債人）已於二
零一四年十月六日與方先生（作為借款人）及

本公司（作為擔保人）就有關金額3,500,000港
元（「該貸款」）訂立一份貸款協議。根據申索陳

述書，原告向方先生及本公司申索：(1)金額
2,092,871.02港元；(2)自二零一六年一月六日
起直至悉數支付期間按年利率42%計尚未償還
的貸款本金金額1,961,932.21港元之應計進一
步利息；(3)進一步或其他補償；及 (4)悉數彌償
訴訟費。
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As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 12 January 2016, 
the Company denies and disputes the allegations made by the Plaintiff 
against the Company in the Statement of Claim. The Company has 
never authorised the provision of the alleged guarantee to the Plaintiff or 
anyone over the Loan nor has the Company ever passed any resolution 
to authorise the provision of the alleged guarantee over the Loan 
allegedly advanced by the Plaintiff to Mr. Fong.

And as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23 
December 2016, pursuant to the order granted by the High Court, the 
Plaintiff’s claim against the Company in the Action be dismissed with 
no order as to costs between the Plaintiff and the Company. The Action 
against the Company as a defendant has ceased.

誠如本公司二零一六年一月十二日之公告所

述，本公司否認及抗辯原告於申索陳述書中針

對本公司所作指控。本公司從未授權就該貸款

向原告或任何人士提供聲稱擔保，且本公司亦

無通過任何決議案授權就原告墊付予方先生之

聲稱貸款提供聲稱擔保。

及誠如本公司二零一六年十二月二十三日之公

告所披露，根據高等法院批准的命令，原告人

於法律行動中對本公司的申索被駁回，而沒有

對原告人與本公司之間的訴訟金額作出命令。

對本公司作為被告的法律行動已經終止。
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eXeCUtIVe DIReCtoRs

Huang Yun (黃雲 )

Mr. Huang Yun (“Mr. Huang”), aged 55, was appointed as an 
executive Director on 25 June 2015. Mr. Huang is a director and owns 
10% equity interest of China Medical Overseas Limited, a substantial 
shareholder of the Company. He is also the chairman of 新傑致遠 (北京 )
投資有限責任公司 (transliterated as “Xin Jie Zhi Yuan (Beijing) Investment 
Co., Ltd.”), an investment holding company holding interest in a chain 
of restaurants in the PRC. Mr. Huang has over 17 years of business 
experience, including investments on real estate, finance and securities, 
major chain catering enterprises and extensive experience in operation 
and investment management.

Dai Lifeng (戴立峰 )

Mr. Dai Lifeng (“Mr. Dai”), aged 33, was appointed as an executive 
Director on 12 April 2016. He has about eleven years of experience 
in investment management. He is currently the chairman of Udcon 
International Health Technology (Beijing) Limited (優道康國際健康科技
(北京 )有限公司 ), an executive director and the chief executive officer 
of UniNova (Tianjin) Limited (聯合諾華 (天津 )有限公司 ), and a vice 
president of Oxford MEStar Ltd.

Wu Li Xin (吳立新 )

Mr. Wu Li Xin (“Mr. Wu”), aged 49, was appointed as the chief 
executive officer of the Company on 1 November 2016 and an executive 
Director on 11 November 2016 respectively. Mr. Wu graduated with 
a bachelor of law degree from the Law School of China University of 
Political Science and Law in 1991. Mr. Wu also graduated with Civil 
and Commercial Law from the Law School of Peking University and 
completed the Master of Business Administration program at the 
Guanghua School of Management of Peking University. He is also 
currently studying his Doctor’s Degree at the Institute of Finance of the 
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.

Mr. Wu is a founding partner of JunZeJun Law offices (君澤君律師事務
所). Mr. Wu currently serves as a supervisor of China Financial Leasing 
Company Limited (中國金融租賃有限公司) and a member of several 
large fund investment committees including Beijing Shunxin Fund 
Limited Partnership (北京順鑫基金有限合夥), Lai En Foundation Limited 
Partnership (徠恩基金有限合夥) and Wuhan Stock Exchange Expert 
Advisory Committee (武漢股權交易所專家諮詢委員會). Mr. Wu also 
serves as an independent non-executive director of a finance company 
namely 般若財富有限公司 .

執行董事

Huang Yun（黃雲）

黃雲先生（「黃先生」），55歲，於二零一五年六
月二十五日獲委任為執行董事。黃先生為中華

醫學海外有限公司（本公司主要股東）董事並持

有10%的股權。彼亦為新傑致遠（北京）投資有
限責任公司（為投資控股公司，於中國一連鎖餐

廳持有權益）董事長。黃先生擁有逾17年從業
經驗，包括投資房地產，金融與證券，大型連

鎖餐飲企業及在經營及投資管理方面擁有豐富

經驗。

Dai Lifeng（戴立峰）

戴立峰先生（「戴先生」），33歲，於二零一六年
四月十二日獲委任為執行董事。彼擁有約11年
投資管理經驗。戴先生現為優道康國際健康科

技（北京）有限公司董事長、聯合諾華（天津）有

限公司執行董事兼行政總裁，及Oxford MEStar 
Ltd副總裁。

Wu Li Xin (吳立新 )

吳立新先生（「吳先生」），49歲，分別於二零
一六年十一月一日獲委任為本公司行政總裁及

於二零一六年十一月十一日獲委任為執行董

事。吳先生於一九九一年畢業於中國政法大學

法學院並獲法學學士學位。吳先生亦於北京大

學法學院民商法學結業，並完成北京大學光華

管理學院工商管理碩士課程。彼亦現正攻讀中

國社會科學院金融學博士課程。

吳先生為君澤君律師事務所之創始合夥人。吳

先生現為中國金融租賃有限公司監事及數間大

型基金投資委員會委員（包括北京順鑫基金有限

合夥、徠恩基金有限合夥及武漢股權交易所專

家諮詢委員會）。吳先生亦於金融公司般若財富

有限公司擔任獨立非執行董事。
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non-eXeCUtIVe DIReCtoRs

Lu Zefeng (陸澤峰 )

Mr. Lu Zefeng (“Mr. Lu”), aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive 
Director on 15 December 2016. Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor’s degree in 
law from East China University of Political Science and Law in 1988. Mr. 
Lu also obtained a master’s degree in law and a doctorate degree in law 
from Wuhan University in 1995 and 1998 respectively.

Mr. Lu taught at Zhejiang University during the period from 1988 to 
1992. Mr. Lu also served as a postdoctoral researcher in the area of 
international finance at the Postdoctoral Program of Applied Economics 
in Fudan University during the period from 1998 to 2000. During the 
period from October 2000 to May 2016, Mr. Lu worked at the China 
Securities Regulatory Commission and held several positions including, 
the head of legal department and the head of institution regulatory 
department. Mr. Lu also worked as an assistant to director and deputy 
director of the Shandong branch and a deputy officer of the listed 
company regulatory department.

Chung Wai Man (鍾偉文 )

Mr. Chung Wai Man, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive 
Director on 13 February 2017. Mr. Chung Wai Man obtained a bachelor’s 
degree (honours) in social sciences from The University of Hong Kong 
in December 1989 and a master’s degree in international business 
management from the City University of Hong Kong in November 1998. 
Mr. Chung Wai Man became an associate member of the Hong Kong 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 1995 and a fellow 
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the 
United Kingdom in November 1999. He has been an independent non-
executive director of E Lighting Group Holdings Limited, the shares 
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8222) since 
11 September 2014. Mr. Chung Wai Man has more than 26 years of 
experience in accounting, taxation and finance and had previously 
worked as the chief financial officer for four listed companies in Hong 
Kong.

非執行董事

Lu Zefeng（陸澤峰）

陸澤峰先生（「陸先生」），51歲，於二零一六年
十二月十五日獲委任為非執行董事。陸先生於

一九八八年獲華東政法大學法學學士學位，陸

先生亦於分別於一九九五年及一九九八年獲武

漢大學法學碩士學位及法學博士學位。

陸先生自一九八八年至一九九二年於浙江大學

任教。陸先生亦自一九九八年至二零零零年於

復旦大學應用經濟學博士後流動站從事國際金

融專業博士後研究。自二零零零年十月至二零

一六年五月，陸先生任職於中國證券監督管理

委員會並擔任多項職務，包括法律部處長及機

構監管部處長。陸先生亦曾於山東監管局擔任

局長助理及副局長及於中國上市公司監管部擔

任副主任。

Chung Wai Man（鍾偉文）

鍾偉文先生，53歲，於二零一七年二月十三日
獲委任為非執行董事。鍾偉文先生於一九八九

年十二月取得香港大學社會科學榮譽學士學

位，且於一九九八年十一月取得香港城市

大學國際企業管理碩士學位。鍾偉文先生於

一九九五年四月成為香港會計師公會會員，並

於一九九九年十一月成為英國特許會計師公會

資深會員。自二零一四年九月十一日起，彼於

壹照明集團控股有限公司（其股份於聯交所上

市，股份代號：8222）擔任獨立非執行董事。
鍾偉文先生擁有超過26年會計、稅務及財務經
驗，此前曾替四間香港上市公司擔任首席財務

官一職。



Biographical Details of Directors and senior Management
董事及高級管理層之履歷詳情

20 朸濬國際集團控股有限公司
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

InDePenDent non-eXeCUtIVe DIReCtoRs

tso Hon sai Bosco (曹漢璽 )

Mr. tso Hon sai Bosco (“Mr. tso”), aged 52, has been appointed 
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 25 June 
2015. He is currently a partner with Messrs. Tso Au Yim & Yeung, 
Solicitors and has been a Hong Kong practising solicitor since 1990. Mr. 
Tso received his Bachelor of Laws degree from King’s College London.

From November 2000 to September 2004, Mr. Tso worked as an 
independent non-executive director of Emperor Entertainment Group 
Limited (stock code: 8078) which was later renamed as Dragonlott 
Entertainment Group Limited in April 2010 and China 3D Digital 
Entertainment Limited in September 2010. From July 2003 to November 
2012, Mr. Tso worked as an independent non-executive director of 
Fortuna International Holdings Limited (stock code: 530) which was 
later renamed as Goldin Financial Holdings Limited in May 2009. From 
May 2005 to September 2005, Mr. Tso worked as an independent 
non-executive director of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited (stock 
code: 526) which was later renamed as Lisi Group (Holdings) Limited in 
August 2010. In December 2006, he worked as an executive director 
of Tiger Tech Holdings Limited; from December 2006 to June 2007, he 
worked as an executive director and the company secretary of Tiger 
Tech Holdings Limited (stock code: 8046) which was later renamed 
as Heng Xin China Holdings Limited in November 2008. From August 
2007 to August 2012, Mr. Tso worked as an independent non-executive 
director of Rising Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1004) 
which was later renamed as China Smarter Energy Group Holdings 
Limited in February 2015. From May 2007 to July 2015, Mr. Tso worked 
as an independent non-executive director of Neolink Cyber Technology 
(Holding) Limited (stock code: 8116), which was later renamed as Global 
Resources Development (Holding) Limited in May 2009, China Public 
Healthcare (Holding) Limited in December 2009 and China Fortune 
Investments (Holdings) Limited in June 2012. Mr. Tso has also been 
an independent non-executive director of First Natural Foods Holdings 
Limited, which was later renamed as Imperial Pacific International 
Holdings Limited in May 2014 (stock code: 1076) since November 2013.

獨立非執行董事

tso Hon sai Bosco（曹漢璽）

曹漢璽先生（「曹先生」），52歲，於二零一五
年六月二十五日獲委任為本公司獨立非執行董

事。彼現為曹歐嚴楊律師行之合夥人，並自

一九九零年起一直為香港執業律師。曹先生獲

倫敦國王學院頒授法律學士學位。

自二零零零年十一月至二零零四年九月，曹先

生於英皇娛樂集團有限公司（後分別於二零一零

年四月及二零一零年九月更名為龍彩娛樂集團

有限公司及中國3D數碼娛樂有限公司）（股份代
號：8078）擔任獨立非執行董事。自二零零三年
七月至二零一二年十一月，曹先生於廣益國際

集團有限公司（後於二零零九年五月更名為高銀

金融（集團）有限公司）（股份代號：530）擔任獨
立非執行董事。自二零零五年五月至二零零五

月九月，曹先生於通達工業（集團）有限公司（後

於二零一零年八月更名為利時集團（控股）有限

公司）（股份代號：526）擔任獨立非執行董事。
於二零零六年十二月，彼於老虎科技（控股）有

限公司（後於二零零八年十一月更名為恒芯中國

控股有限公司）（股份代號：8046）擔任執行董
事，並於二零零六年十二月至二零零七年六月

擔任執行董事及公司秘書。自二零零七年八月

至二零一二年八月，曹先生於麗盛集團控股有

限公司（後於二零一五年二月更名為中國智慧

能源集團控股有限公司）（股份代號：1004）擔
任獨立非執行董事。自二零零七年五月至二零

一五年七月，曹先生於優能數碼科技（控股）有

限公司（後分別於二零零九年五月、二零零九年

十二月及二零一二年六月更名為大地資源發展

（控股）有限公司，中國公共醫療（控股）有限公

司及中國幸福投資（控股）有限公司）（股份代號：

8116）擔任獨立非執行董事。自二零一三年十一
月，曹先生亦於第一天然食品有限公司（後於二

零一四年五月更名為博華太平洋國際控股有限

公司）（股份代號：1076）擔任獨立非執行董事。
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Wong Yiu Kit ernest (黃耀傑 )

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, ernest (“Mr. Wong”), aged 49, has been appointed 
as an independent non-executive Director on 1 November 2016. Mr. 
Wong has over 26 years of experience in venture capital, corporate 
finance, business development and general management. Mr. Wong has 
served as the president and group chief financial officer of KVB Kunlun 
Holdings Limited (“KVB”) since November 2011 and as the chief financial 
officer and the company secretary of KVB’s group company, KVB Kunlun 
Financial Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock 
Exchange (stock code: 8077) since October 2014. Mr. Wong has also 
served as an independent non-executive director of Renheng Enterprise 
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange 
(stock code: 3628) since October 2011, HongDa Financial Holding 
Ltd, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 
1822) since July 2014, Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (stock 
code: 1581) since November 2016 and China Regenerative Medicine 
International Limited  (stock code : 8158) since February 2017. 

Mr. Wong served several positions at Adamas Finance Asia Limited, 
a company listed on the London Stock Exchange (LSE stock code: 
ADAM), including its executive director from May 2008 to February 2014, 
its chief financial officer from May 2008 to October 2011 and its non-
executive director since February 2014. Mr. Wong also served as the 
chief financial officer  of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology 
Research Institute  between November 2002 and April 2008 and was 
the vice president of Vertex Management (HK), an international venture 
capital firm listed in Singapore between July 2000 and October 2002.

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from 
The University of Hong Kong in 1991, a master’s degree of science in 
investment management from The Hong Kong University of Science 
and Technology in 1998 and a master’s degree of science in electronic 
engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2008.

Mr. Wong was admitted as a fellow member of the Association of 
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants in November 1999 and October 2002, 
respectively. He was admitted as a chartered financial analyst of the 
Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts in September 1998 and an 
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales in January 2008. He is also acting as the president of the 
Hong Kong University Graduates Association, the deputy chairman of 
the HKU Convocation, the court member of The University of Hong 
Kong, a committee member of the Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants Hong Kong and an executive director of the Hong Kong 
Society of Financial Analysts.

Wong Yiu Kit ernest（黃耀傑）

黃耀傑先生（「黃先生」），49歲，於二零一六
年十一月一日獲委任為獨立非執行董事。黃先

生於創業投資、企業財務、業務發展及一般管

理方面擁有逾26年經驗。黃先生自二零一一
年十一月起擔任KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited
（「KVB」）之總裁及集團財務總監，及自二零
一四年十月起擔任KVB之集團公司昆侖國際金
融集團有限公司（其股份於聯交所上市，股份代

號：8077）之財務總監及公司秘書。黃先生亦分
別自二零一一年十月起於仁恒實業控股有限公

司（其股份於聯交所上市，股份代號：3628）、
自二零一四年七月起於弘達金融控股有限公司

（其股份於聯交所上市，股份代號：1822）、自
二零一六年十一月起於進昇集團控股有限公司

（股份代號：1581）以及自二零一七年二月起於
中國再生醫學國際有限公司（股份代號：8158）
擔任獨立非執行董事。

黃先生曾於Adamas Finance Asia Limited（一
間於倫敦證券交易所上市之公司，倫敦證券

交易所股份代號：ADAM）擔任數職，包括自
二零零八年五月至二零一四年二月期間擔任執

行董事、自二零零八年五月至二零一一年十月

期間擔任財務總監及自二零一四年二月起擔任

非執行董事。黃先生亦曾自二零零二年十一月

至二零零八年四月於香港應用科技研究院擔任

財務總監，以及自二零零零年七月至二零零

二年十月於新加坡上市的跨國合資公司Vertex 
Management (HK)擔任副總裁。

黃先生於一九九一年獲得香港大學工商管理學

學士學位，於一九九八年獲得香港科技大學投

資管理學理學碩士學位，及於二零零八年獲得

香港中文大學電子工程理學碩士學位。

黃先生分別於一九九九年十一月及二零零二年

十月獲准成為英國特許公認會計師公會及香港

會計師公會資深會員。彼於一九九八年九月獲

准成為特許財務分析師學會之特許財務分析師

及於二零零八年一月成為英格蘭和威爾士特許

會計師公會會員。彼亦為香港大學畢業同學會

會長、香港大學畢業生議會副主席、香港大學

校董、特許公認會計師公會香港分會會員及香

港財經分析師協會執行董事。



Biographical Details of Directors and senior Management
董事及高級管理層之履歷詳情

22 朸濬國際集團控股有限公司
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

Cheng Chai Fu(鄭濟富 )

Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 54, has been appointed as 
an independent non-executive Director on 9 March 2017. Mr. Cheng 
graduated from Victoria University of Wellington, New Zealand with a 
bachelor’s degree in commerce and administration in 1990 and obtained 
a Master of Business Administration from Murray State University, 
Kentucky of the United States of America in 2000. Mr. Cheng has 
been an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand. Mr. Cheng has 
extensive experience in the areas of auditing, accounting and company 
secretarial work.

Mr. Cheng worked as the company secretary and financial controller of 
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8220) from August 2008 to 
October 2009. From March 2010 to January 2015, Mr. Cheng worked 
as the company secretary of Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited 
(stock code: 566). He also worked as an in-house company secretary 
of HongDa Financial Holding Limited (stock code: 1822) from January 
2015 to December 2015. Mr. Cheng has also served as the company 
secretary of China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (stock 
code: 8158) since January 2016.

CoMPAnY seCRetARY

Chung tin Yan (鍾天昕 )

Mr. Chung tin Yan, aged 33, is currently the financial controller of 
the Company, has been appointed as the company secretary of the 
Company on 13 February 2017. He has over 10 years of experience 
in finance, auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, 
Mr. Chung Tin Yan held various senior positions with Hutchison 
Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings Limited, the shares of which 
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0215). He has also 
worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and his last position was manager. 
Mr. Chung Tin Yan also has extensive experience in fund raising activities 
in Hong Kong and in the United States.

Cheng Chai Fu（鄭濟富）

鄭濟富先生（「鄭先生」），54歲，於二零一七年
三月九日獲委任為獨立非執行董事。鄭先生於

一九九零年畢業於新西蘭威靈頓維多利亞大學

並取得商業及行政學士學位，及於二零零零年

獲美國肯德基州Murray State University頒授工
商管理學碩士學位。鄭先生為香港特許秘書公

會會員、香港會計師公會會員及新西蘭特許會

計師公會會員。鄭先生有豐富的審核、會計及

公司秘書工作經驗。

鄭先生自二零零八年八月至二零零九年十月於

比高集團控股有限公司（股份代號：8220）擔任
公司秘書及財務總監。自二零一零年三月至二

零一五年一月，鄭先生擔任漢能薄膜發電集團

有限公司（股份代號：566）的公司秘書。彼亦於
二零一五年一月至二零一五年十二月在弘達金

融控股有限公司（股份代號：1822）擔任內部公
司秘書。鄭先生亦自二零一六年一月起於中國

再生醫學國際有限公司（股份代號：8158）擔任
公司秘書。

公司秘書

Chung tin Yan（鍾天昕）

鍾天昕先生，33歲，現為本公司的財務總監並
於二零一七年二月十三日獲委任為本公司之公

司秘書。彼擁用超過10年財務，審計及會計方
面的經驗。在加入本公司前，鍾天昕先生曾於

和記電訊香港控股有限公司擔任要職，其股份

於聯交所上市（股份代號：0215）。彼亦曾任職
於德勤會計師事務所，最後職級為經理。鍾天

昕先生亦在香港和美國的集資活動方面有豐富

的經驗。
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Chen Wai Chung edmund (陳煒聰 )

Mr. Chen Wai Chung edmund (“Mr. Chen”), aged 44, a vice 
president and the chief investment officer of the Group. Mr. Chen has 
over 18 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial control. 
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen held various senior positions in 
several international accounting firms, listed company in Hong Kong 
and domestic privately owned enterprises, including Ernst & Young, 
KPMG Hong Kong, KPMG Huazhen. He was the vice president and the 
company secretary of Austar Lifesciences Limited (stock code: 6118) 
from November 2014 to October 2015.

From July 2013 to October 2015, Mr. Chen was also an independent 
non-executive director of Huarong International Financial Holdings 
Limited (formerly known as Simsen International Corporation Limited) 
(stock code: 993). From November 2014 to January 2016, he was also 
a non-executive director of Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited 
(stock code: 8226), a listed company on GEM. Mr. Chen obtained a 
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. 
He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and an associate member of the Association of 
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Chen Weijie (陳維洁 )

Ms. Chen Weijie (“Ms. Chen”), aged 36, the chief operating officer of 
the Group. Ms. Chen graduated with a bachelor of law degree from the 
Guangdong University of Finance & Economics in 2004 and obtained 
her master’s degree of law from the City University of Hong Kong in 
2005. Ms. Chen became qualified as a lawyer in the People’s Republic of 
China in June 2008 and has been a licensed representative to carry out 
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) 
regulated activities under the SFO since 2013.

Ms. Chen has more than 14 years of experience in management, 
investment, legal and corporate finance and had worked as senior 
management positions for several financial and securities companies 
including Vision Finance (Securities) Limited, China Private Equity 
Investment Holdings Limited, China Fortune Financial Group Limited, the 
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 290) and 
China Aircraft Leasing Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which are 
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1848).

高級管理層

Chen Wai Chung edmund（陳煒聰）

陳煒聰先生（「陳先生」），44歲，本集團副總裁
兼投資總監。陳先生在會計、審計與財務控制

領域擁有逾18年經驗。陳先生加入本集團前，
曾於多家國際會計師事務所、香港上市公司及

國內民營企業擔任要職，包括安永會計師事務

所，香港畢馬威會計師事務所、畢馬威華振會

計師事務所。彼於二零一四年十一月至二零

一五年十月曾任奧星生命科技有限公司（股份代

號：6118）之副總裁及公司秘書。

陳先生亦於二零一三年七月至二零一五年十月

期間擔任華融國際金融控股有限公司（前稱天行

國際（控股）有限公司（股份代號：993））之獨立
非執行董事。彼亦於二零一四年十一月至二零

一六年一月曾任創業板上市公司中昱科技集團

有限公司（股份代號：8226）之非執行董事。陳
先生獲得香港城市大學會計學士學位，現為香

港會計師公會資深會員及英國特許公認會計師

公會會員。

Chen Weijie（陳維洁）

陳維洁女士（「陳女士」），36歲，本集團運營總
監。陳女士於二零零四年畢業於廣東財經大學

並取得法學碩士學位，並於二零零五年取得香

港城市大學法學碩士學位。陳女士於二零零八

年六月獲得中華人民共和國律師資格，並自二

零一三年起成為可進行證券及期貨條例項下第6
類（就機構融資提供意見）及第9類（提供資產管
理）受規管活動之持牌代表。

陳女士擁有超過14年管理、投資、法律及企業
融資經驗及曾於匯金（證券）有限公司、福泰中

國投資控股有限公司、中國富強金融集團有限

公司（其股份於聯交所上市，股份代號：290）及
中國飛機租賃集團控股有限公司（其股份於聯交

所上市，股份代號：1848）等若干金融及證券公
司擔任高級管理職務。



Corporate Governance Report
企業管治報告

24 朸濬國際集團控股有限公司
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate 
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes considerable 
effort to maintain high level of business ethics and corporate governance 
practices.

CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe PRACtICes

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code 
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in 
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The 
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the 
financial year ended 31 December 2016, except for certain deviations 
as specified with considered reasons for such deviations as explained 
below. The Board will keep reviewing and updating such practices from 
time to time to ensure compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe stRUCtURe

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring 
performance and managing risks of the Company and its subsidiaries 
(collectively the “Group”). At the same time, it also has the duty to 
enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the 
Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely the audit 
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee. 
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their 
respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain 
functions of the senior management.

CoMPLIAnCe WItH tHe MoDeL CoDe FoR 
seCURItIes tRAnsACtIons

The Group had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions 
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing 
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for securities 
transactions by Directors and relevant employees who, because of office 
or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside 
information in relation to the Company’s securities. The Company had 
made specific enquiry to all the directors (the “Directors”) and such-
relevant employees and they confirmed compliance with the Model 
Code throughout the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016. 
No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during this 
period.

本公司致力推行高標準之企業管治，以保障股

東權益，並盡力維持高水準的商業操守及企業

管治常規。

企業管治常規

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止財政年

度，本公司已遵守香港聯合交易所有限公司證

券上市規則（「上市規則」）附錄十四所載企業管

治守則及企業管治報告（「企業管治守則」），惟

下文解釋之若干已闡明原因之偏離除外。董事

會將繼續不時檢討及更新該等常規，以確保符

合法律及商業準則。

企業管治架構

董事會主要負責本公司及其附屬公司（統稱「本

集團」）之策略制定、表現監控及風險管理。同

時，董事會亦有責任提升本集團企業管治常規

效力。董事會轄下有三個董事委員會，即審核

委員會、薪酬委員會及提名委員會。所有該等

委員會均根據彼等各自之職權範圍履行其各自

職責，並協助董事會監督高級管理層之若干職

能。

遵守進行證券交易之標準守則

本集團已採納上市規則附錄十所載上市發行人

董事進行證券交易之標準守則（「標準守則」）作

為其董事（「董事」）及有關僱員（因職務或職位而

可能取得有關本公司證券之尚未發佈內幕消息）

進行證券交易的操守守則。本公司已向全體董

事及該等有關僱員作出具體查詢，而彼等已確

認於二零一六年一月一日至二零一六年十二月

三十一日期間內一直遵守標準守則。本公司於

該期間內並無發現任何不合規的事宜。



25二零一六年年報
Annual Report 2016

BoARD oF DIReCtoRs

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight Directors as 
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Yun
Mr. Dai Lifeng (Appointed on 12 April 2016)
Mr. Wu Li Xin (Appointed on 11 November 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lu Zefeng (Appointed on 15 December 2016)
Mr. Chung Wai Man (Appointed on 13 February 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Appointed on 9 March 2017)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Appointed on 1 November 2016)

List of directors and their roles and functions are available on the 
websites of Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 
(“Stock Exchange”). Biographical details of the Directors are set out in 
the section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” 
on pages 18 to 23. There are no family or other material relationships 
among members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial 
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall 
strategies and policies of the Company. Apart from the regular board 
meetings of the year, the Board also meets on other occasions when a 
Board-level decision on a particular matter is required.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, management provides all 
members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and 
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position 
and prospects in sufficient detail.

According to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, a notice of at least 
14 days should be given for a regular board meeting to give all directors 
an opportunity to attend. Due to the practical scheduling issues, a 
shorter reasonable notice was given to the Directors for a number of 
regular meetings held in 2016.

Meanwhile, according to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, 
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors should 
attend general meetings. At the annual general meeting held on 26 May 
2016, all the independent non-executive Directors and non-executive 
Director were presented to enable the Board to develop a balanced 
understanding of the views of the shareholders of the Company, except, 
Mr. Leung Siu Hong who was unable to attend due to his other business 
commitments.

董事會

於本報告日期，董事會由以下八名董事組成：

執行董事

黃雲先生

戴立峰先生（於二零一六年四月十二日獲委任）

吳立新先生（於二零一六年十一月十一日獲委任）

非執行董事

陸澤峰先生（於二零一六年十二月十五日獲委任）

鍾偉文先生（於二零一七年二月十三日獲委任）

獨立非執行董事

鄭濟富先生（於二零一七年三月九日獲委任）

曹漢璽先生

黃耀傑先生（於二零一六年十一月一日獲委任）

董事名單及彼等之職責及職能於本公司及香港

聯合交易所有限公司（「聯交所」）網站可供查

閱。董事履歷詳情載於第18至23頁「董事及高
級管理層之履歷詳情」一節。董事會成員之間概

無親屬或其他重大關係。

董事會定期舉行會議，以檢討及通過財務及經

營業績以及審議及批准本公司總體策略及政

策。除年內之董事會例會外，董事會亦會就須

由董事會層面作出決定的特別事項於其他時候

舉行會議。

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度，管理

層每月向董事會全體成員提供最新資料，當中

載列詳盡內容，以公正及易於理解的角度評估

本公司的表現、狀況及前景。

根據企業管治守則之守則條文第A.1.3條，董事
會定期會議須於會議召開前不少於十四日發出

通知，以讓全體董事有機會出席。由於實際安

排關係，本公司曾就二零一六年舉行之多次常

規會議向董事發出提前時間較短的合理通知。

同時，根據企業管治守則之守則條文A.6.7，全
體獨立非執行董事及非執行董事須出席股東大

會。於二零一六年五月二十六日舉行之股東週

年大會上，除梁兆康先生因其他事務承擔而未

能出席外，全體獨立非執行董事及非執行董事

均已出席該大會，以使董事會對本公司股東之

意見有公正的了解。
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The Company will arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate 
information on all general meetings and take all reasonable measures 
to arrange the schedule that all Directors can attend the general 
meetings in order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of 
shareholders.

The Board will continue to review the corporate governance status of the 
Company from time to time and make any necessary changes to comply 
with the CG Code.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, audit 
committee meetings, remuneration committee meetings, nomination 
committee meetings and general meetings during the year ended 31 
December 2016 is set out in the following table:

   Audit  Remuneration  nomination 
   Committee Committee Committee General 
name of directors  Board Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
董事姓名  董事會會議 審核委員會會議 薪酬委員會會議 提名委員會會議 股東大會
  (attendance/ total no. (attendance/ total no. (attendance/ total no. (attendance/ total no. (attendance/ total no.
  of meetings held) of meetings held) of meetings held) of meetings held) of meeting held)
  （出席次數╱ （出席次數╱ （出席次數╱ （出席次數╱ （出席次數╱

  舉行會議總次數） 舉行會議總次數） 舉行會議總次數） 舉行會議總次數） 舉行會議總次數）

Executive Directors 執行董事

Mr. Huang Yun 黃雲先生 4/4 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 1/1
Mr. Dai Lifeng  戴立峰先生

 (appointed on 12 April 2016)  （於二零一六年四月十二日獲委任） 1/1 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 1/1
Mr. Wu Li Xin  吳立新先生

 (appointed on 11 November 2016)  （於二零一六年十一月十一日獲委任） N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用

Non-executive Directors 非執行董事

Mr. Law Fei Shing  羅輝城先生

 (re-designated on 12 April 2016)  （於二零一六年四月十二日調任） 4/4 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 1/1
 (resigned on 15 December 2016)  （於二零一六年十二月十五日辭任）

Mr. Lu Zefeng  陸澤峰先生

 (appointed on 15 December 2016)  （於二零一六年十二月十五日獲委任） N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用

Independent Non-executive Directors 獨立非執行董事

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco 曹漢璽先生 4/4 3/3 6/6 6/6 1/1
Mr. Leung Siu Hong  梁兆康先生

 (resigned on 9 March 2017)  （於二零一七年三月九日辭任） 4/4 2/3 6/6 6/6 1/1
Mr. Chung Wai Man  鍾偉文先生

 (resigned on 1 November 2016)  （於二零一六年十一月一日辭任） 4/4 3/3 5/5 5/5 1/1
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest 黃耀傑先生

 (appointed on 1 November 2016)  （於二零一六年十一月一日獲委任） N/A 不適用 N/A 不適用 1/1 1/1 N/A 不適用

本公司將安排向全體董事提供所有股東大會之

適用資料，並採取一切合理措施以安排時間

表，確保全體董事能夠出席股東大會以對股東

意見有公正的了解。

董事會將繼續不時檢討本公司的企業管治情

況，並作出任何必要變動以符合企業管治守則。

各董事於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年

度有關董事會會議、審核委員會會議、薪酬委

員會會議、提名委員會會議及股東大會之出席

記錄載於下表：
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All Directors were provided with details of agenda items for decisions 
making with reasonable notice and invited to raise any matters in the 
agenda of Board Meeting. Directors have access to the advice and 
services of the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring 
that the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board 
on compliance matters. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of 
the Board committees are kept by the company secretary and are 
opened for inspection as requested by the Directors. During the year, 
the Board was given sufficient time to review and approve minutes of 
Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees. The Directors 
were also provided with access to independent professional advice, 
where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as the Directors of 
the Company, at the expense of the Company. Directors who are 
considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in the 
proposed transactions or issues to be discussed would not be counted 
in the quorum of meeting and would abstain from voting on the relevant 
resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the 
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are 
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the 
Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so 
as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial 
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and 
financial position of the Group through, interim and annual results 
announcements as well as the publication of timely announcements of 
other matters as prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors, at 
least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, 
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Each of the independent 
non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of his 
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company 
is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the 
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and 
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company’s articles of association, newly appointed 
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and 
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including 
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by 
rotation at least once every three years.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had 
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against 
the Directors.

全體董事均獲合理通知以獲得各項議程之詳細

資料以便作出決定並受邀於董事會會議議程上

提出任何事項。董事均可獲得公司秘書提供之

意見及服務，公司秘書負責確保遵守董事會程

序及就合規事宜向董事會提供意見。董事會會

議及董事委員會之會議記錄由公司秘書保管並

可應董事要求提供查閱。年內，董事會已獲充

足時間審閱及確認董事會會議及董事委員會之

會議記錄。董事在履行彼等作為本公司董事之

義務時，如有需要亦可獲提供獨立專業意見，

費用由本公司承擔。被視為於建議交易或將予

討論事項中涉及利益衝突或擁有重大利益的董

事，不得計入該次會議之法定人數，並須就相

關決議案放棄投票。

全體董事就本公司穩健發展與成功向本公司股

東負責。彼等知悉彼等應以誠信態度及在符合

本公司最佳利益之情況下履行職務。

董事會有責任保存完備之會計記錄，以便董事

監察本公司整體財務狀況。董事會透過中期及

全年業績公佈以及根據有關規則及規例之規定

就其他事項適時刊發之公佈，向股東提供本集

團營運及財務狀況之最新資料。

本公司擁有三名獨立非執行董事，且為符合上

市規則，其中至少一名獨立非執行董事具備適

當之財務管理專業知識。各獨立非執行董事已

根據上市規則第3.13條就其獨立性作出年度確
認。本公司認為，全體獨立非執行董事均符合

上市規則第3.13條所載獨立性指引，且根據指
引條款屬獨立人士。

根據本公司之組織章程細則，最近獲委任之董

事將任職至下屆股東大會為止，並於該大會上

合資格膺選連任。每名董事（包括擁有特定任期

之董事）須至少每三年輪值退任一次。

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一止財政年度，

本公司已安排適當保險，使董事面對法律訴訟

時有所保障。



Corporate Governance Report
企業管治報告

28 朸濬國際集團控股有限公司
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

CHAIRMAn AnD CHIeF eXeCUtIVe oFFICeR

Under Code Provision of A.2.1. of the CG Code, the roles of the 
chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive 
officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) should be 
separated and should not be performed by the same individual. The 
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separated to 
ensure a clear division between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage 
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the 
Company’s business. The separation ensures a balance of power and 
authority so that power is not concentrated.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Wu Li Xin was appointed 
as the Chief Executive Officer and his role is to oversee the overall 
management of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no individual was appointed 
as the Chairman. The role of the Chairman has been performed 
collectively by all executive Directors of the Company.

The Board considers this arrangement allows contributions from all 
Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity and 
implementation of the Company’s policy and strategies and in the 
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Nevertheless, the Company will continue to look for suitable candidate 
to fill the role of the Chairman and will make necessary arrangement 
pursuant to the requirement under A.2.1 of the CG Code as and when 
necessary.

non-eXeCUtIVe DIReCtoRs

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-executive 
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered 
into a service contract with the Company for a specific term of one 
year or three years but subject to termination in certain circumstance 
as stipulated in the relevant service contracts. At each annual general 
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (if their number 
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than 
one third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director 
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once 
every one year or three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual 
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of members after 
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any 
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold office 
only until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall then 
be eligible for re-election.

主席及行政總裁

根據企業管治守則之守則條文第A.2.1.條，本
公司主席（「主席」）與本公司行政總裁（「行政總

裁」）之角色應有區分，不應由一人同時兼任。

將主席與行政總裁之角色劃分，可確保主席管

理董事會之責任與行政總裁管理本公司業務之

責任得到清晰分工。該劃分將確保權力及授權

分佈均衡，令權力不會集中於任何個人。

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度，吳立

新先生已獲委任為行政總裁，及其責任為監察

本公司全體管理層。

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度，概無

其他人士獲委任為主席。主席職責由本公司全

體執行董事共同履行。

董事會認為該項安排可使各董事發揮各自所

長，為公司作出貢獻，有利於本公司政策及策

略的連貫性及執行，符合本公司股東的整體利

益。

然而，本公司將繼續尋求合適候選人以填補主

席職位，並將於必要時根據企業管治守則第

A.2.1條的規定作出必要安排。

非執行董事

根據企業管治守則之守則條文第A.4.1條，所有
非執行董事之委任應有特定任期，並須接受重

選。各獨立非執行董事已與本公司訂立一年或

三年特定任期之服務合約，惟該等合約可於有

關服務合約所訂明之若干情況下予以終止。在

每屆股東週年大會上，當時三分之一的董事（若

其人數並非三的倍數，則以當時最接近但不少

於三分之一的人數）將輪值退任，前提是各董事

須至少每年或每三年在股東週年大會上退任一

次。任何獲委任以填補臨時空缺的董事的任期

須直至彼獲委任後首屆股東大會並於該會上重

選，而現有董事會中任何增任董事的任期僅至

本公司下屆股東週年大會為止，隨後符合資格

可膺選連任。
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CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe FUnCtIon

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties 
and has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate 
governance functions. The duties of the Board in respect of the 
corporate governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on 
corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional 
development of the Directors and senior management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on 
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and 
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the 
Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and 
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Since 2016 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed 
the corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of 
reference.

BoARD DIVeRsItY PoLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board adopted a board 
diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity 
on the Board. The Company considered diversity of board members can 
be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including 
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, 
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments 
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against 
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the 
Board.

Selection of candidates wil l be based on a range of diversity 
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and 
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. 
The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contributions 
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

企業管治職能

董事會負責履行企業管治職責，並已採納其企

業管治職能之書面職權範圍。董事會有關企業

管治職能之職責包括：

(i) 制定及檢討本公司之企業管治政策及常

規；

(ii) 檢討及監察董事及高級管理層之培訓及持

續專業發展；

(iii) 檢討及監察本公司在遵守法律及監管規定

方面之政策及常規；

(iv) 制定、檢討及監察適用於僱員及董事之操

守守則及合規手冊（如有）；及

(v) 檢討本公司對企業管治守則之遵守情況及

在企業管治報告之披露。

由二零一六年及直至本報告日期，董事會已根

據其職權範圍履行企業管治職責。

董事會成員多元化政策

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度，

董事會已採納董事會成員多元化政策（「該政

策」），其中載有實現董事會成員多元化之方

法。本公司認為可透過多方面考慮實現董事會

成員多元化，包括但不限於性別、年齡、文化

及教育背景、專業經驗、技能及知識。董事會

所有委任將用人唯才，並在考慮候選人時以客

觀準則充分顧及董事會成員多元化的裨益。

候選人的甄選將基於一系列多元化角度，包括

但不限於性別、年齡、文化及教育背景、專業

經驗、技能及知識。最終決定將按所選候選人

的優點及其將為董事會帶來的貢獻而作出。



Corporate Governance Report
企業管治報告

30 朸濬國際集團控股有限公司
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

ReMUneRAtIon CoMMIttee

A remuneration committee of the Board was set up on 22 June 2011 
(the “Remuneration Committee”) to oversee the remuneration policy 
and structure for all Directors and senior management. The terms of 
reference is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock 
Exchange.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include 
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and 
structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining 
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management. 
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for ensuring that 
no Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which will be determined with reference to the 
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market 
practice and conditions. Members are provided with sufficient resources, 
including but not limited to, the access to independent professional 
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations, at the expense 
of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee held six meetings during the year 
ended 31 December 2016 for reviewing the remuneration package 
of the Directors and the senior management, assessing performance 
of executive Directors, approving the terms of executive Directors’ 
service contracts and making recommendations to the Board as the 
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior 
management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members as at the date 
of this report namely:

Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Chairman) (Appointed on 9 March 2017)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Appointed on 1 November 2016) (ceased to 
serve as chairman on 9 March 2017)

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.

薪酬委員會

本公司已於二零一一年六月二十二日成立董事

會薪酬委員會（「薪酬委員會」），以監察全體董

事及高級管理層之薪酬政策及架構。有關職權

範圍於本公司及聯交所網站可供查閱。

薪酬委員會之主要目標包括就董事及高級管理

層之薪酬政策及架構向董事會作出推薦建議，

以及釐定全體董事及高級管理層之薪酬方案。

薪酬委員會亦負責確保概無董事或其任何聯繫

人將參與決定其自身薪酬。有關薪酬將參考個

人表現及本公司業績以及市場慣例及狀況釐

定。各成員獲提供充足資源（包括但不限於在必

要時獲得獨立專業建議）以履行彼等之責任，費

用由本公司承擔。

薪酬委員會於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日

止年度舉行六次會議以檢討各董事及高級管理

層之薪酬方案、評估執行董事之表現、批准執

行董事服務合約之條款及就個別執行董事及高

級管理層之薪酬方案向董事會作出推薦建議。

於本報告日期，薪酬委員會由以下三名成員組

成：

鄭濟富先生（主席）（於二零一七年三月九日獲委

任）

黃耀傑先生（於二零一六年十一月一日獲委任）

（於二零一七年三月九日辭任主席）

曹漢璽先生

全體現任成員均為獨立非執行董事。
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In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the 
annual remuneration of the member of the senior management by band 
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  number of  Number of 
  persons persons
  人數 人數

Above HK$1,000,000 1,000,000港元以上 4 —
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 零港元至1,000,000港元 9 8

noMInAtIon CoMMIttee

The Company has established a nomination committee of the 
Board on 22 June 2011 (the “Nomination Committee”) for making 
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors and 
succession planning of the Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing 
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on 
the appointment and succession planning of the Directors, assessing 
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and 
reviewing the Policy. Members are provided with access to independent 
professional advice, where necessary, in carrying their obligations at the 
expense of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination 
Committee held six meetings. The members reviewed the current 
composition of the Board and discussed about the Board restructure 
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience 
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company 
pursuant to its terms of reference (available on the websites of the 
Company and the Stock Exchange) and the Policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company appointed two 
executive Directors and one independent non-executive Director, namely 
Mr. Dai Lifeng, Mr. Wu Li Xin and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest, respectively. 
The Nomination Committee has reviewed the appointed Directors’ 
background, including but not limited to independence, gender, age, 
cultural and education background, professional experience, skills and 
knowledge. The Nomination Committee considered current Board 
Composition has achieved the objectives of the Policy.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Dai 
Lifeng, Mr. Wu Li Xin, Mr. Lu Zefeng, Mr. Chung Wai Man, Mr. Cheng 
Chai Fu and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest shall retire and are eligible to offer 
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

此外，根據企業管治守則守則條文第B.1.5條，
高級管理層成員截至二零一六年十二月三十一

日止年度之年度薪酬按薪酬等級載列如下：

提名委員會

本公司已於二零一一年六月二十二日成立董事

會提名委員會（「提名委員會」），以就委任董事

及董事的繼任人選規劃向董事會作出推薦建議。

提名委員會之主要職責包括檢討董事會組成、

就董事委任及繼任人選規劃向董事會作出推薦

建議、評估獨立非執行董事之獨立性以及檢討

該政策。各成員在必要時獲提供獨立專業建

議，以履行彼等之責任，費用由本公司承擔。

提名委員會於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日

止財政年度舉行六次會議。提名委員會成員檢

討董事會之現時組成並討論調整董事會之架

構，確保董事會根據其職權範圍（於本公司及聯

交所網站可供查閱）及該政策在適合本公司業務

需要之專業知識、技能及經驗各方面取得平衡。

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度，本

公司分別委任兩名執行董事及一名獨立非執行

董事（即戴立峰先生、吳立新先生及黃耀傑先

生）。提名委員會已審閱獲委任董事的背景，包

括但不限於獨立性、性別、年齡、文化及教育

背景、專業經驗、技能及知識。提名委員會認

為董事會現時的組成已達致該政策的目標。

根據本公司之組織章程細則，戴立峰先生、吳

立新先生、陸澤峰先生、鍾偉文先生、鄭濟富

先生及黃耀傑先生須於應屆股東週年大會上退

任並合資格膺選連任。
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The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the 
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general 
meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members as at the date of 
this report namely:

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Appointed on 9 March 2017)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Appointed on 1 November 2016)

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.

AUDIt CoMMIttee

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board on 
22 June 2011 (the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference 
(available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange) that 
set out the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee adopted by the 
Board. The Audit Committee performs, amongst others, the following 
functions:

•	 reviewing	the	financial	information	of	the	Group;

•	 reviewing	the	relationship	with	and	the	terms	of	appointment	of	the	
external auditors; and

•	 overseeing	 the	Company’s	 financial	 reporting	system,	 internal	
control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee is given sufficient resources to oversee the internal 
control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any material issues, 
and makes recommendations to the Board. During the year under 
review, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results and 
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016, the accounting 
principles and policies adopted by the Group, the financial reporting 
and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal control and risk 
management systems and processes, and the re-appointment of the 
external auditors.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31 
December 2016.

提名委員會建議於本公司應屆股東週年大會上

重新委任待重選之董事。

於本報告日期，提名委員會由以下三名成員組

成：

曹漢璽先生（主席）

鄭濟富先生（於二零一七年三月九日獲委任）

黃耀傑先生（於二零一六年十一月一日獲委任）

所有現任成員均為獨立非執行董事。

審核委員會

本公司已於二零一一年六月二十二日成立董事

會審核委員會（「審核委員會」），其書面職權範

圍（於本公司及聯交所網站可供查閱）載有董事

會所採納之審核委員會之權力及職責。審核委

員會履行（其中包括）以下職能：

• 審閱本集團財務資料；

• 檢討與外聘核數師的關係及其委任年期；

及

• 監察本公司之財務申報系統、內部監控系

統及風險管理系統。

審核委員會具有充足資源監督本集團之內部監

控系統、向董事會報告任何重大問題，並向董

事會作出推薦建議。於回顧年度，審核委員會

已審閱本集團截至二零一六年十二月三十一日

止年度之全年業績及年報、本集團採納之會計

原則及政策、財務申報及合規程序、本公司之

內部監控及風險管理系統及流程，以及外聘核

數師之續聘。

審核委員會於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日

止年度舉行三次會議。
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The Audit Committee comprises three members as at the date of this 
report namely:

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Chairman) (Appointed on 1 November 2016 
and re-designated as Chairman of Audit Committee from Chairman of 
Remuneration Committee on 9 March 2017)

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco

Mr Cheng Chai Fu (Appointed on 9 March 2017)

All the members are independent non-executive Directors. None of the 
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s 
existing external auditors.

InteRnAL ContRoLs AnD RIsK MAnAGeMent

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the 
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s 
strategic objectives, maintaining sound systems of risk management and 
internal controls and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests 
of the Group as a whole. However, such systems are designed to 
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to 
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group, 
they can only provide reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance 
against material misstatement or loss. 

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, 
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. This 
process includes enhancing the systems of risk management and 
internal control in view of the changes to the business environment or 
regulatory guidelines. 

Management assists the Board in the implementation of the Group’s 
policies, procedures and controls by identifying and assessing the 
risks faced, and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable 
internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. The adequacy and 
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls 
of the Group are annually reviewed by the Board. The review covers all 
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls 
as well as the process for the identification, evaluation and management 
of the significant risks faced by the Company and the Group. The Board 
also reviews the adequacy of resources, employees’ qualifications 
and experience, their training programmes, and budget of the Group’s 
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

於本報告日期，審核委員會由以下三名成員組

成：

黃耀傑先生（主席）（於二零一六年十一月一日獲

委任並於二零一七年三月九日由薪酬委員會主

席調任為審核委員會主席）

曹漢璽先生

鄭濟富先生（於二零一七年三月九日獲委任）

所有成員均為獨立非執行董事。概無審核委員

會成員為本公司現任外聘核數師之前合夥人。

內部監控及風險管理

董事會負責整體評估及確定為達致本集團策略

目標而願意承擔風險的性質及程度，以及維持

風險管理及內部監控的穩健系統，並檢討該等

系統對保障本集團整體利益的有效性。然而，

該等系統僅可將本集團風險控制在可接受範圍

內，而無法消除不能達致本集團業務目標的風

險，且僅可提供合理保證而非絕對保證不會出

現重大失實陳述或損失。

董事會已建立程序，以持續地識別、評估及管

理本集團所面對的重大風險。程序包括針對營

商環境或監管指引的變更而不時加強風險管理

及內部監控系統。

管理層透過識別及評估所面對的風險，協助董

事會執行本集團的政策及程序以及監控並參與

設計、運作及監察合適的內部監控措施，以減

少及控制此等風險。董事會每年檢討本集團的

風險管理及內部監控系統是否充足及有效。檢

討範圍涵蓋所有重大監控，包括財務、營運及

合規監控，以及本公司及本集團所面對的重大

風險的識別、評估及管理的過程。董事會亦檢

討資源的充足性、本集團負責會計、內部審核

及財務報告職能僱員的資格及經驗及彼等的培

訓計劃及預算。
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HAnDLInG AnD DIsseMInAtIon oF InsIDe 
InFoRMAtIon 

For the purposes of handling and disseminating inside information 
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures 
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company has 
in place a policy on handling and dissemination of inside information 
(“Policy”) which sets out the procedures and internal controls for handling 
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such a way 
so as not to place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow 
time for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the 
latest available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of 
the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company 
from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes 
appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and assess 
potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the 
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on 
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the 
requirements of the Listing Rules.

eXteRnAL AUDItoR AnD AUDItoRs’ 
ReMUneRAtIon

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting 
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for 
the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the section headed 
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of 
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by 
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could 
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has incurred an 
aggregate fee of approximately HK$1,550,000 to the external auditor. 
In which, the amount of approximately HK$1,000,000 was paid for the 
audit purposes and HK$550,000 was paid for non-audit purposes, the 
non-audit services mainly consist of consulting services in relation to the 
environmental, social and governance reporting, risk assessment and 
review on financing reporting procedures and internal control system.

DIReCtoRs’ ResPonsIBILItIes FoR tHe 
FInAnCIAL stAteMents

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In 
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and 
standards are selected and applied consistently.

處理及發佈內幕消息

就根據上市規則及香港法例第571章證券及期
貨條例處理及發佈內幕消息而言，本公司已訂

立處理及發佈內幕消息的政策（「政策」），當中

載有處理及發佈內幕消息的程序及內部監控，

使內幕消息得以適時處理及發佈，而不會導致

任何人士在證券交易上處於佔優的地位，亦讓

市場有時間定出能反映最新現有實況的本公司

上市證券價格。該政策亦為本公司員工提供指

引，確保設有適當措施以預防本公司違反法定

披露規定。該政策亦載有適當的內部監控及匯

報制度，以識別及評估潛在的內幕消息。根據

上市規則規定，本公司內幕消息之發佈方法乃

於聯交所及本公司網站刊載相關消息。

外聘核數師及核數師酬金

本公司外聘核數師有關其申報責任的聲明及對

於本集團截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年

度之財務報表的意見，載於本年報「獨立核數師

報告」一節。

審核委員會負責考慮外聘核數師之委聘及審查

外聘核數師進行之任何非核數工作，包括有關

非核數工作會否對本公司構成任何潛在重大不

利影響。

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度，本

集團已產生支付予外聘核數師的費用總額約

1,550,000港元。其中約1,000,000港元為作審
核用途而支付及550,000港元為作非審核用途
而支付。非審核服務主要包括有關環境、社會

及管治報告、風險評估及有關財務申報程序及

內部監控系統審閱之諮詢服務。

董事對財務報表應負的責任

董事負責就各財政年度編製真實兼公平地反映

意見之財務報表。在編製財務報表時，董事選

擇及貫徹地應用適當之會計政策及準則。
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CoMPAnY seCRetARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board 
procedures are followed and facilitating communications among the 
Directors as well as with shareholders and management.

On 1 November 2016, Mr. Mui Chi Hung (“Mr. Mui”) resigned as the 
company secretary and Mr. Chung Wai Man was appointed as the 
company secretary.

On 13 February 2017, Mr. Chung Wai Man resigned as the company 
secretary and Mr. Chung Tin Yan was appointed as the company 
secretary.

During 2016, Mr. Mui, Mr. Chung Wai Man and Mr. Chung Tin Yan 
have attended relevant professional training to update their skills and 
knowledge. They met the training requirements as required under Rule 
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

InVestoR ReLAtIons

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a 
key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and 
timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and the 
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business 
developments and financial performance through its annual and interim 
reports.

The website of the Company (www.legend-strategy.com) has provided 
an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

sIGnIFICAnt CHAnGes In ConstItUtIonAL 
DoCUMent

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional documents 
during the year ended 31 December 2016. A consolidated version of 
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s 
website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

公司秘書

公司秘書負責確保遵守董事會程序及促進董事

之間以及與股東及管理層的溝通。

於二零一六年十一月一日，梅志雄先生（「梅先

生」）辭任公司秘書及鍾偉文先生獲委任為公司

秘書。

於二零一七年二月十三日，鍾偉文先生辭任公

司秘書及鍾天昕先生獲委任為公司秘書。

於二零一六年期間，梅先生、鍾偉文先生及鍾

天昕先生已出席相關專業培訓以提升其技能及

知識。彼等符合上市規則第3.29條所要求之培
訓規定。

投資者關係

本公司相信，維持高透明度是鞏固投資者關係

的關鍵。本公司致力奉行向其股東及大眾公開

及適時披露公司資料的政策。

本公司透過其年度及中期報告向其股東提供其

最新的業務發展及財務表現資料。

本公司的網站 (www.legend-strategy.com)為大
眾及股東提供一個有效的溝通平台。

章程文件之重大變動

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度，本

公司並無對其章程文件作出任何變動。本公司

章程文件之綜合版本可於本公司網站及聯交所

網站查閱。
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InDUCtIon AnD ContInUInG PRoFessIonAL 
DeVeLoPMent

Each newly appointed Director receives a formal, comprehensive 
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to 
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the 
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations 
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional 
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The 
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the 
Directors. Directors participated in continuous development relating to 
their roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further 
enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending 
training courses or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided 
the Company their training records for the year under review. The 
Directors and officers are indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’ 
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge 
of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the 
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where 
there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.

  Attending Reading regulatory
Directors  seminar(s) updates
   閱讀監管規定
董事  出席講座 的最新資料

Mr. Huang Yun 黃雲先生 3 3

Mr. Dai Lifeng 戴立峰先生 3 3

Mr. Wu Li Xin 吳立新先生 3 3

Mr. Lu Zefeng 陸澤峰先生 3 3

Mr. Law Fei Shing 羅輝城先生 3 3

Mr. Chung Wai Man 鍾偉文先生 3 3

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco 曹漢璽先生 3 3

Mr. Leung Siu Hong 梁兆康先生 3 3

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest 黃耀傑先生 3 3

sHAReHoLDeR CoMMUnICAtIon

The Company has adopted a shareholders communication policy with 
objectives to provide our shareholders with detailed information about 
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders 
in an informed manner. The Company would review the shareholders 
communication policy on a regular basis.

入職指引及持續專業發展

每名新委任之董事均於首次獲委任時獲提供正

式、全面及度身制訂的入職指引，確保新委任

之董事可適當掌握本公司之業務及營運，並充

分了解其於上市規則及相關法規項下之責任與

義務。

本公司鼓勵全體董事參與持續專業發展，以發

展及更新彼等之知識及技能。本公司持續向董

事提供有關培訓材料。董事透過參加培訓課程

或閱讀有關材料，參與與上市公司董事之角

色、職能及職責或進一步增強彼等專業發展相

關之持續發展。全體董事已向本公司提供彼等

於回顧年度之培訓記錄。董事及高級職員於擔

任本公司董事及高級職員期間，因彼等履行其

職責而引致之任何責任均受到董事及高級職員

責任保險之彌償，惟倘證實董事及高級職員存

在任何欺詐、失職或失信行為，則彼等將不獲

彌償。

與股東之溝通

本公司已採納與股東溝通之政策，旨在向股東

提供有關本公司的詳細資料，使彼等能在知情

的情況下行使彼等身為股東的權利。本公司將

定期檢討股東溝通政策。
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The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its 
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives, 
including annual general meeting, annual report, various notices, 
announcements and circulars. Procedures for demanding a poll have 
been included in circulars accompanying notice convening a general 
meeting and such procedures have been read out by the chairman of 
the general meeting. The annual general meeting and other general 
meetings of the Company are primary forum for communication 
between the Company and its shareholders. The Company shall provide 
shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed 
at a general meeting in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing 
Rules. The information provided shall be reasonably necessary to 
enable shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed 
resolution(s). At the annual general meeting held on 26 May 2016 (the 
“2016 AGM”), a separate resolution was proposed by the chairman in 
respect of each separate issue, including re-election of the Directors.

At the 2016 AGM, the executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit, 
Remuneration and Nomination Committees and representatives from 
the auditor of the Company, ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited, were present 
for questions from shareholders. There was one general meeting held 
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRoCeDURes FoR sHAReHoLDeRs to 
ConVene An eXtRAoRDInARY GeneRAL 
MeetInG

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new 
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands 
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are requested 
to follow article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, general 
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any one or 
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less 
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right 
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the 
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary to the Company, 
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for 
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such 
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such 
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails 
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may 
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the 
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed 
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

本公司使用多種溝通渠道，以確保股東及時獲

悉主要業務須知，包括股東週年大會、年報、

各項通告、公佈及通函。以投票方式表決之程

序已載入隨附召開股東大會通告的通函內，而

股東大會主席已於會上宣讀有關程序。本公司

的股東週年大會及其他股東大會為本公司與其

股東溝通的主要平台。本公司應按照上市規則

及時向股東提供在股東大會上提呈的決議案的

相關資料。所提供的資料應是合理所需的資

料，以便股東能夠就提呈的決議案作出知情決

定。於二零一六年五月二十六日舉行之股東週

年大會（「二零一六年股東週年大會」）上，主席

就各項獨立事宜（包括重選董事）提呈獨立決議

案。

於二零一六年股東週年大會上，執行董事、審

核委員會、薪酬委員會及提名委員會各自之主

席以及本公司核數師中匯安達會計師事務所有

限公司之代表均已出席回答股東之提問。截至

二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度內，本公司

共舉行一次股東大會。

股東召開股東特別大會的程序

開曼群島公司法（二零一二年修訂本）並無條文

允許股東於股東大會上提呈新決議案。然而，

股東須遵從本公司組織章程細則第58條細則，
即任何一位或以上於提請要求當日持有不少於

本公司繳足股本（賦予權利在本公司股東大會上

投票）十分之一的股東，可隨時向董事會或本公

司秘書發出書面要求，要求董事會召開股東特

別大會，以處理有關要求所指明的任何事項；

有關大會須於提請該要求後兩 (2)個月內舉行。
倘提請後二十一 (21)日內董事會未有召開有關
大會，則提請要求的人士可自行以相同方式召

開大會，而本公司須向提請要求的人士補償其

因董事會未有召開大會而產生的所有合理開支。
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PRoCeDURes FoR sHAReHoLDeRs to 
PRoPose A PeRson FoR eLeCtIon As A 
DIReCtoR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a 
Director of the Company are laid down under article 85 of the Company’s 
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the 
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible 
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless a 
notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for election 
as a Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be 
proposed for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at 
the meeting for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed 
by such person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged 
at the head office or at the Registration Office. The minimum length of 
the period during which such notices are given shall be at least seven 
(7) days and the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence 
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general 
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) 
days prior to the date of such general meeting. Detailed procedures for 
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director are available 
on the Company’s website.

PRoCeDURes FoR senDInG enQUIRIes to 
tHe BoARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the 
attention of the company secretary, by email: info@lsih.com.hk, or mail 
to Room 3006-10, 30/F., China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, 
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

InFoRMAtIon DIsCLosURe

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, 
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in 
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of 
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, 
truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well 
as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

ConCLUsIon

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure 
an effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests. The 
senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing 
and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and quality.

股東提名人選參選為董事的程序

有關股東提名人選參選為本公司董事的規定載

列於本公司組織章程細則第85條細則。除非獲
董事會推薦參選，否則任何人士（將於大會上退

任之董事除外）應無資格在任何股東大會上參選

董事職位，除非本公司總辦事處或註冊辦事處

收到一份由正式合資格出席大會並可於會上投

票的一名股東（被提名參選董事之人士除外）所

簽署，表明彼擬提名該人士參選為董事之書面

通知，及收到一份由該被提名人士所簽署，表

示其願意接受推選之書面通知。作出該等通知

的期間必須不少於七 (7)天，提交該等通知之期
間須由不早於指定進行該推選之股東大會通告

寄發翌日起計，及不遲於該股東大會舉行日期

前七 (7)天結束。股東提名人選參選為董事的程
序詳情於本公司網站刊載。

向董事會發出查詢的程序

股東可透過以下方式向本公司（註明公司秘書

為收件人）發出書面查詢：發電郵至 info@lsih.
com.hk，或郵寄至香港灣仔港灣道26號華潤大
廈30樓3006-10室。

資料披露

本公司遵從上市規則披露資料，及根據相關法

律及法規向公眾定期刊發報告及公佈。本公司

盡力確保及時披露資料，而有關資料為公正、

準確、真實及完整，務求使股東、投資者及公

眾能作出合理知情決定。

總結

本公司堅信良好的企業管治可保證資源之有效

分配及保障股東權益。高級管理層將繼續致力

維持、加強及提升本集團之企業管治水平及質

素。
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The Group hereby presents this Environmental, Social and Governance 
report (“ESG report”) for the year ended 31 December 2016, in order to 
comply with the requirements set forth in Appendix 27 Environmental, 
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide of the Rules Governing 
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 
(the “ESG Guide”). This covers the environmental and social performance 
of the core business of the Group in the PRC during 1 January 2016 to 
31 December 2016 (the “Year”).

The Board is responsible for our ESG strategy and reporting including 
evaluating and determining our ESG-related risks and ensuring that 
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control 
systems are in place. We have engaged to identify relevant ESG 
issues and to assess their materiality to our business as well as our 
stakeholders, through reviewing our Group’s operations and holding 
internal discussions. Our management has provided a confirmation to 
the Board on the effectiveness of our ESG risk management and internal 
control systems. Pursuant to the general disclosure requirements of the 
ESG Guide, disclosures relating to the material ESG issues identified 
have been included in this ESG Report which aims to provide a balanced 
representation of our Group’s ESG performance in the environmental 
and social areas, and covers our Group’s operations.

eMIssIons

Our Group is principally engaged in budget hotel operations and hence 
the emission relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges 
into the water and land, as well as generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste are minimal in the Year.

During the Year, the major greenhouse gases emissions of the Group 
were the greenhouse gases generated from the electricity consumed 
and the paper waste disposed at landfills. In order to minimize the 
energy consumed and paper waste, various sustainable development 
measures have been enforced to address environmental responsibilities 
within normal operating procedures, including but not limited to (i) 
compact fluorescent lamp were installed; (ii) staff were encouraged to 
switch off the electronic devices, lights and air-conditioners after the use 
of a room or leaving office for a period of time such as lunch hour; (iii) 
approximately 50 air-conditioners with low efficiency or malfunction were 
replaced in the Year 2016; (iv) refrigerators was kept away from sunlight; 
and (v) staff were encouraged to print only when necessary and use 
recycle papers for printing.

為符合香港聯合交易所有限公司證券上市規則

附錄二十七環境、社會及管治（「環境、社會及

管治」）報告指引（「環境、社會及管治指引」）

所載的規定，本集團謹此呈列截至二零一六年

十二月三十一日止年度之本環境、社會及管治

報告（「環境、社會及管治報告」）。本報告涵

蓋本集團於二零一六年一月一日至二零一六年

十二月三十一日期間（「本年度」）於中國核心業

務的環境及社會表現。

董事會負責我們的環境、社會及管治策略及報

告，包括評估及確定環境、社會及管治相關風

險，並確保已設有適當及有效的環境、社會及

管治風險管理及內部監控系統。我們致力透過

檢討本集團的營運及舉行內部討論，以識別相

關環境、社會及管治事宜及評估有關事宜對我

們的業務及持份者的重要性。管理層已對環

境、社會及管治風險管理及內部監控系統的有

效性向董事會作出確認。根據環境、社會及管

治指引的一般披露規定，有關已識別重大環

境、社會及管治事宜的披露事項已載入本環

境、社會及管治報告，旨在以平衡的原則呈列

本集團營運中的環境、社會及管治之表現。

排放物

本集團主要從事經濟型酒店經營，因此於本年

度，並無重大空氣排放物、溫室氣體排放、向

水及土地的排污以及產生有害及無害廢物。

於本年度，本集團的主要溫室氣體排放來自電

力消耗及堆填區棄置的廢紙。為盡量減少能源

消耗及廢紙，本集團已採取若干可持續發展措

施，在日常經營過程中承擔環境責任，包括但

不限於 (i)安裝節能燈；(ii)鼓勵員工在使用房間
後或離開辦公室一段時間（如午餐時段）時關閉

電子設備、燈源及空調；(iii)於二零一六年更換
約50台低效或出現故障的空調；(iv)冰箱遠離日
光放置；及 (v)鼓勵員工僅於必要時打印並使用
再生紙打印。
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No hazardous waste is generated from the operations of hotel business. 
Non-hazardous waste generated from the operations is mainly office 
and hotel room consumables. The hotel staff has promoted source 
separation of waste such as cartons and plastic bottles are placed 
in certain areas assigned to recycled suppliers for collection. For the 
hotel consumables such as cans and used plastic bottles of water, the 
employees are encouraged to separate for recycling activities.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant 
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to air and 
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, generation 
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the Group during the 
reporting period.

No significant fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance is 
incurred during the reporting period.

Use oF ResoURCes

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business 
activities on the environment, and supporting environmental protection 
programmes. In particular, a number of initiatives designed to conserve 
resources were introduced to promote employee awareness to achieve 
efficient utilisation of resources.

As mentioned in the above “Emission” section, the Group has a series 
of policies and procedures to minimise the electricity used by the 
employees. In order to increase the electricity consumption efficiency, 
approximately 50 new air-conditioners and a number of compact 
fluorescent lamp were installed in the Year, Solar water heaters and heat 
pumps have been installed to generate daily hot water supply in order to 
reduce gas or electricity consumption. In addition, shower sprinklers with 
low water pressure were installed in all bathroom rooms of the hotels to 
reduce water consumption and water intensity. 

As the Group is principally engaged in budget hotel operations, only 
minimal packing material was used in the Year. 

酒店業務經營並無產生任何有害廢物。經營產

生的無害廢物主要為辦公室及酒店客房的消耗

品。酒店員工推行廢物來源分類，如紙箱及塑

料瓶存放在分配予回收供應商的若干區域以便

回收。就易拉罐及已用飲用水塑料瓶等酒店消

耗品而言，鼓勵僱員進行分類以便回收再用。

於報告期間，本集團並無知悉任何有關本集團

的空氣及溫室氣體排放、向水及土地的排污以

及產生的有害及無害廢物產生重大影響的重大

違反法律及法規的事項。

於報告期間，並無因不合規情況而導致重大罰

款或非金錢制裁。

資源使用

本集團致力減低業務活動對環境的影響，以及

支持環境保護項目，並推出各種節約資源的措

施，提高員工對有效利用資源的意識。

誠如上文「排放物」一節所述，本集團設有多

項政策及程序以減少僱員用電量。為提高用電

能效，本年度共安裝約50台新空調及多盞節能
燈。我們亦已安裝太陽能熱水器及熱水泵，以

滿足日常熱水供應，減少燃氣及電力消耗。此

外，我們亦已於酒店的全部浴室安裝較低水壓

的淋浴噴頭，藉此減少水耗及水密度。

由於本集團主要從事經濟型酒店經營，於本年

度僅使用少量包裝材料。
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tHe enVIRonMent AnD nAtURAL ResoURCes

The 12th National People’s Congress adopted the Outline of the 13th 
Five-Year Plan for National Economic and Social Development of the 
People’s Republic of China (the “13th Five-Year Plan”) which emphasise 
“Green Development”, enhancing the construction of ecological 
civilisation of the PRC.

On 31 August 2016, approved by the State Council, the People’s 
Bank of China, Ministry of Finance, National Development and Reform 
Commission, Ministry of Environmental Protection, China Banking 
Regulatory Commission, China Securities Regulatory Commission, 
China Insurance Regulatory Commission jointly issued “Guidelines for 
Establishing the Green Financial System”.

The Group seeks to work toward environment best practice and the 
above green direction mentioned in 13th Five-Year Plan of PRC. This 
involves careful consideration of various sustainable development 
measures as mentioned in “Emission” section and green procurement 
within the value chain to minimise the environment impact in the hotel 
operations. In addition, green messages and practical tips for source 
separation of waste and enhancing the efficiency of hotel facilities are 
regularly circulated amongst the employees to achieve environmental 
sustainability. 

The impact on the environment and natural business from the hotel 
operations of the Group in PRC is minimal in the Year.

eMPLoYMent

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human 
capital and provides competitive remuneration and welfare packages. 
Promotion opportunities and salary adjustments are benchmarked 
against individual performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such 
as annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, funeral leave 
and medical coverage in accordance with local regulations.

The Group emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in respect 
of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion and other 
terms of employment. The Group is committed to providing a work 
environment free from any form of discrimination on the basis of ethnicity, 
gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation. 

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the employees 
with different genders, ages, skills, educational backgrounds, industry 
experiences and other qualifications in order to achieve the most suitable 
composition and balance.

環境及天然資源

第十二屆全國人民代表大會上通過的中華人民

共和國國民經濟和社會發展第十三個五年規劃

（「十三五規劃」）綱要重點強調要堅持「綠色發

展」，推進生態文明建設。

於二零一六年八月三十一日，經國務院批准，

中國人民銀行、財政部、國家發展和改革委員

會、環境保護部、中國銀行業監督管理委員

會、中國證券監督管理委員會、中國保險監督

管理委員會聯合印發了《關於構建綠色金融體系

的指導意見》。

本集團致力落實環保措施及實踐中國十三五規

劃所述綠色理念。此涉及審慎考慮「排放物」一

節中所述的多項可持續發展措施並作好價值鏈

內的綠色採購環節，從而降低酒店經營的環境

影響。此外，我們亦定期於僱員內部傳閱有關

廢物源頭分類處理及提高酒店設施能效的環保

資訊並教授實用技巧，以實現環境可持續性發

展。

本年度內，本集團於中國的酒店經營對環境及

自然造成的影響極為微弱。

僱傭

本集團高度重視發展人力資本並提供具競爭力

的薪酬及福利組合，且會根據員工個人表現提

供晉升機遇及作出薪資調整。僱員可根據當地

法規享有年假、病假、產假、婚假、喪假以及

醫療保險等多種福利。

本集團注重在招聘、薪酬比率、培訓及發展、

晉升及其他就業待遇方面為全體職員提供平等

機遇。本集團致力提供一個不存在種族、性

別、宗教、年齡、殘疾或性取向等任何歧視的

工作環境。

本集團文化架構多元，聘有不同性別、年齡、

技能、教育背景、行業經驗及其他質素的員

工，並就此達致最適合之結構和平衡。
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The Group has enhanced its employee handbook with effective from 
January 2015 which is applicable for all three leased-and-operated 
hotels of the Group. Such employee handbook is developed in 
accordance with the Labour Law and has distributed to all employees 
since they commenced working for the Group. 

The remuneration and position of the employees of the Group will 
be adjusted which are based on the appraisal of individual working 
performance and efficiency. Monthly, quarterly, semi-annually and 
annually bonus are based on the performance appraisal and operating 
results.

Treatment of employee’s misconduct must be fair and reasonable in 
all of the circumstances. Misconduct may lead to a warning, and more 
serious misconduct may lead to a dismissal. Any acts of misconduct are 
to be reported to the human resources and administration department. 
In Year 2016, no incident of serious misconduct was identified.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are made 
not less than the local government’s minimum requirements. The normal 
working hours for general employees are normally 8 hours a day and 40 
hours a week. Integrated computation of working hours is implemented 
with reference to the requirements of the Labour Law. 

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the 
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to 
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, 
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other 
benefits and welfare during the reporting period.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions 
identified during the reporting period.

HeALtH AnD sAFetY 

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and 
provides a healthy and safe workplace. All employees are strictly 
required to follow the operating procedures, which include but not 
limited to (i) pay attention to whether there is a dangerous work situation, 
if found, should immediately report to the superior; (ii) use both hands 
to handle the carts; (iii) use a ladder or chair to take items from a 
height or ask for colleagues to help; (iv) erase the slippery or oily work 
areas immediately in order to prevent slipping; (v) do not use damaged 
machines or appliances to avoid accidents; (vi) maintain a variety of tools 
and equipment safety; and (vii) strictly enforce the industry norms and 
profession operation. 

本集團已更新其員工手冊，該手冊自二零一五

年一月起生效，適用於本集團的全部三間租賃

經營酒店的全體僱員。該員工手冊乃根據勞動

法編製，並已於各員工入職本集團時向其作出

分派。

本集團僱員薪酬及狀況將根據個人工作表現及

效率評估進行調整。月度、季度、半年及年度

花紅乃基於表現評估及經營業績。

僱員如有不當行為，於所有情況下均須本著公

平合理的態度對待，一經發現，將給予警告，

情節嚴重的，將予以解僱。任何不當行為將上

報人力資源及行政部門。二零一六年，並無發

現情節嚴重的不當行為。

僱員薪資、加班工資及相關福利不得少於當地

政府的最低規定。一般僱員的正常工作時間通

常為每天8小時，每週40小時。工作時間乃經
參考勞動法規定綜合計算。

於報告期間，本集團並不知悉任何對報酬、解

聘、招聘及晉升、工作時間、休息時間、平等

機會、多元化、反歧視及其他利益及福利產生

重大影響的重大違反法律及法規的事項。

於報告期間，並無發現導致重大罰款或處罰的

法律不合規事項。

健康與安全

本集團採用非歧視僱傭常規並提供健康安全的

工作場所。所有僱員均須嚴格遵守經營程序，

包括但不限於(i)留意工作中是否存在危險情況，
一經發現，應立即向上級部門報告；(ii)雙手推
車；(iii)利用梯子或椅子從高處拿取物件或請求
同事幫助；(iv)即時清除濕滑或油膩工作區域，
防止滑倒；(v)禁止使用損壞機器或電器，避免
事故發生；(vi)維持各種工具及設備安全；及 (viii)
嚴格執行行業規範及專業操作。
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Smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the office. First aid, fire 
extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and escape exercises are regularly 
performed. Two fire drills were conducted in the Year in our Nanshan 
Hotel, of which the most recent one was conducted on 28 September 
2016. 

In July 2016, 深圳市南山區疾病預防控制中心 randomly selected 14 
rooms in Nanshan hotel to conduct testing of coliform, carbon dioxide, 
total bacteria, carbon monoxide and luminance. No irregularity was 
found as stated in the inspection report. 

For electrical works, the Group has employed electrical technicians who 
have valid licenses granted by relevant government officials. 

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant 
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to providing a 
safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational 
hazards on the Group during the reporting period.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions 
identified during the reporting period.

DeVeLoPMent AnD tRAInInG

The Group has committed to provide on-the-job education and training 
of its employees in order to enhance their knowledge and skills. All 
employees are encouraged to enhance their skills and knowledge at 
every opportunity in order to perform their current job more efficiently and 
effectively and to be better prepared for career opportunities which may 
arise. During the Year for our hotel operations, quarterly training courses 
were provided to the employees including but not limited to customer 
check-in and check-out procedures, room services techniques, 
disinfection techniques for hotel rooms, fire safety, handling customers’ 
complaints, handling of items left behind by customers. The employees 
participated actively in the training courses. For certain external training 
courses recommended by the Group, such fee of training courses 
are borne by the Group in accordance with the specific guidelines for 
reimbursement stated in the employee handbook.

For recreation activities, the Group often organizes a variety of 
physical and mental health or sports activities, such as various sports 
competitions, outdoor picnic and employees’ birthday party.

所有室內辦公區域禁止吸煙。定期安排急救、

消防、疏散、洩漏及逃生演習。本年度內，南

山店進行兩次消防操練，其中最近的一次是在

二零一六年九月二十八日。

於二零一六年七月，深圳市南山區疾病預防控

制中心隨機抽取南山店的14個房間進行大腸桿
菌、二氧化碳、細菌總數、一氧化碳及亮度測

試。檢驗報告中並無發現異常情況。

電氣工程方面，本集團已僱用電氣技術人員，

彼等均獲相關政府部門授予有效許可證。

於報告期間，本集團並不知悉對本集團提供安

全的工作環境及保障僱員免受職業危害產生重

大影響的重大違反法律及法規的事項。

於報告期間，並無發現導致重大罰款或處罰的

法律不合規事項。

發展及培訓

本集團承諾為其僱員提供在職教育及培訓，以

提高彼等的知識和技能。本集團鼓勵所有僱員

抓緊每一個機會提升技能及知識，以更有效及

高效執行當前的工作，及做好準備迎接職業機

遇。於本年度，為進行酒店營運，本集團向其

僱員提供季度培訓課程，包括但不限於客戶入

住和退房程序，客房服務技巧，酒店客房消毒

技術，消防安全，客戶投訴處理，客戶遺漏物

品處理等。僱員積極參與培訓課程。有關本集

團建議的若干外部培訓課程，該等培訓課程的

費用則由本集團根據僱員手冊中所述的具體補

償指引承擔。

娛樂活動方面，本集團經常組織各種身心健康

活動或體育活動，例如各種體育比賽，戶外野

餐及僱員生日會。



environmental, social and Governance Report
環境、社會及管治報告

44 朸濬國際集團控股有限公司
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

LABoUR stAnDARDs

The Group fully understand that the exploitation of child and forced 
labour are universally condemned, and therefore take the responsibility 
against child and forced labour very seriously. The Group comply with 
all laws and regulations against child labour and forced labour strictly for 
the three leased-and-operated hotels.

For entry registration, all employees must present valid documents and 
copies to the Group as follows: (i) identity card, academic proof such 
as diploma or degree certificate, title certificate, vocational qualification 
certificate, English grade certificate; (ii) social security card; (iii) medical 
or health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other relevant information 
and documents required by the Group. The above procedures can 
ensure no child labour will be employed in the hotel operations.

All Employees are entitled to have sick leave, injury leave and maternity 
leave with medical proof in accordance with the Labour Law. In addition, 
all employees work normally 8 hour daily and are not encouraged to 
work overtime. The compensation for overtime work is in accordance 
with the provisions of Labour Law.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant 
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to preventing 
child or forced labour on the Group during the reporting period.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions 
identified during the reporting period.

sUPPLY CHAIn MAnAGeMent

The Group has set up strict supply chain management system to ensure 
high quality of service to our hotel customers. Specific attentions have 
been paid to promote the health and safety consumables and services 
of all three hotels.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and implement the 
values of honesty, integrity and fairness in the supply chain management. 
When selecting suppliers, the Group takes into account factors such as 
quality of services and products, past performance and reputation of 
the suppliers. When dealing with suppliers of goods and services, the 
approval procedures are in place to ensure that supplier engagements 
are monitored and approved by the appropriate level of management. 
The Group expects major suppliers to observe the same environmental, 
social, health and safety and governance policies in their operating 
practices as those adopted by the Group.

勞工準則

本集團深知僱用童工及強制勞工嚴重違反普世

價值觀，因此竭力反對一切僱用童工及強制勞

工的行為。本集團的三間租賃經營酒店嚴格遵

守禁用童工及強制勞工的所有法律及法規。

為進行登記，所有僱員須向本集團提交以下有

效文件及副本：(i)身份證、文憑或學位證書等學
歷證明、職稱證書、職業資格證書、英語等級

證書；(ii)社會保險卡；(iii)醫療或健康證明；(iv)
近期相片；及 (v)本集團所需之其他相關資料及
文件。上述程序可確保在酒店營運不會僱用童

工。

根據「勞動法」，所有員工有權享有帶有醫療證

明的病假、工傷假及產假。此外，所有員工每

天正常工作8小時，不鼓勵加班。加班補償符合
「勞動法」的規定。

於報告期間，本集團概無知悉任何對本集團禁

用童工或強制勞工產生重大影響的重大違反法

律及法規的事項。

於報告期間，並無發現導致重大罰款或處罰的

法律不合規事項。

供應鏈管理

本集團已建立嚴格的供應鏈管理系統，確保向

酒店客戶提供高質量的服務，並特別注重加強

所有三間酒店的衛生及消耗品的安全性，並提

升服務質量。

在供應鏈管理方面，本集團秉持透明、誠實、

正直及公平的原則。本集團在甄選供應商時會

考慮多項因素，如服務及產品質素、過往表現

及供應商聲譽。本集團在採用貨品及服務供應

商時執行審批程序以確保供應商委聘受到適當

的管理層監控與審批。本集團要求主要供應商

於其經營常規中在環境、社會、健康、安全以

及企業管治方面採納與本集團一致的標準。
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The major suppliers for hotel operations are supply of bottles of water, 
washing of bed linings and pest control. For drinking water provided to 
customers, the Group places orders to acquire bottles of water for a 
well-known brand which has a series of green production procedures. 
For washing of bed linings, the Group requires the supplier to provide 
hygiene license and environmental protection certificate prior to place 
any orders. For pest control, the Group requires the supplier to use pest 
control materials or consumables which fulfil the required standards of 
local laws and regulations.

PRoDUCt ResPonsIBILItY

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in terms 
of our products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to ensure 
compliance with the laws and regulations relating to product health 
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions 
in which we operate. The Group requires its employees to comply 
with applicable governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and 
regulations.

The Group deal with lots of private and confidential information of its 
hotel customers. Hence, the Group has set up strict code of conduct 
requirements for their employees. In addition, the employees are required 
to maintain all reasonable methods to safeguard the information of the 
Group and the customers as stated in employee handbook and working 
practices. 

As mentioned above, smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of the 
operational hotels. First aid, fire extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and 
escape exercises are regularly performed. Daily hotel room cleaning 
services and regularly hygiene inspection are maintained from time 
to time. If a customer complains on initially assigned hotel room, the 
front line staff will arrange another hotel room until it is satisfied by the 
customer.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant 
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to health and 
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products 
and services provided and methods of redress on the Group during the 
reporting period.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions 
identified during the reporting period.

酒店營運的主要供應商為供應瓶裝水，洗滌床

套和蟲害防治。客戶飲用水供應方面，本集團

向知名品牌（擁有一系列綠色生產程序）下達訂

單採購瓶裝水。洗滌床套方面，本集團於下達

任何訂單前要求供應商提供衛生許可證和環境

保護證書。在蟲害防治方面，本集團要求供應

商使用符合本地法律法規要求的防蟲材料或消

耗品。

產品責任

確保顧客滿意我們的產品和服務是本集團的重

要宗旨。我們致力確保本集團在產品健康、安

全、廣告、標籤以及私隱權方面遵守我們經營

所在地的法律和法規。本集團亦要求員工遵守

相關的政府規定、法律、規則、守則及規例。

本集團業務接觸大量酒店客戶私密資料。因

此，本集團制定嚴格的員工行為守則。此外，

我們要求員工按照員工手冊及工作準則要求採

取一切合理方法對本集團及客戶資料保密。

誠如上文所述，酒店經營範圍內所有室內區域

嚴禁吸煙。急救、消防、疏散、洩漏及逃生演

練定期舉行。日常酒店客房清潔服務及常規衛

生檢查按部就班開展。如客戶對原先安排的客

房不滿意，當班人員會安排更換另一間客房，

直至客戶滿意。

於報告期間，本集團並不知悉在與我們提供的

產品及服務有關的健康與安全、廣告、標籤及

隱私事項以及補救方法方面，出現對本集團產

生重大影響的重大違反法律及法規的事項。

於報告期間，並無發現導致重大罰款或處罰的

法律不合規事項。
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AntI-CoRRUPtIon

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly prohibited. The 
Group’s anti-corruption policies set out standards of conduct to which 
all employees are required to adhere in order to promote the integrity 
environment in the workplace. Any employee is prohibited to give and 
accept of advantages, by using the excuse of work or the authority 
granted from the Group. The advantages include but not limited to 
money, gifts, loans, rewards, contracts, services and entertainment.

All employees are required to strictly follow the guidelines stated in the 
employee handbook, which include but not limited to (i) protection of 
customer information, business decision and private documents; (ii) 
report and contribute to the Group for any gifts, commission, rebate 
which have material value; (iii) prohibit to use the name or authority of 
the Group for personal benefit; and (iv) prohibit to negotiate business 
separately such as signing of contract, purchase of equipment or goods 
without obtain approval from relevant superiors.

The Group encourages the reporting of dishonest acts by the 
employees. The human resources department may terminate the 
employment contract with the employee who carries out dishonest 
acts. The content of the complaint should be clear to the fact that it is 
forbidden to fabricate the facts without any factual basis or vent their 
anger. The criteria for a valid complaint includes (i) the individual is 
unfairly treated which relevant superior handling of the problem is not fair, 
abuse of power or combat retaliation; and (ii) the behaviour of individual 
is damage to the interests of the Group. All employees can raise their 
complaint by putting a written letter into to a complaint box located at 
reception of the hotel, by mail to human resources department or even 
by verbal presentation.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant 
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to health and 
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products 
and services provided and methods of redress on the Group during the 
reporting period.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions 
identified during the reporting period.

反貪污

任何形式的腐敗、賄賂或舞弊行為一律嚴令禁

止。本集團的反貪污政策訂有明確行為準則，

並要求全體員工嚴格遵守，以營造公正的職場

環境。所有員工嚴禁利用工作便利或本集團授

予的權力提供或收受利益，包括但不限於現

金、禮品、貸款、獎勵、合約、服務及款待。

全體員工須嚴格遵守員工手冊規定的守則，包

括但不限於 (i)對客戶資料、商業決策及私密檔
案保密；(ii)將任何價值重大的禮品、佣金、返
利上報並交還本集團；(iii)禁止使用本集團名義
或權力謀取私利；及 (iv)禁止在未經上級批准的
情況下私下進行商業談判，例如簽訂合同、採

購設備或商品等。

本集團鼓勵舉報員工舞弊行為。人事部有權終

止行為不檢員工的僱傭合同。舉報內容應有理

有據，嚴禁憑空捏造事實或純粹發洩怨憤。有

效舉報應符合以下標準 (i)個人因有關上司處理
問題偏倚、濫用職權或報復而受到不公正對待；

及 (ii)個人行為損害本集團利益。所有員工可通
過向酒店前台的舉報信箱投遞書面函件、向人

事部寫信或口頭面陳等形式進行舉報。

於報告期間，本集團並不知悉在與我們提供的

產品及服務有關的健康與安全、廣告、標籤及

隱私事項以及補救方法方面，出現對本集團產

生重大影響的重大違反法律及法規的事項。

於報告期間，並無發現導致重大罰款或處罰的

法律不合規事項。
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CoMMUnItY InVestMent

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the communities in 
which it operates and maintains close communications and interactions 
with the communities in order to contribute to local development from 
time to time. 

As a global responsible citizen, the Group strives to improve the image 
and society responsibility through community investment. All employees 
of the Group are encouraged to participate their own initiatives on 
helping and supporting the local communities and neighbours.

社區投資

本集團努力尋求成為營運所處社區的正面力

量，並一直與社區維持密切溝通和互動，以不

時為當地發展作出貢獻。

作為負責任的全球性公民，本集團致力於透過

社區投資提升形象及社會責任感。本集團亦鼓

勵全體員工貢獻個人力量幫助及支援當地社區

及鄰居。
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to submit 
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements 
of the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the 
year ended 31 December 2016.

BUsIness ReVIeW

Details of business review are set out in the section of “Management 
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 17.

PRInCIPAL ACtIVItIes

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group 
is principally engaged in the budget hotel operations in the People’s 
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

seGMent InFoRMAtIon

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business 
segments is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

ResULts AnD DIVIDenDs

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set 
out in the consolidated financial statements on page 60 of this annual 
report. The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in 
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRoPeRtY, PLAnt AnD eQUIPMent

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group 
during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial 
statements.

PRoPeRtIes

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at 31 
December 2016.

sHARe CAPItAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year 
are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIstRIBUtABLe ReseRVes

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for 
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium account plus 
retained losses, amounted to approximately HK$20.5 million.

本公司董事（「董事」）欣然呈報其報告以及本公

司及其附屬公司（統稱「本集團」）截至二零一六

年十二月三十一日止年度的經審核綜合財務報

表。

業務回顧

業務回顧的詳情載於第8至17頁之「管理層討
論及分析」一節。

主要業務

本公司之主要業務為投資控股。本集團主要於

中華人民共和國（「中國」）從事經營經濟酒店業

務。

分部資料

本集團年內按業務分部劃分之業績分析載於綜

合財務報表附註7。

業績及股息

本集團截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度

的業績載於本年報第60頁之綜合財務報表。董
事不建議派付截至二零一六年十二月三十一日

止年度之任何股息。

物業、廠房及設備

本集團之物業、廠房及設備於本年度的變動詳

情載於綜合財務報表附註16。

物業

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團並無任

何主要物業或物業權益。

股本

本公司股本於本年度的變動詳情載於綜合財務

報表附註24。

可供分派儲備

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本公司可供分

派予股東之儲備包括股份溢價賬加保留虧損，

約為20.5百萬港元。
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ReseRVes

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group 
during the year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial 
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in the equity 
on page 63 respectively.

PRe-eMPtIVe RIGHts

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s 
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would 
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing 
shareholders.

MAJoR CUstoMeRs AnD sUPPLIeRs

The diversity and nature of the Group’s activities are such that the 
percentage of sales attributes to the Group’s five largest customers 
contributed approximately 36.2% of the total and the Directors do not 
consider any one customer to be influential to the Group.

The main suppliers of the Group comprise of suppliers of disposable 
amenities, bed linings cleaning, laundry services, supply of bottles of 
water and pest control. For the financial year ended 31 December 
2016, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted 
for approximately 78.0% (2015: 83.2%) of the total purchases and 
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 30.3% 
(2015: 31.1%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the 
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more 
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the 
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2016.

BAnK LoAns AnD otHeR BoRRoWInGs

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans as at 31 December 
2016 (2015: Nil).

InteRest CAPItALIsAtIon

The Group had HK$95,973 capitalised interest during the year ended 31 
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

GRoUP FInAnCIAL sUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December 
2016 is set out on page 120 of this annual report.

儲備

本公司及本集團之儲備於本年度的變動詳情分

別載於綜合財務報表附註27及第63頁之綜合權
益變動表。

優先購買權

本公司組織章程細則或開曼群島法例並無有關

優先購買權的條文，規定本公司須按比例向現

有股東提呈發售新股。

主要客戶及供應商

由於本集團業務多元化及其性質關係，本集團

五大客戶佔本集團銷售的比率約為36.2%。董
事認為，並無任何單一客戶對本集團有重要影

響。

本集團主要的供應商包括提供一次性消耗品、

床套清潔、洗衣服務以及供應瓶裝水及進行

蟲害防治的供應商。截至二零一六年十二月

三十一日止財政年度，本集團五大供應商合共

佔採購總額約78.0%（二零一五年：83.2%），
而向最大供應商的採購則佔採購總額約30.3%
（二零一五年：31.1%）。

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止財政年度，

概無董事、彼等之聯繫人或任何本公司股東（據

董事所深知，擁有本公司已發行股本5%以上
者）於本集團的五大客戶及供應商擁有任何權

益。

銀行借貸及其他借款

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團並無任

何未償還銀行借貸（二零一五年：無）。

利息資本化

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度，本集

團擁有資本化利息95,973港元（二零一五年：
無）。

本集團財務概要

本集團截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度

的業績概要載於本年報第120頁。
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DIReCtoRs

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this 
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Huang Yun
Mr. Dai Lifeng (Appointed on 12 April 2016)
Mr. Wu Li Xin (Appointed on 11 November 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lu Zefeng (Appointed on 15 December 2016)
Mr. Law Fei Shing (Re-designated from Executive Director 
 on 12 April 2016 and resigned on 
 15 December 2016)
Mr. Chung Wai Man (Appointed on 13 February 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Appointed on 9 March 2017)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Appointed on 1 November 2016)
Mr. Chung Wai Man (Resigned on 1 November 2016)
Mr. Leung Siu Hong (Resigned on 9 March 2017)

Mr. Law Fei Shing was re-designated from an executive Director to a 
non-executive Director on 12 April 2016. He further resigned as an non-
executive Director on 15 December 2016. On 1 November 2016, Mr. 
Chung Wai Man was re-designated from an independent non-executive 
Director to the chief financial officer of the Company; he was further re-
designated to a non-executive Director on 13 February 2017. Mr. Leung 
Siu Hong resigned from an independent non-executive Director on 9 
March 2017. Mr. Law Fei Shing and Mr. Leung Siu Hong have confirmed 
that they have no disagreement with the Board and they are not aware 
of any matter regarding their resignation that need to be brought to the 
attention of the shareholders of the Company. The Board would like to 
express its sincere gratitude to Mr. Law Fei Shing and Mr. Leung Siu 
Hong for their valuable contributions to the Company during their tenure 
of office.

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation 
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIReCtoRs’ AnD senIoR MAnAGeMent’s 
BIoGRAPHIes

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior 
management of the Group are set out from pages 18 to 23 of this annual 
report.

董事

於本年度直至本報告日期，本公司之董事如下：

執行董事：

黃雲先生

戴立峰先生（於二零一六年四月十二日獲委任）

吳立新先生（於二零一六年十一月十一日獲委任）

非執行董事：

陸澤峰先生（於二零一六年十二月十五日獲委任）

羅輝城先生（於二零一六年四月十二日由執行

 董事調任並於二零一六年十二月十五日辭任）
鍾偉文先生（於二零一七年二月十三日獲委任）

獨立非執行董事：

鄭濟富先生（於二零一七年三月九日獲委任）

曹漢璽先生

黃耀傑先生（於二零一六年十一月一日獲委任）

鍾偉文先生（於二零一六年十一月一日辭任）

梁兆康先生（於二零一七年三月九日辭任）

羅輝城先生於二零一六年四月十二日由執行董

事調任為非執行董事。於二零一六年十二月

十五日彼進一步辭任非執行董事。於二零一六

年十一月一日，鍾偉文先生由獨立非執行董事

調任為本公司首席財務官；於二零一七年二月

十三日彼進一步調任為非執行董事。梁兆康先

生於二零一七年三月九日辭任獨立非執行董

事。羅輝城先生及梁兆康先生已確認彼等與董

事會並無意見分歧，彼等亦不知悉有關彼等辭

任的任何事項需提請本公司股東垂注。董事會

謹此衷心感謝羅輝城先生及梁兆康先生於任職

期間對本公司作出之寶貴貢獻。

各董事須根據本公司組織章程細則輪席退任。

董事及高級管理層之履歷

本公司董事及本集團高級管理層之履歷詳情載

於本年報第18至23頁。
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DIReCtoRs’ seRVICe ContRACts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2016 AGM 
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable 
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory 
compensation.

teRMs oF oFFICe FoR tHe InDePenDent 
non-eXeCUtIVe DIReCtoRs

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a 
specific term of one year to three years, but subject to the relevant 
provisions of the Articles of Associations or any other applicable laws 
whereby the directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

eMoLUMents oF DIReCtoRs AnD FIVe 
HIGHest PAID InDIVIDUALs

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the 
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 9 to the 
consolidated financial statements, respectively. Remuneration packages 
of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and 
approved by the Board.

DIReCtoRs AnD ContRoLLInG 
sHAReHoLDeR’s InteRests In ContRACts 
oF sIGnIFICAnCe

No Director or controlling shareholder of the company had a material 
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the 
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries 
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIReCtoRs’ AnD CHIeF eXeCUtIVe’s 
InteRest AnD sHoRt PosItIons In sHARes, 
UnDeRLYInG sHARes AnD DeBentURes oF 
tHe CoMPAnY

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or chief executive of 
the Company or their associates had any interests and short positions 
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any 
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities 
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the 
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part 
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which each of them 
has taken or deemed to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or 
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered 
into the register referred to therein; or which were required, pursuant to 
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the 
Stock Exchange.

董事之服務合約

本公司概無與任何擬於二零一六年股東週年大

會上膺選連任之董事訂立不可於一年內終止而

毋須作出賠償（法定賠償除外）之服務合約。

獨立非執行董事之任期

所有獨立非執行董事之指定任期為一至三年，

惟董事的離任或退任須受組織章程細則或任何

其他適用法例的有關條文所規限。

董事薪酬及五名最高薪酬人士

本公司董事之薪酬及本集團五名最高薪酬人士

之詳情乃分別載於綜合財務報表附註9。董事之
薪酬方案由薪酬委員會提出並由董事會審批。

董事及控股股東於重大合約之權益

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度內，

本公司董事或控股股東概無於本公司或其任何

附屬公司所訂立之任何有關本集團業務之重大

合約中直接或間接擁有重大權益。

董事及主要行政人員於本公司股
份、相關股份及債權證之權益及淡
倉

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，概無董事或本

公司主要行政人員或其聯繫人於本公司或任何

相聯法團（定義見證券及期貨條例（「證券及期貨

條例」）第XV部）的任何股份、相關股份或債權
證內擁有根據證券及期貨條例第XV部第7及第
8分部須知會本公司及聯交所的任何權益及淡倉
（包括根據證券及期貨條例的條文彼等被當作或

被視作擁有的權益或淡倉）；或根據證券及期貨

條例第352條須記錄於該條所述的登記冊的任
何權益及淡倉；或根據上市規則附錄十須知會

本公司及聯交所的任何權益及淡倉。
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sUBstAntIAL sHAReHoLDeRs’ AnD otHeR 
PeRsons’ InteRests AnD sHoRt PosItIons 
In sHARes, UnDeRLYInG sHARes AnD 
DeBentURes oF tHe CoMPAnY

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the Directors, the 
following persons, (not being Directors or chief executive of the 
Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short position in 
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the 
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the 
SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the 
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all 
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

   Percentage of
name Capacity number of shares shareholding
姓名 身份 股份數目 股權百分比

China Medical Overseas Limited  Beneficial owner 201,503,082 51.20%
 (formerly known as China Angel  實益擁有人
 Investments Holding Limited) 
 (Note 1) 
中華醫學海外有限公司（前稱
 中國天使投資控股有限公司）
 （附註1）

Ding Yifan (Note 1) Interest in a controlled  201,503,082 51.20%
  corporation
丁一凡（附註1） 於受控制法團之權益

Central China  Person having a security  201,503,082 51.20%
 International Investment   interest in Shares
 Company Limited (Note 2)
中州國際投資有限公司（附註2） 於股份擁有保證權益之人士

Central China Securities Co. Ltd. Interest in a controlled  201,503,082 51.20%
 (Note 2)  corporation
中原證券股份有限公司（附註2） 於受控制法團之權益

Central China International Financial  Interest in a controlled  201,503,082 51.20%
 Holdings Company Limited   corporation
 (Note 2)
中州國際金融控股有限公司 於受控制法團之權益
 （附註2）

Lyu Na (Note 3) Interest of spouse 201,503,082 51.20%
呂娜（附註3） 配偶權益

Sheng Yuan Asset  Investment manager 53,978,494 13.72%
 Management Limited (Note 4)
盛源資產管理有限公司（附註4） 投資經理

Kwan Man Cheuk Beneficial owner 31,556,071 8.02%
關文焯 實益擁有人

主要股東及其他人士於本公司股
份、相關股份及債權證之權益及淡
倉

就董事所知，於二零一六年十二月三十一日，

以下人士（並非本公司董事或主要行政人員）於

股份或相關股份中擁有及被視為擁有根據證券

及期貨條例第XV部第2及第3分部條文須向本
公司披露的權益或淡倉；或彼等直接或間接在

附有可在任何情況下於本集團任何成員公司的

股東大會上投票的權利的任何類別股本的面值

中擁有5%或以上的權益。
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Note 1: China Medical Overseas Limited is owned by Mr. Ding Yifan and Mr. 
Huang Yun as to 90% and 10% equity interest respectively. Mr. Ding Yifan 
was therefore deemed to be interested in the 201,503,082 shares which 
China Medical Overseas Limited is interested (within the meaning of Part 
XV of the SFO).

Note 2: As at 31 December 2016, the 201,503,082 shares were subject to a 
share charge executed by China Medical Overseas Limited (as charger) 
in favour of Central China International Investment Company Limited (as 
chargee).

Note 3: Lyu Na, spouse of Mr. Ding Yifan, was deemed to be interested in the 
201,503,082 shares in which Mr. Ding Yifan is interested (within the 
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Note 4: As at 14 June 2016, Sheng Yuan Asset Management Limited being an 
investment manager subscribed for certain interests in the Bonds which 
are convertible to 53,978,494 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors were 
not aware of any person (other than the Directors as disclosed in the 
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interest and Short 
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company” 
above) who had, or deemed to have, interests or short positions in the 
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would 
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly interested 
in 5 % or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying 
rights to vote in all circumstance at general meetings of any member of 
the Group.

DIReCtoRs’ InteRests In A CoMPetInG 
BUsIness

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report, 
the Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, 
the management of the Company and their respective associates (as 
defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the 
business of the Group and any other conflict of interest which any such 
person has or may have with the Group.

DIReCtoRs’ InteRests In ContRACts

There is no contract of significance to which the Company or any of its 
subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any 
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a material 
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or 
at any time during the year.

附註1：中華醫學海外有限公司由丁一凡先生及黃雲
先生分別擁有90%及10%股權。因此，丁
一凡先生被視為於中華醫學海外有限公司擁

有權益之201,503,082股股份中擁有權益（定
義見證券及期貨條例第XV部）。

附註2：在二零一六年十二月三十一日，該等
201,503,082股股份被中華醫學海外有限公
司（質押人）質押予中州國際投資有限公司

（承押人）。

附註3：根據證券及期貨條例，丁一凡先生的配
偶呂娜被視為於丁一凡先生擁有權益的

201,503,082股股份中擁有權益（定義見證
券及期貨條例第XV部）。

附註4：於二零一六年六月十四日，投資經理盛
源資產管理有限公司認購若干可轉換成

53,978,494股本公司股份的債券權益。

除上文所披露者外，就董事所知，於二零一六

年十二月三十一日，概無任何人士（上文「董事

及主要行政人員於本公司股份、相關股份及債

權證之權益及淡倉」一段所披露的董事除外）於

本公司股份、相關股份或債權證中擁有或被視

為擁有根據證券及期貨條例第XV部第2及第3
分部條文須向本公司披露的權益或淡倉，或直

接或間接擁有附有可在任何情況下於本集團任

何成員公司的股東大會上投票的權利的任何類

別股本的面值5%或以上的權益。

董事於競爭業務之權益

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度直至本

報告日期，董事概不知悉董事、本公司管理層

及彼等各自的聯繫人（定義見上市規則）之任何

業務或權益與本集團的業務出現或可能出現競

爭，亦不知悉任何該等人士已經或可能與本集

團出現任何其他利益衝突。

董事於合約中的權益

於年終或年內任何時間，並無存在本公司或其

任何附屬公司及本公司或其任何附屬公司之控

股股東為訂約方且董事直接或間接擁有重大權

益之重大合約。
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ARRAnGeMents to PURCHAse sHARes oR 
DeBentURes

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a 
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by 
means of the acquisitions of shares or debentures of, the Company or 
any other body corporates.

ReLAteD PARtY tRAnsACtIon

Details of related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 
31 December 2016 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial 
statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 
31 to the consolidated financial statements constitutes a connected 
transaction or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of 
the Listing Rules.

MAnAGeMent ContRACts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the 
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were 
entered into or existed during the year under reviewed.

ConneCteD tRAnsACtIons

There were no connected transactions or continuing connected 
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules 
which are subject to the reporting, announcement or independent 
shareholders’ approval.

sHARe oPtIon sCHeMe

The Company had a share option scheme (“Scheme”) which was 
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder passed on 22 
June 2011 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on 22 June 2011. 
The purpose of the Scheme was to attract, retain and motivate talented 
participants to strive for future developments and expansion of the 
Group. The Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the participants 
to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group and allow the 
participants to enjoy the results of the Company attained through their 
efforts and contributions.

The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise 
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the 
adoption of the Scheme, the principal terms of which were summarized 
in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the 
Company’s prospectus dated 30 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”).

購買股份或債權證的安排

本公司或其任何附屬公司於年內任何時間概無

訂立任何安排，以使董事可透過收購本公司或

任何其他法團之股份或債權證而獲益。

關連方交易

有關本集團截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止

年度之關連方交易詳情載於綜合財務報表附註

31。概無於綜合財務報表附註31披露之關連方
交易構成上市規則第14A章項下之關連交易或
持續關連交易。

管理合約

於回顧年度內，本公司概無訂立或訂有任何有

關管理與經營本公司全部或任何重大部分業務

之合約。

關連交易

本公司概無上市規則第14A章下須遵循申報、
公告或獨立股東批准規定之關連交易或持續關

連交易。

購股權計劃

本公司設有一項根據唯一股東於二零一一年六

月二十二日通過的決議案而採納及董事會於二

零一一年六月二十二日透過決議案而採納之購

股權計劃（「該計劃」）。該計劃的目的是吸引、

挽留及激勵有能力的參與者，為本集團的未來

發展及擴展而奮鬥。該計劃可作為鼓勵參與者

為達成本集團的目標而作出其最佳表現之獎

勵，讓參與者分享本公司因其努力及貢獻而取

得的成果。

該計劃由二零一一年六月二十二日起生效，除

非取消或修訂，否則該計劃將由採納日期起計

十年內有效。該計劃的主要條款概要載於本公

司日期為二零一一年六月三十日的招股章程

（「招股章程」）附錄五「購股權計劃」一段內。
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Company 
has not granted any share option under the Scheme. No share option 
under this Scheme remains unexercised as at 31 December 2016 (31 
December 2015: Nil).

PensIon sCHeMes

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had no forfeited contributions 
available to redeem its contributions to the pension scheme in future 
years (2015: nil).

AUDItoR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 have 
been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI”) and 
a resolution for the reappointment as auditors of the Company will be 
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting. ZHONGHUI has 
been the auditor of the Company since 4 November 2014.

PUBLICAtIon oF InFoRMAtIon on WeBsItes

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock 
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at 
www.legend-strategy.com.

By Order of the Board

Huang Yun
Executive Director

30 March 2017

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止財政年

度，本公司並無根據計劃授出任何購股權。於

二零一六年十二月三十一日，該計劃項下概無

尚未行使之購股權（二零一五年十二月三十一

日：無）。

退休計劃

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團概無

沒收可供未來數年贖回的退休計劃供款（二零

一五年：無）。

核數師

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度之財務

報表已由中匯安達會計師事務所有限公司（「中

匯」）所審核，而本公司將於應屆股東週年大

會上提呈重新委任中匯為本公司核數師的決議

案。自二零一四年十一月四日以來，中匯一直

為本公司核數師。

於網站刊發資料

本年報可於聯交所網站www.hkex.com.hk及本
公司網站www.legend-strategy.com瀏覽。

承董事會命

黃雲
執行董事

二零一七年三月三十日
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to tHe sHAReHoLDeRs oF
LeGenD stRAteGY InteRnAtIonAL HoLDInGs GRoUP 
CoMPAnY LIMIteD
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

oPInIon

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend 
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) 
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on 
pages 60 to 119, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement 
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the 
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) 
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure 
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BAsIs FoR oPInIon

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on 
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MAteRIAL UnCeRtAIntY ReLAteD to GoInG 
ConCeRn

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements 
which states that the Group incurred a loss of HK$98,289,233 for the 
year ended 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s 

致朸濬國際集團控股有限公司股東
（於開曼群島註冊成立之有限公司）

意見

我們已審核載於第60頁至119頁的朸濬國際集
團控股有限公司（「貴公司」）及其附屬公司（「貴

集團」）的綜合財務報表，此綜合財務報表包括

於二零一六年十二月三十一日的綜合財務狀況

表與截至該日止年度的綜合損益及其他全面收

益表、綜合權益變動報表及綜合現金流量表以

及綜合財務報表附註（包括主要會計政策概要）。

我們認為，綜合財務報表已根據香港會計師公

會（「香港會計師公會」）頒佈之香港財務報告

準則（「香港財務報告準則」）真實及公平地提 
供　貴集團於二零一六年十二月三十一日之綜

合財務狀況及其截至該日止年度的綜合財務表

現及綜合現金流量，並已根據香港《公司條例》

之披露規定妥為編製。

意見基礎

我們已根據香港會計師公會頒佈的香港核數準

則（「香港核數準則」）進行審核。在這些準則

下，我們的責任會在我們報告中核數師就審核

綜合財務報表須承擔的責任一節中進一步闡

述。根據香港會計師公會之職業會計師道德守

則（「守則」），我們獨立於　貴集團，並已遵循

守則履行其他道德責任。我們相信，我們所獲

得的審核憑證是充足和適當地為我們的審核意

見提供基礎。

與持續經營相關的重大不確定因素 

請注意綜合財務報表附註2中，顯示　貴集團
於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度錄得

98,289,233港元的虧損。於二零一六年十二
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net current liabilities and cash and cash equivalents balance were 
HK$33,201,249 and HK$10,100,000 respectively. These conditions 
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant 
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our 
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KeY AUDIt MAtteRs

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, 
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described 
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report.

Property, plant and equipment and prepayment for 
enhancements for the PRC budget hotels (the “Prepayment”)

Refer to Note 16 and Note 17(a) to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and equipment and the 
Prepayment for impairment. This impairment test is significant to our 
audit because the balance of property, plant and equipment and the 
Prepayment of HK$9,167,109 and HK$7,180,044 respectively as at 31 
December 2016 is material to the consolidated financial statements. In 
addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement 
and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the identification of the related cash generating units;

— Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use 
calculations;

— Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow projections;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including 
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and discount 
rates); and

— Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant and 
equipment and the Prepayment are supported by the available evidence.

月三十一日，　貴集團的淨流動負債及現金

及現金等價物結餘分別為33,201,249港元及
10,100,000港元。此等情況反映存在重大不確
定因素，而可能對　貴集團的持續經營能力構

成重大疑問。我們的意見並無就此事項作出修

訂。

關鍵審核事項

根據我們的專業判斷，關鍵審核事項為我們審

核本期間綜合財務報表中最重要的事項。我們

在審核整體綜合財務報表和就此形成意見時處

理此等事項，而不會就此等事項單獨發表意

見。除上述「與持續經營相關的重大不確定因

素」部分中提及的事項外，我們認為下列事項為

報告中溝通的關鍵審核事項。

物業、廠房及設備以及就優化中國經濟型
酒店而支付之預付款項（「預付款項」）

請見綜合財務報表附註16及附註17(a)

貴集團就物業、廠房及設備以及預付款項金額

進行減值測試。由於物業、廠房及設備以及預

付款項於二零一六年十二月三十一日之結餘分

別9,167,109港元及7,180,044港元對綜合財務
報表而言屬重大，因此有關減值測試對我們的

審核非常重要。此外，　貴集團之減值測試涉

及應用基於假設及估計之判斷。

我們的審核程序包括（其中包括）：

— 評估相關現金產生單位之識別；

— 評估使用價值計算之算數準確性；

— 將實際現金流量與現金流量預測進行對

比；

— 評估主要假設（包括收益增長、利潤率、

終端增長率及貼現率）之合理性；及

— 檢查支持憑證的輸入數據。

我們認為，　貴集團為物業、廠房及設備以及

預付款項所作之減值測試已由可得憑證支持。
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Deposits paid for proposed acquisition (the “Deposits”)

Refer to Note 17(c) to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of Deposits for impairment. This 
impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance of the 
Deposits of HK$23,988,000 as at 31 December 2016 is material to the 
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment 
test involves application of judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

— Assessing aging of the Deposits;

— Obtaining confirmation from the payee in respect of the amount 
and refundability of the deposits; and

— Discussing the current status of the proposed acquisition with the 
Group.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for the Deposits are 
supported by the available evidence.

otHeR InFoRMAtIon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual 
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

ResPonsIBILItIes oF DIReCtoRs FoR tHe 
ConsoLIDAteD FInAnCIAL stAteMents

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of 

就建議收購支付之按金（「按金」）

請見綜合財務報表附註17(c)

貴集團就按金金額進行減值測試。由於按金於

二零一六年十二月三十一日之結餘23,988,000
港元對綜合財務報表而言屬重大，因此有關減

值測試對我們的審核非常重要。此外，　貴集

團之減值測試涉及應用基於估計之判斷。

我們的審核程序包括（其中包括）：

— 評估　貴集團所作之減值評估；

— 評估按金賬齡；

— 就按金金額及可回收性自取款人獲得確

認；及

— 與　貴集團就建議收購之現狀進行討論。

我們認為， 貴集團就按金之減值測試有可得的
證券支持。

其他資料

董事須對其他資料承擔責任。其他資料包 
括　貴公司年報中所包含的全部資料，但不包

括綜合財務報表及我們就此發出的核數師報告。

我們對綜合財務報表作出的意見並未考慮其他

資料。我們不對其他資料發表任何形式的核證

結論。

就審核綜合財務報表而言，我們的責任是閱讀

其他資料，從而考慮其他資料是否與綜合財務

報表或我們在審核過程中獲悉的資料存在重大

不符，或似乎存在重大錯誤陳述。倘若我們基

於已完成的工作認為其他資料出現重大錯誤陳

述，我們須報告此一事實。我們就此並無須報

告事項。

董事就綜合財務報表須承擔的責任

董事須負責根據香港會計師公會頒佈的香港財

務報告準則及香港《公司條例》的披露規定編製

綜合財務報表，以令綜合財務報表作出真實而
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the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control 
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are 
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

AUDItoR’s ResPonsIBILItIes FoR tHe 
AUDIt oF tHe ConsoLIDAteD FInAnCIAL 
stAteMents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, 
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility 
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this 
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s website at:
http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/
auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHonGHUI AnDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
ng Ka Lok
Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P06084
Hong Kong, 30 March 2017

公平的反映，及落實其認為編製綜合財務報表

所必要的內部控制，以使綜合財務報表不存在

由於欺詐或錯誤而導致的重大錯誤陳述。

在編製綜合財務報表時，董事須負責評估　貴

集團持續經營的能力，並披露與持續經營有關

的事項（如適用）。除非董事有意將　貴集團清

盤或停止營運，或除此之外並無其他實際可行

的辦法，否則董事須採用以持續經營為基礎的

會計法。

核數師就審核綜合財務報表須承擔
的責任

我們的目標是對整體綜合財務報表是否不存在

由於欺詐或錯誤而導致的重大錯誤陳述取得合

理保證，並出具包括我們意見的核數師報告。

我們的報告僅向　閣下（作為整體）編製，而並

不可作其他目的。我們概不就本報告的內容對

其他任何人士負責或承擔責任。合理確定屬高

層次的核證，但不能擔保根據香港核數準則進

行的審核工作總能發現所有存在的重大錯誤陳

述。重大錯誤陳述可源於欺詐或錯誤，倘個別

或整體在合理預期情況下可影響使用者根據綜

合財務報表作出的經濟決定時，被視為重大錯

誤陳述。

有關審核綜合財務報表之責任的進一步描述載

於香港會計師公會網頁：

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-
regulations/standards/auditing-assurance/
auditre/

該描述構成本核數師報告之一部分。

中匯安達會計師事務所有限公司
執業會計師

吳家樂
審計工作主任

執業牌照號碼P06084
香港，二零一七年三月三十日
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Consolidated statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
綜合損益及其他全面收入表
For the year ended 31 December 2016 截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度

   2016 2015
   二零一六年 二零一五年

  Notes HK$ HK$
  附註 港元 港元

Revenue 收益 7 17,654,630 19,884,379
Operating lease expenses 營運租賃開支  (11,832,887) (17,057,985)
Depreciation of property,  物業、廠房及設備折舊

 plant and equipment   (4,211,016) (4,691,183)
Amortisation of other asset 其他資產攤銷  (480,000) —
Employee benefit expenses 僱員福利開支 8 (21,591,413) (14,050,367)
Utilities 公用設施  (1,317,288) (2,063,031)
Other operating expenses 其他營運開支 13 (14,997,529) (31,029,375)
Impairment of property,  物業、廠房及設備減值

 plant and equipment   (597,891) —
Impairment of other receivables 其他應收款項減值  (18,700,000) —
Written off of prepaid  撇銷預付經營租賃

 operating lease   (8,931,190) (618,338)
Written off of prepayments 撤銷預付款項  (1,100,000) (23,864,028)
Written off of property,  撤銷物業、廠房及設備

 plant and equipment   (29,379,804) (41,509,239)
Other income 其他收入 10 1,051,863 725,051

operating loss 營運虧損  (94,432,525) (114,274,116)

Finance costs 融資成本 11 (6,057,522) (187,296)
Written off of amounts due  撇銷應收合資公司款項

 from joint ventures   — (2,112,528)
Share of results of joint ventures 分佔合資公司之業績  — (6,831,600)

Loss before tax 除稅前虧損  (100,490,047) (123,405,540)
Income tax credit/(expenses) 所得稅抵免╱（開支） 12 2,200,814 (430,064)

Loss for the year attributable  本公司擁有人應佔本年度虧損
 to owners of the Company  13 (98,289,233) (123,835,604)

other comprehensive loss: 其他全面虧損：
Items that may be reclassified  可能重新分類至損益之項目：
 to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on  換算海外業務產生之匯兌差額

 translating foreign operations   (553,027) (771,282)

total comprehensive loss  本公司擁有人應佔本年度
 for the year attributable  全面虧損總額
 to owners of the Company   (98,842,260) (124,606,886)

Loss per share 每股虧損 15
 — Basic (Hong Kong cents)  — 基本（港仙）  (24.98) (35.41)
 — Diluted (Hong Kong cents)  — 攤薄（港仙）  (24.98) (35.41)
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Consolidated statement of Financial Position
綜合財務狀況表
As at 31 December 2016 於二零一六年十二月三十一日

   2016 2015
   二零一六年 二零一五年

  Notes HK$ HK$
  附註 港元 港元

non-current assets 非流動資產
Property, plant and equipment 物業、廠房及設備 16 9,167,109 42,078,650
Deposits 按金 17 23,988,000 —
Rental deposits 租賃按金 17 3,241,518 3,493,002
Prepaid operating leases 預付經營租賃 17 — 8,406,356
Prepayment and other receivables 預付款項及其他應收款項 17 7,180,044 2,000,000
Other asset 其他資產 18 2,400,000 1,440,000
Deferred income tax assets 遞延所得稅資產 19 3,187,371 1,186,137

   49,164,042 58,604,145

Current assets 流動資產
Trade receivables 應收賬款 20 64,555 262,600
Prepayments, deposits and  預付款項、按金及其他應收款項

 other receivables  17 21,762,008 19,180,638
Bank and cash balances 銀行及現金結餘  10,100,000 47,612,022

   31,926,563 67,055,260

Current liabilities 流動負債
Convertible bonds 可換股債券 21 53,152,913 —
Trade and other payables 應付賬款及其他應付款項 22 9,796,604 12,966,339
Current income tax liabilities 當期所得稅負債  1,518,650 1,366,219
Provision for asset retirement 報廢資產復原撥備 23 659,645 —

   65,127,812 14,332,558

net current (liabilities)/assets 淨流動（負債）╱資產  (33,201,249) 52,722,702

total assets less current  資產總值減流動負債
 liabilities   15,962,793 111,326,847
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Consolidated statement of Financial Position
綜合財務狀況表
As at 31 December 2016 於二零一六年十二月三十一日

   2016 2015
   二零一六年 二零一五年

  Notes HK$ HK$
  附註 港元 港元

non-current liability 非流動負債
Provision for asset retirement 報廢資產復原撥備 23 3,135,871 3,959,157

net assets 資產淨值  12,826,922 107,367,690

eQUItY 權益
Capital and reserves  本公司擁有人
 attributable to the owners   應佔資本及儲備
 of the Company
Share capital 股本 24 3,935,250 3,935,250
Reserves 儲備  8,891,672 103,432,440

total equity 權益總額  12,826,922 107,367,690

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 119 were 
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 
2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

 Huang Yun Dai Lifeng
 黃雲 戴立峰
 Director Director
 董事 董事

 Wu Li Xin
 吳立新
 Director
 董事

於第60頁至第119頁之綜合財務報表已於二零
一七年三月三十日獲董事會批准及授權刊發並

由以下人士代表簽署：

由以下人士審批：
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Consolidated statement of Changes in equity
綜合權益變動表
For the year ended 31 December 2016 截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度

 Attributable to owners of the Company
 本公司擁有人應佔

       Convertible  share-
       bonds  based 
   share  share  exchange  statutory  equity  payment  other shareholder’s  Accumulated 
   capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve*  reserve* contributions* losses* total

       可換股債券 以股份為基礎
   股本 股份溢價 * 匯兌儲備 * 法定儲備 * 權益儲備 * 之付款儲備 * 其他儲備 * 股東注資 * 累計虧損 * 總計
    Note 27(c)(i) Note 27(c)(ii) Note 27(c)(iii) Note 27(c)(v) Note 27(c)(iv) Note 27(c)(vi)

    附註27(c)(i) 附註27(c)(ii) 附註27(c)(iii) 附註27(c)(v) 附註27(c)(iv) 附註27(c)(vi)
  Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

  附註 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元

At 1 January 2015 於二零一五年一月一日  2,617,701 107,940,644 3,145,012 1,742,763 — 2,376,475 8,020,110 20,751,024 (12,419,013) 134,174,716

Total comprehensive  年內全面虧損總額

 loss for the year   — — (771,282) — — — — — (123,835,604) (124,606,886)

Exercise of share  僱員行使購股權

 options by employees  25 7,500 1,630,125 — — — (271,125) — — — 1,366,500

Issue of shares on  配售發行股份

 placement  24 523,000 33,995,000 — — — — — — — 34,518,000

Issue of shares on  公開發售發行股份

 open offer  24 787,049 62,176,948 — — — — — — — 62,963,997

Transaction costs  配售應佔交易成本

 attributable to 
 placement   — (587,785) — — — — — — — (587,785)

Transaction costs attributable 公開發售應佔交易成本
 to open offer   — (460,852) — — — — — — — (460,852)

Lapse of share options 購股權失效 25 — — — — — (2,105,350) — — 2,105,350 —

At 31 December 2015  於二零一五年十二月三十一日
 and 1 January 2016  及二零一六年一月一日  3,935,250 204,694,080 2,373,730 1,742,763 — — 8,020,110 20,751,024 (134,149,267) 107,367,690
Total comprehensive  年內全面虧損總額

 loss for the year   — — (553,027) — — — — — (98,289,233) (98,842,260)

Issue of convertible bonds 發行可換股債券 21 — — — — 4,301,492 — — — — 4,301,492

At 31 December 2016 於二零一六年十二月三十一日  3,935,250 204,694,080 1,820,703 1,742,763 4,301,492 — 8,020,110 20,751,024 (232,438,500) 12,826,922

Note:

* These reserve accounts comprise the consol idated reserve of 
HK$8,891,672 (2015: HK$103,432,440) in the consolidated statement of 
financial position.

附註：

* 該等儲備賬包括綜合財務狀況表之綜合儲備

8,891,672港元（二零一五年：103,432,440港
元）。
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Consolidated statement of Cash Flows
綜合現金流量表
For the year ended 31 December 2016 截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Cash flows from operating activities 經營活動產生的現金流量

 Loss before tax  除稅前虧損 (100,490,047) (123,405,540)

 Adjustments for:  經調整：
  Depreciation   折舊 4,211,016 4,691,183
  Amortisation of prepaid operating lease   預付經營租賃攤銷 480,000 865,570
  Finance cost on asset retirement obligations   報廢資產復原債務的融資成本 184,098 186,990
  Interest on overdue payments   逾期付款的利息 — 306
  Imputed interest costs on convertible bonds   可換股債券之估息成本 5,969,397 —
  Interest income on non-current rental    按攤銷成本計算的非流動
   deposits carried at amortised cost    租賃按金利息收入 — (84,225)
  Bank interest income   銀行利息收入 (3,808) (1,662)
  Impairment of property,    物業、廠房及設備減值
   plant and equipment  597,891 —
  Impairment of other receivables   其他應收款項減值 18,700,000 —
  Share of results of joint ventures   分佔合資公司之業績 — 6,831,600
  Written off of amounts due    撇銷應收合資公司款項
   from joint ventures  — 2,112,528
  (Gain)/loss on disposal of    出售物業、廠房及設備
   property, plant and equipment    之（收益）╱虧損 (611) 70,170
  Written off of property, plant and equipment   撇銷物業、廠房及設備 29,379,804 41,509,239
  Written off of prepaid operating lease   撇銷預付經營租賃 8,931,190 618,338
  Written off of rental deposits   撇銷租賃按金 449,464 732,364
  Written off of prepayments   撇銷預付款項 1,100,000 23,864,029
  Written off of other receivables   撇銷其他應收款項 — 552,484
  Written off of trade receivables   撇銷應收賬款 — 7,441,883
  Share-based payment arising from    發行可換股債券產生
   the issue of convertible bonds    之以股份為基礎之付款 1,485,008 —

 Operating loss before working capital changes  營運資金變動前的經營虧損 (29,006,598) (34,014,743)
  Change in prepaid operating lease   預付經營租賃之變動 — (96,796)
  Change in trade and other receivables   應收賬款及其他應收款項
    之變動 (20,213,959) 5,669,263
  Change in rental deposits   租賃按金之變動 96,200 (1,824,835)
  Change in trade and other payables   應付賬款及其他應付款項
    之變動 (2,104,445) (8,156,202)

 Cash used in operations  經營所用現金 (51,228,802) (38,423,313)
 PRC income tax paid  已支付中國所得稅 — (408,679)
 Interest on overdue payments paid  已支付逾期付款的利息 — (306)

Net cash used in operating activities 經營活動所用的現金淨額 (51,228,802) (38,832,298)
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  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Cash flows from investing activities 投資活動產生的現金流量

Purchases of property, plant and equipment 購買物業、廠房及設備 (2,315,077) (12,455,313)
Deposit paid for proposed acquisition of a hotel 建議收購一間酒店之已付按金 (23,988,000) —
Deposit paid for hotel enhancement 優化酒店之已付按金 (8,000,000) —
Acquisition of other asset 收購其他資產 (1,440,000) (1,440,000)
Interest received 已收利息 3,808 1,662
Proceeds from disposal of property,  出售物業、廠房及設備所得款項

 plant and equipment  7,330 691,833

Net cash used in investing activities 投資活動所用現金淨額 (35,731,939) (13,201,818)

Cash flows from financing activities 融資活動產生的現金流量

Proceeds from exercise of share options 行使購股權所得款項 — 1,366,500
Repayment of finance lease liabilities 償還融資租賃負債款項 — (575,143)
Net proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds 就發行可換股債券之所得款項淨額 50,000,000 —
Net proceeds from issue of shares on placement 就配售發行股份之所得款項淨額 — 33,930,215
Net proceeds from issue of shares on open offer 就公開發售發行股份
  之所得款項淨額 — 62,503,145

Net cash generated from financing activities 融資活動所得的現金淨額 50,000,000 97,224,717

net (decrease)/increase in cash  現金及現金等價物
 and cash equivalents  （減少）╱增加淨額 (36,960,741) 45,190,601 

Cash and cash equivalents at  年初的現金及現金等價物

 the beginning of the year  47,612,022 2,322,143 

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 外匯匯率變動影響 (551,281) 99,278 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 年終的現金及現金等價物 10,100,000  47,612,022
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notes to the Consolidated Financial statements
綜合財務報表附註
For the year ended 31 December 2016 截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度

1. GeneRAL InFoRMAtIon

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited 
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square, 
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, 
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of business 
is Room 3006-10, 30/F., China Resources Building, 26 Harbour 
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on 
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the 
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is 
principally engaged in the budget hotel operations in the People’s 
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The principal activities of its 
subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

2. GoInG ConCeRn BAsIs

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group incurred a 
loss of HK$98,289,233 (2015: loss of HK$123,835,604). As at 31 
December 2016, the Group’s net current liabilities and bank and 
cash balances were HK$33,201,249 (2015: net current assets 
of HK$52,722,702) and HK$10,100,000 (2015: HK$47,612,022) 
respectively. The decrease in liquidity was mainly attributed to 
the convertible bonds amount to HK$53,152,913 which will be 
mature on 13 June 2017. Other receivables of HK$21,000,000 
was received by the Group in January 2017. The substantial 
shareholder, Mr. Ding Yifan, has agreed to provide adequate funds 
for the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due.

In order to improve the Group’s operating performance and 
alleviate its liquidity risk, management is implementing measures to 
control costs and contain capital expenditures. Further investments 
in hotel operations will be made only when the Group has sufficient 
financial resources after meeting its day-to-day working capital and 
other capital commitment requirements.

The Company’s directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow 
projections. The cash flow projections cover a period of twelve 
months from 31 December 2016. In the opinion of the directors, 
based on these cash flow projections and in light of the above, the 
Group will have sufficient financial resources in the coming twelve 
months to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. 
Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to 
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern 
basis.

1. 一般資料

本公司於開曼群島註冊成立為有限公

司。註冊辦事處地址為Cricket Square, 
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand 
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands。主
要營業地點地址為香港灣仔港灣道26號
華潤大廈30樓3006-10室。本公司股份
於香港聯合交易所有限公司（「聯交所」）主

板上市。

本公司為一間投資控股公司。本集團主要

於中華人民共和國（「中國」）從事經營經濟

型酒店。其附屬公司的主要業務載於財務

報表附註33。

2. 持續經營基準

截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年

度，本集團產生虧損98,289,233港元（二
零一五年：虧損123,835,604港元）。
於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團

淨流動負債以及銀行及現金結餘分別為

33,201,249港元（二零一五年：淨流動資
產為52,722,702港元）及10,100,000港元
（二零一五年：47,612,022港元）。流動資
金減少乃主要由於金額為53,152,913之
可換股債券將於二零一七年六月十三日到

期。本集團已於二零一七年一月收取其他

應收款項21,000,000港元。主要股東丁一
凡先生已同意為本集團提供足夠資金，以

償還到期之負債。

為改善本集團的經營表現及減輕流動資金

風險，管理層正實施控制成本及限制資

本開支的措施。僅當本集團在滿足日常營

運資金及其他資本承擔需求後仍擁有足夠

的財務資源時，方會進一步投資於酒店業

務。

本公司董事已審閱本集團的現金流量預

測。該等現金流量預測涵蓋自二零一六年

十二月三十一日起12個月期間。董事認
為，根據此等現金流量預測，以及鑒於上

文所述，本集團將具備足夠的財務資源，

可履行未來12個月到期應付的財務責任。
因此，董事信納，按持續經營基準編製綜

合財務報表乃屬恰當。
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3. ADoPtIon oF neW AnD ReVIseD HonG 
KonG FInAnCIAL RePoRtInG stAnDARDs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised 
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued 
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that 
are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting 
year beginning on 1 January 2016. HKFRSs comprise Hong 
Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting 
Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and 
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the 
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s financial 
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior 
years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that 
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already 
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and 
revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these 
new and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its 
results of operations and financial position.

4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with HKFRSs, and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules 
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by 
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical 
cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs 
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also 
requires the directors to exercise its judgements in the process 
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical 
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are 
significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to 
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of 
these financial statements are set out below.

3. 採納新訂及經修訂的香港財務
報告準則

本年度，本集團已採納香港會計師公會頒

佈的與其經營有關並於二零一六年一月一

日開始之會計年度生效的全部新訂及經修

訂的香港財務報告準則（「香港財務報告準

則」）。香港財務報告準則包括香港財務報

告準則；香港會計準則；及詮釋。採納上

述新訂及經修訂的香港財務報告準則對本

集團之會計政策、本集團本年度及過往年

度的財務報表呈列及所呈報之金額並無重

大影響。

本集團並未採用已頒佈但未生效的新訂及

經修訂香港財務報告準則。本集團已開始

評估該等新訂及經修訂香港財務報告準則

的影響，但並未能就此等新訂及經修訂香

港財務報告準則是否會對其經營業績及財

務狀況產生重大影響發表意見。

4. 主要會計政策

該等財務報表乃按香港財務報告準則及聯

交所證券上市規則及香港《公司條例》之適

用披露規定而編製。

該等財務報表乃按歷史成本法編製。

編製符合香港財務報告準則的財務報表須

採用若干主要假設及估計。亦要求董事於

應用該等會計政策的過程中作出判斷。涉

及關鍵判斷的範疇及對此等財務報表而言

屬重大的假設及估計範疇，於財務報表附

註4披露。

編製此等財務報表時採用的主要會計政策

載列如下。
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4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes 
(Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial 
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has 
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has 
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has 
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant 
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting 
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, 
to determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is 
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise 
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date 
the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are 
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the 
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset 
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed 
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Group.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

綜合賬目

綜合財務報表包括本公司及其附屬公司截

至十二月三十一日止之財務報表。附屬

公司指本集團對其擁有控制權的實體。當

本集團承受或享有參與實體所得的可變回

報，且有能力透過其對實體的權力影響該

等回報時，則本集團控制該實體。當本集

團的現有權力賦予其現有能力掌控有關業

務（即大幅影響實體回報的業務）時，則本

集團對該實體擁有權力。

在評估控制權時，本集團會考慮其潛在投

票權以及其他人士持有的潛在投票權，以

釐定其是否擁有控制權。在持有人能實際

行使潛在投票權的情況下，方被視為有潛

在投票權。

附屬公司在控制權轉移至本集團之日起綜

合入賬。而在控制權終止之日起停止綜合

入賬。

集團內公司間之交易、結餘及未變現溢利

均予以對銷。除非交易提供憑證顯示所轉

讓資產出現減值，否則未變現虧損亦予以

對銷。附屬公司的會計政策已於必要時變

更，以確保與本集團採納的政策一致。
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4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes 
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the 
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates 
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), 
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s f inancial 
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the 
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange 
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets 
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the 
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. 
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are 
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in 
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at 
the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised 
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component 
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive 
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is 
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that 
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

外幣換算

(a) 功能及呈列貨幣

本集團各實體之財務報表所包括之

項目，乃按該實體經營所在之主要

經濟環境之貨幣（「功能貨幣」）計

量。綜合財務報表均以本公司功能

貨幣及呈列貨幣港元（「港元」）呈列。

(b) 各實體財務報表之交易及結餘

外幣交易於首次確認時按交易日之

現行匯率折算為功能貨幣。以外幣

計值之貨幣資產及負債按各呈報期

末之匯率折算。該折算政策所產生

之收益及虧損於收益內確認。

按公平值計量及以外幣計值之非貨

幣項目乃按釐定公平值當日之匯率

折算。

當非貨幣項目之盈虧於其他全面收

入確認時，該盈虧之任何匯兌部分

於其他全面收入確認。當非貨幣項

目之盈虧於損益確認時，該盈虧之

任何匯兌部分於損益確認。
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4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes 
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities 
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s 
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s 
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial 
position presented are translated at the closing rate at 
the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) Income and expenses are translated at average 
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable 
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates 
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case 
income and expenses are translated at the exchange 
rates on the transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the 
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the 
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of 
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation 
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange 
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as 
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

外幣換算（續）

(c) 綜合換算

功能貨幣與本公司呈列貨幣不同的

所有本集團實體的業績及財務狀

況，按下列方式換算為本公司的呈

列貨幣：

(i) 各財務狀況表內呈列的資產及

負債按該財務狀況表呈列日的

收市匯率換算；

(ii) 收支按平均匯率換算（除非該

平均匯率未能合理反映交易日

現行匯率所帶來的累計影響，

則在該情況下按照交易日的匯

率換算該等收支）；及

(iii) 所導致的一切匯兌差額乃於外

幣匯兌儲備內確認。

於綜合賬目時，兌換海外實體的投

資淨額及借款時產生的匯兌差額乃

於外幣兌換儲備中確認。當出售海

外業務時，有關匯兌差額乃於綜合

損益內確認為出售時的收益或虧損

之一部分。
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4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes 
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit 
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates 
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the 
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual 
rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired term 
  of lease and 7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are 
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is 
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

物業、廠房及設備

物業、廠房及設備乃按成本減累計折舊及

減值虧損列賬。

後續成本已納入資產的賬面值或只於未來

可能有與該項目有關的經濟利益流入本集

團且項目成本能可靠計量時確認為獨立資

產（於適當情況下）。所有其他維修及保養

成本於其產生之期間的損益內確認。

物業、廠房及設備的折舊乃按足以撇銷其

成本的數值減其估計可使用年期內的剩

餘價值以直線法計算。主要可使用年期如

下：

租賃物業裝修 尚餘租期及七年中的

  較短者
傢俬及裝置 五年

辦公室設備 五年

汽車 五年

剩餘價值、可使用年期及折舊方式均於各

報告期末予以審閱及調整（如適用）。

出售物業、廠房及設備的收益或虧損乃銷

售所得淨額及有關資產的賬面值之間的差

額，並於損益內確認。
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4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes 
(Continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvement stated 
at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the 
costs of leasehold improvements and capitalised interest charges 
arising from borrowings used to finance these assets during the 
period of construction. No provision for depreciation is made on 
construction in progress until such time the relevant assets are 
completed and are available for intended use. When the assets 
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred to 
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with 
the policy as stated in the preceding paragraphs.

Other asset

Other asset represents television (“TV”) drama series in production 
and is stated at cost incurred to date, less any identified 
impairment losses. Costs included all direct costs associated with 
the production of TV drama series. Costs are transferred to TV 
drama series rights upon completion.

Other asset is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment loss.

An impairment loss is made when there has been a change in 
the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount and the 
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Leases

The Group as lessee

(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for 
as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 

4. 主要會計政策（續）

在建工程

在建工程指租賃物業裝修，按成本減累計

減值虧損（如有）列賬。成本包括租賃物

業裝修成本及建設期內為該等資產提供資

金之借款產生之資本化利息費用。概不會

對在建工程作出折舊撥備，直至有關資產

完成及可作擬定用途為止。當有關資產投

入使用時，成本將轉撥至物業、廠房及設

備，並根據先前段落所述政策折舊。

其他資產

其他資產指製作中之電視劇，以截至當日

已產生成本減任何已識別之減值虧損列

賬。成本包括所有與電視劇製作相關之直

接成本。成本於完成時轉撥至電視劇製作

版權。

其他資產乃按成本減其後累計折舊及累計

減值虧損列賬。

倘用作釐定可收回金額之估計出現變動，

且賬面值超過可收回金額，則作出減值虧

損。

租賃

本集團為承租人

(i) 經營租賃

經營租賃為擁有資產的所有風險及

回報實質上並無轉讓予本集團的租

賃。租賃款項（扣除出租人給予的任

何優惠）於租賃期內以直線法確認為

開支。
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4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes 
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

(ii) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as 
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a 
finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of 
the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the 
statement of financial position as finance lease payable. 
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance 
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The 
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease 
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as 
owned assets.

The Group as lessor

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating 
leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

租賃（續）

本集團為承租人（續）

(ii) 融資租賃

融資租賃為擁有資產的所有風險及

回報實質上轉讓予本集團的租賃。

融資租賃在租賃期開始時按租賃資

產之公平值及最低租賃付款現值兩

者之較低者（兩者均在租賃開始時釐

定）撥充資本。

出租人之相應債務於財務狀況表中

列作應付融資租賃款項。租賃款項

按比例分配為財務費用及削減未付

債務。財務費用在租賃期內按各期

間分攤，以為餘下債務結餘得出貫

徹之定期利率。

於融資租賃下之資產按與自置資產

相同之方式計算折舊。

本集團為出租人

經營租賃

經營租賃為擁有資產的所有風險及回報實

質上並無轉讓予承租人的租賃。經營租賃

的租金收入於租賃期內以直線法確認。
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(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the 
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to 
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; 
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained 
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the 
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had 
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in 
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified 
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or 
loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of 
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective 
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount 
of the allowance is the difference between the receivables’ 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or 
loss.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

確認及終止確認金融工具

金融資產及金融負債於本集團成為工具合

約條文之訂約方時，於綜合財務狀況表內

確認。

倘從資產收取現金流之合約權利已到期，

或本集團已將其於資產擁有權之絕大部分

風險及回報轉移，或本集團並無轉移及保

留其於資產擁有權之絕大部分風險及回報

但無保留對資產之控制權，則金融資產將

被終止確認。於終止確認金融資產時，資

產之賬面值與已收代價及已於其他全面收

入內確認之累計盈虧兩者總和之差額，將

於損益內確認。

倘於有關合約之特定責任獲解除、取消或

到期，則金融負債將被終止確認。取消確

認之金融負債之賬面值與已付代價之差額

於損益內確認。

應收賬款及其他應收款項

應收賬款及其他應收款項為並非於活躍市

場報價而具備固定或可釐定款項之非衍

生工具金融資產及初步按公平值確認，其

後則以實際利率法按扣除減值撥備的攤銷

成本計算。應收賬款及其他應收款項的減

值撥備於有客觀證據顯示本集團無法按應

收款項的原有條款收回所有到期金額時作

出。撥備金額為應收款項賬面值與估計日

後現金流量按初步確認時所用實際利率貼

現的現值兩者間的差額。撥備金額於損益

內確認。
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Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and 
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’ 
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the 
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date 
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised 
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand 
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term 
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in 
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form 
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included 
as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according 
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and 
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under 
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a 
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of 
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial 
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction 
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has 
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months after the reporting period.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

應收賬款及其他應收款項（續）

減值虧損於往後期間撥回，並於應收款項

的可收回金額增加可客觀地與於確認減值

後發生的事件有關連的情況下在損益內確

認，惟應收款項於撥回減值日期的賬面值

不得超逾假設並無確認減值應存在的經攤

銷成本。

現金及現金等價物

就現金流量表而言，現金及現金等價物乃

指銀行及手頭現金、銀行及其他財務機構

的活期存款及可隨時轉換為確實數額的現

金及存在非重大價值變動風險的短期高度

流動投資項目。須按要求償還的銀行透支

為本集團現金管理的主要組成部分，亦會

列作現金及現金等價物的組成部分。

金融負債及股本工具

金融負債及股本工具乃按所訂立合約安排

的內容及香港財務報告準則項下金融負債

及股本工具的釋義分類。股本工具為反映

扣除所有負債後本集團資產剩餘權益的任

何合約。下文載列就特定金融負債及股本

工具所採納的會計政策。

借貸

借貸初步按公平值，扣除所產生之交易成

本確認，其後使用實際利率法按攤銷成本

計量。

除非本集團有無條件權利延遲償還負債直

至報告期後最少十二個月，否則借貸應分

類為流動負債。
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(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs direct ly attr ibutable to the acquisit ion, 
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready 
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost 
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned 
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing 
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for 
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of 
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying 
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The 
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs 
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding 
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the 
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the 
period in which they are incurred.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the bonds 
into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion 
price are regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability 
and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the 
liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest 
rate for similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative 
features embedded in the compound instruments is included in 
the liability component. The difference between the fair value of 
the convertible bonds and the fair values assigned to the liability 
component, representing the embedded option for the holder to 
convert the bonds into equity of the Group, is included in equity as 
convertible bonds equity reserve. The liability component is carried 
as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest method 
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The derivative 
components are measured at fair value with gains and losses 
recognised in profit or loss.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

借貸成本

直接歸屬於收購、興建或生產合資格資

產（指必須經一段長時間處理以作其預定

用途或銷售的資產）的借貸成本，資本化

為該等資產的成本部分，直至資產大致上

備妥供其預定用途或銷售為止。就特定借

貸，因有待合資格資產的支出而臨時投資

賺取的投資收入，應自合資格資本化的借

貸成本中扣除。

就於一般情況及用作取得合資格資產而借

入之資金而言，合資格資本化之借貸成本

金額乃按對該資產之開支應用資本化比率

計算。資本化比率為適用於本集團該期間

內尚未償還借貸（不包括就取得合資格資

產而借入之特定借貸）之加權平均借貸成

本。

所有其他借貸成本於其產生期間在損益中

確認。

可換股債券

賦予持有人權利按固定兌換價將債券兌換

為固定數目之權益工具之可換股債券乃視

為由負債及權益部分組成之複合工具。於

發行當日，負債部分之公平值乃按當時適

用於類似非可換股債務之市場利率估計。

嵌入複合工具的任何衍生特質的公平值

計入負債部分。可換股債券之公平值與劃

定為負債部分之公平值之差額，即讓持有

人可轉換債券為本集團股權之內含期權，

乃計入權益列為可換股債券權益儲備。負

債部分使用實際利率法按攤銷成本列為負

債，直至獲轉換或贖回時註銷為止。衍生

部分按公平值計量，收益及虧損於損益確

認。
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Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity 
components of the convertible bonds based on their relative 
carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the 
equity component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be 
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that 
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably.

(a) Hotel operations

Hotel revenue from hotel room and conference room rental is 
recognised when the services are rendered.

(b) Membership fee income

The fair value of the consideration received or receivable 
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
membership.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest 
method.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

可換股債券（續）

交易成本乃根據可換股債券之負債及權益

部分於發行當日之相關賬面值分攤。與權

益部分有關之份額乃直接在權益中扣除。

應付賬款及其他應付款項

應付賬款及其他應付款項初步按其公平值

列賬，其後以實際利率法按攤銷成本計

量，除非貼現影響甚微，於此情況下，則

按成本列賬。

股本工具

本公司發行的股本工具乃按已收所得款項

扣除直接發行成本列賬。

收益確認

收益按已收或應收代價的公平值計量，並

於經濟利益將很可能歸入本集團及收益金

額能可靠地計量時予以確認。

(a) 酒店營運

來自酒店客房及會議室租金的酒店

收益於提供服務時確認。

(b) 會籍費用收入

已收或應收代價的公平值於會籍的

年期內按直線法確認。

(c) 利息收入

利息收入採用實際利率法確認。
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Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave 
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision 
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long 
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees 
up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are 
not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement 
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions 
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated 
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement 
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents 
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution 
retirement scheme organized by the government in the PRC. 
The Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of 
the payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. The 
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become 
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement 
scheme. No forfeited contributions may be used by the 
employers to reduce the existing level of contributions.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates 
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs 
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

僱員福利

(a) 僱員享有假期

僱員的年假及長期服務休假的權利

乃於僱員應享有時確認。本集團會

就截至報告期末僱員已提供的服務

而產生的年假及長期服務休假的估

計負債作出撥備。

僱員的病假及產假不作確認，直至

僱員正式休假為止。

(b) 退休金責任

本集團向定額供款退休計劃作出供

款，所有僱員均可參與該計劃。該

計劃之供款由本集團及僱員按僱員

基本薪金之百分比計算。自損益扣

除之退休福利計劃成本指本集團應

向該基金支付之供款。

本集團亦於中國參與一項由政府安

排之定額供款退休計劃。本集團須

按其僱員工資特定百分比向退休計

劃作出供款。供款於根據退休計劃

之規則應付時自損益中扣除。僱主

不得將沒收供款撥作調減現行應付

供款。

(c) 終止福利

終止福利於當本集團不得再撤銷提

供該等福利，或當本集團確認重組

成本並涉及支付終止福利（以較早者

為準）時確認。
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Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain 
directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based payments 
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of 
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis 
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares 
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the 
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss 
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable 
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are 
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is 
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and 
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are 
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or 
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of 
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the 
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

以股份為基礎之付款

本集團授予若干董事及僱員以股權結算以

股份為基礎之付款。以股權結算以股份為

基礎之付款於授出日期按權益工具的公平

值（不包括非市場為本之歸屬狀況之影響）

計算。於授出以股權結算以股份為基礎之

付款之日釐定的公平值，乃依據本集團對

其最終歸屬股份之估計，並對非市場為本

之歸屬狀況之影響作出調整，以直線法於

歸屬期內支銷。

稅項

所得稅為即期稅項與遞延稅項的總和。

即期應付稅項乃按本年度應課稅溢利計

算。應課稅溢利與於損益內確認的溢利不

同，因應課稅溢利不包括在其他年度應課

稅收入或可扣減開支項目，而且不包括毋

須課稅或不可扣稅項目。本集團的即期稅

項負債乃按報告期末前已頒佈或實質頒佈

的稅率計算。

遞延稅項乃根據財務報表中資產及負債的

賬面值與用作計算應課稅溢利的相應稅基

間的差額確認。遞延稅項負債通常會就所

有應課稅暫時差額確認，倘很可能有應課

稅溢利可用於抵銷可扣減暫時差額、未動

用稅項虧損或未動用稅項抵免，則確認遞

延稅項資產。於一項交易中，倘因其他資

產及負債的商譽或初步確認（業務合併除

外）而產生的暫時差額不影響應課稅溢利

及會計溢利時，則不會確認該等資產及負

債。
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary 
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint 
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal 
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary 
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected 
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset 
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred 
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to 
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the 
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or 
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax 
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

稅項（續）

遞延稅項負債就投資於附屬公司及合資公

司而產生的應課稅暫時差額予以確認，除

非本集團能控制撥回暫時差額以及暫時差

額很可能在可見將來不會被撥回。

遞延稅項資產的賬面值於各報告期末均會

作出檢討，並在預期不再有足夠應課稅溢

利予以收回全部或部分資產時作出相應減

值。

遞延稅項乃以預期於償還負債或變現資產

當期基於報告期末前頒佈或實質頒佈的

稅率計算。遞延稅項於損益內確認，倘遞

延稅項與於其他全面收入或直接於權益確

認項目相關聯則除外，在此情況下，遞延

稅項亦會於其他全面收入或直接於權益確

認。

遞延稅項資產及負債之計量反映按本集團

預計於報告期末收回或清償其資產及負債

之賬面值之稅務後果。

倘有法定可行使權利將即期稅項資產及即

期稅項負債抵銷，且彼等為與同一稅務機

構徵收的所得稅有關，以及本集團擬按淨

額基準結算即期稅項資產及負債，遞延稅

項資產及負債則會互相抵銷。
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4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes 
(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related 
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the 
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following 
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same 
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and 
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other 
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a 
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the 
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the 
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity 
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, 
the sponsoring employers are also related to the 
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person 
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence 
over the entity or is a member of the key management 
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a 
part, provides key management personnel services to 
the Company or to a parent of the Company.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

關連人士

關連人士為與本集團有關連的個人或實

體。

(a) 倘屬以下人士，即該人士或該人士

之近親與本集團有關連：

(i) 控制或共同控制本集團；

(ii) 對本集團有重大影響；或

(iii) 為本公司或本公司母公司的主

要管理層成員。

(b) 倘符合下列任何條件，即該實體與

本集團有關連：

(i) 該實體與本公司屬同一集團之

成員公司（即各母公司、附屬

公司及同系附屬公司彼此間有

關連）。

(ii) 一間實體為另一實體的聯營公

司或合資公司（或另一實體為

成員公司之集團旗下成員公司

之聯營公司或合資公司）。

(iii) 兩間實體均為同一第三方的合

資公司。

(iv) 一間實體為第三方實體的合資

公司，而另一實體為該第三方

實體的聯營公司。

(v) 該實體為本集團或與本集團有

關連之實體就僱員利益設立的

離職福利計劃。倘本集團本身

便是該計劃，提供資助的僱主

亦與本集團有關連。

(vi) 該實體受 (a)識別人士控制或受
共同控制。

(vii) 於 (a)(i)所識別人士對該實體有
重大影響力或屬該實體（或該

實體的母公司）主要管理層成

員。

(viii) 該實體，或其所屬集團任何成
員公司向本公司或本公司母公

司提供主要管理人員服務。
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4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes 
(Continued)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying 
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets except deferred 
income tax assets and receivables to determine whether there is 
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. 
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. 
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of 
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of 
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is 
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, 
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to 
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that 
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation 
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for 
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless 
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case 
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
increase.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

資產減值

於各報告期末，本集團審閱其有形及其他

無形資產（遞延所得稅資產及應收款項除

外）的賬面值，以釐定是否有任何跡象顯

示該等資產已出現減值虧損。如有任何有

關跡象，則會估計資產的可收回金額，以

釐定任何減值虧損的程度。如不能估計個

別資產的可收回金額，則本集團會估計資

產所屬現金產生單位的可收回金額。

可收回金額為公平值減出售成本及使用價

值兩者中的較高者。於評估使用價值時，

估計未來現金流量乃以稅前貼現率貼現至

現值。稅前貼現率反映市場目前對貨幣時

間值及資產特定風險的評估。

倘資產或現金產生單位的可收回金額估計

將少於其賬面值，則資產或現金產生單位

的賬面值會減少至其可收回金額。減值虧

損會即時於損益內確認，除非有關資產乃

按重估數額列賬，在該情況下，減值虧損

會被視為重估減幅。

倘其後撥回減值虧損，則資產或現金產生

單位的賬面值會增至經修訂的預計可收回

金額，惟增加後的賬面值不得超逾過往年

度並無就資產或現金產生單位確認減值虧

損應予釐定的賬面值（扣除攤銷或折舊）。

減值虧損回撥會即時於損益內確認，惟倘

有關資產按重估金額列賬，則減值虧損撥

回會作重估增幅處理。
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4. sIGnIFICAnt ACCoUntInG PoLICIes 
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or 
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time 
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present 
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits 
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the 
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability 
of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will 
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities 
unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information 
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period 
or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not 
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial 
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting 
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when 
material.

5. KeY estIMAtes

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources 
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year, are discussed below.

4. 主要會計政策（續）

撥備及或然負債

倘本集團因過往事件負上現有法律或推定

責任承擔而很可能需要以經濟溢利流出以

支付負債，於能作出可靠估計時，便會就

未有確定時間或金額的負債確認撥備。倘

金錢的時間價值重大，撥備會以履行義務

預期所需支出的現值列賬。

倘需要流出經濟利益的可能性不大，或未

能可靠估計有關金額，則除非流出經濟利

益的可能性極微，否則有關責任將列作或

然負債披露。須視乎一宗或多宗未來事件

是否發生才能確定存在與否的潛在責任，

亦會披露為或然負債；倘資源外流的可能

性極低則作別論。

報告期後事項

就本集團於報告期末業務狀況提供額外資

料或顯示持續經營假設並不適當之報告期

後事項為調整事項，並反映於財務報表。

並非調整事項的報告期後事項，倘屬重大

時，則於財務報表附註內披露。

5. 主要估計

估計不明朗因素的主要來源

於報告期末有重大風險使下個財政年度資

產及負債賬面值須作重大調整而與未來有

關的主要假設及其他估計不明朗因素的主

要來源討論如下。
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5. KeY estIMAtes (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual 
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s 
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based 
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives and 
residual values of property, plant and equipment of similar 
nature and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation 
charge where useful lives and residual values are different to 
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or writedown 
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been 
abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount may be not recoverable. The 
recoverable amounts have been determined based on 
fair value less costs of disposal calculations or market 
valuations. These calculations require the use of judgements 
and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset 
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event 
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset value 
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of 
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, 
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or net 
present value of future cash flows which are estimated 
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; 
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in 
preparing cash flow projections including whether these 
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate 
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management 
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the 
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could 
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and 
as a result affect the Group’s financial position and results of 
the operations.

5. 主要估計（續）

估計不明朗因素的主要來源（續）

(a) 物業，廠房及設備及折舊

本集團釐定本集團物業、廠房及設

備的估計可使用年期、剩餘價值及

相關折舊開支。該估計乃根據性質

及功能相近的物業、廠房及設備實

際可使用年期及剩餘價值的過往經

驗而作出。倘可使用年期及剩餘價

值與過往之估計相異，本集團會調

整折舊開支，或將已報廢或出售的

技術上過時或非戰略資產撇銷或撇

減。

(b) 物業、廠房及設備的減值

當有事件或情況轉變顯示可能無法

收回賬面值時，本集團將檢討物

業、廠房及設備有否減值。可收回

金額乃按公平值減出售成本或市場

估值計算。此等計算須運用判斷及

估計。

管理層需要運用判斷以釐定資產減

值，尤其是評估：(i)有否出現事件
可能顯示有關資產價值可能無法收

回；(ii)資產賬面值是否有可收回款
項（即公平值減出售成本或以業務持

續使用資產為基礎估計的有關日後

現金流量的淨現值兩者中的較高者）

支持；及 (iii)編製現金流量預測時使
用的適當主要假設，包括有關現金

流量預測是否以適用比率貼現。倘

管理層就評估減值所選假設（包括現

金流量預測所用貼現率或增長率假

設）有所變更，可能會對減值測試中

所用的淨現值產生影響，從而或會

影響本集團的財務狀況及經營業績。
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5. KeY estIMAtes (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful 
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade 
and other receivables, including the current creditworthiness 
and the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments 
arise where events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the balances may not be collectible. The identification 
of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement 
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from the 
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying 
value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt 
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been 
changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors were to 
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make 
payments, additional allowances may be required.

(d) Impairment loss for other asset

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual 
values and related amortisation charges for the other asset. 
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the 
actual useful lives and residual values of other asset. The 
Group will revise the amortisation charge where useful 
lives and residual values are different to those previously 
estimated. The Group tests annually whether the other asset 
has suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of the 
other asset has been determined on the basis of fair value 
using discounted cash flow method.

(e) Asset retirement obligations

The Group evaluates and recognises, on a regular basis, 
the present value of the obligations which arise from future 
reinstatement of leased hotel premises upon the end of 
lease terms. To establish the present value of the asset 
retirement obligations, estimates and judgement are applied 
in determining these future cash flows and the discount 
rate. Management estimates the future cash flows based on 
certain assumptions, such as the restoration costs based on 
quotations.

5. 主要估計（續）

估計不明朗因素的主要來源（續）

(c) 呆壞賬減值虧損

本集團按照應收賬款及其他應收款

項之可收回程度之評估（包括各債務

人目前的信貸能力和過往收回欠款

紀錄）就呆壞賬作出減值虧損。一旦

事件發生或情況改變顯示該等餘額

有可能不能收回時，即定為減值。

識別呆壞賬需要作出判斷和估計。

倘實際結果與原估計有差異時，則

該差異將會影響到估計改變之年度

內之應收賬款及其他應收款項之賬

面值以及呆賬支出。若債務人的財

務狀況惡化，令彼等還款的能力下

降，可能會要求作出額外撥備。

(d) 其他資產減值虧損

本集團釐定其他資產的估計可使用

年期、剩餘價值及相關攤銷開支。

該估計乃根據其他資產實際可使用

年期及剩餘價值的過往經驗而作

出。倘可使用年期及剩餘價值與過

往之估計相異，本集團會調整攤銷

開支。本集團會每年測試其他資產

是否出現任何減值。其他資產之可

收回金額使用貼現現金流量法根據

公平值釐定。

(e) 報廢資產復原債務

本集團會定期評估及確認日後於租

期結束時須復修酒店租賃物業而產

生的債務之現值。而確立報廢資產

復原債務的現值時，釐定該等未來

現金流量及貼現率已應用估計及判

斷。管理層根據若干假設（例如基於

報價的復修成本）估計未來現金流

量。
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5. KeY estIMAtes (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(f) Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the 
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions 
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where 
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the 
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will 
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the 
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary 
differences and tax losses are recognised when management 
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the temporary differences or tax 
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation 
may be different.

6. FInAnCIAL RIsK MAnAGeMent

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. 
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential 
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as 
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are 
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the 
Group entities except certain trade receivables of subsidiaries 
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) while its functional 
currency is HK$. The Group currently does not have a 
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency 
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its 
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging 
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

5. 主要估計（續）

估計不明朗因素的主要來源（續）

(f) 所得稅

釐定所得稅撥備時需要作出重大估

計。多項交易及計算的最終稅額無

法於日常業務過程中釐定。倘若該

等事宜之最終稅務結果與初始記錄

金額不同，則有關差額將會影響作

出決定期間之所得稅及遞延稅項撥

備。

與若干暫時差額及稅項虧損相關之

遞延所得稅資產於管理層認為未來

應課稅溢利將很有可能可獲得而就

此可使用暫時差額或稅項虧損時予

以確認。其實際使用之結果或會有

不同。

6. 財務風險管理

本集團的活動承受多項財務風險：外幣風

險、信用風險、流動資金風險及利率風

險。本集團的整體風險管理計劃專注於財

務市場的不可預測性，並尋求盡量減低對

本集團財務表現的潛在不利影響。

(a) 外幣風險

本集團的外幣風險甚微，此乃由於

其大部分業務交易、資產及負債主

要以本集團實體的功能貨幣計值，

除附屬公司的若干應收賬款以人民

幣（「人民幣」）計值，而其功能貨

幣為港元。本集團現時並無就外幣

交易、資產及負債設立外幣對沖政

策。本集團將密切監控其外幣風

險，並於必要時考慮對沖重大外幣

風險。
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6. FInAnCIAL RIsK MAnAGeMent (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables, 
cash and bank balances and deposits included in the 
consolidated statement of financial position represents the 
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the 
Group’s financial assets.

In respect of hotel operations, the Group has no concentration 
of credit risk in view of its large number of customers. It has 
policies in place to ensure that sale of rooms to corporate 
customers are made to customers with an appropriate credit 
history. Sales to walk-in customers are made via credit cards 
or cash.

Amounts due from joint ventures are closely monitored 
by the directors and management considers provision for 
impairment has been provided appropriately.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because 
the counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned 
by international credit-rating agencies.

Rental deposits are mainly paid to six (2015: seven) domestic 
private entities who are currently leasing the office, hotel 
premises and staff quarter to the Group. Other receivables 
primarily represent the amounts due from third and related 
parties which have long business relationship with the Group. 
Taking into consideration settlements subsequent to year 
end, management considers provision for impairment has 
been provided appropriately.

6. 財務風險管理（續）

(b) 信用風險

計入綜合財務狀況表之應收賬款及

其他應收款項、現金及銀行結餘以

及按金之賬面值為本集團就其金融

資產所面對之最高信用風險。

就酒店營運而言，由於本集團擁有

龐大的顧客群，因此並無信用集中

風險。本集團已實施政策確保向具

有適當信貸歷史的企業客戶提供客

房銷售。向未有預訂的顧客作出的

銷售以信用卡或現金收款。

應收合資公司款項由董事密切監控

及管理層認為已適當地作出減值撥

備。

由於交易對手為獲國際信貸評級機

構評為具高信貸評級之銀行，故現

金及銀行結餘之信用風險有限。

租賃按金主要支付予目前向本集團

出租辦公室、酒店物業及員工宿舍

的六個（二零一五年：七個）當地私

人實體。其他應收款項主要是指應

收與本集團存在長期業務關係的第

三方及關連方的款項。經考慮該等

款項於年結日後結算，管理層認為

已適當地作出減值撥備。
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6. FInAnCIAL RIsK MAnAGeMent (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and 
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains 
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements 
in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is as 
follows:

  Less than  Between 1  Between 2  over 5 
  1 year and 2 years and 5 years years total
  一年內 一年至兩年 兩年至五年 超過五年 總額
  HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  港元 港元 港元 港元 港元

At 31 December 2016 於二零一六年十二月三十一日

Convertible bonds 可換股債券 58,650,000 — — — 58,650,000
Trade and other payables 應付賬款及其他應付款項 8,583,968 — — — 8,583,968

  67,233,968 — — — 67,233,968

  Less than  Between 1  Between 2  Over 
  1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years Total
  一年內 一年至兩年 兩年至五年 超過五年 總額

  HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  港元 港元 港元 港元 港元

At 31 December 2015 於二零一五年十二月三十一日

Trade and other payables 應付賬款及其他應付款項 8,781,681 — — — 8,781,681

6. 財務風險管理（續）

(c) 流動資金風險

本集團之政策為定期監察現時及預

期流動資金需求，以確保維持充足

現金儲備，以應付其短期及長期流

動資金需求。

本集團金融負債之到期日分析如

下：
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6. FInAnCIAL RIsK MAnAGeMent (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and 
liabilities, the Group’s operating cash flows are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates.

(e) Categories of financial instruments

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Financial assets: 金融資產：
Loans and receivables  貸款及應收款項

 (including bank and cash balances)  （包括銀行及現金結餘） 34,406,073 70,176,386

Financial liabilities: 金融負債：
Financial liabilities at amortised costs  按攤銷成本計值的金融負債 61,736,881 8,781,681

(f) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and 
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement 
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no assets 
and liabilities that were measured at fair value.

6. 財務風險管理（續）

(d) 利率風險

由於本集團並無重大計息資產及負

債，故本集團之經營現金流大致上

不受市場利率變動之影響。

(e) 金融工具之分類

(f) 公平值

綜合財務狀況表所列示本集團金融

資產及金融負債的賬面值與其各自

的公平值相若。

於二零一六年及二零一五年十二月

三十一日，概無資產及負債按公平

值計量。
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7. oPeRAtInG seGMent InFoRMAtIon

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

— Hotel operations (the sales of hotel membership cards and 
hotel management services income are included in the hotel 
operation segment)

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units 
that offer different products and services. They are managed 
separately because each business requires different technology 
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same 
as those described in note 4 to the financial statements. Segment 
profits or losses do not include interest income, finance costs, 
auditor’s remuneration, legal and professional fee, head office and 
corporate expenses.

The segment information for the reportable segments for the year 
is as follows:

   Provision 
   of hotel 
  Hotel  consultancy 
  operations services total
   提供酒店
  酒店營運 顧問服務 總額
  HK$ HK$ HK$
  港元 港元 港元

For the year ended  截至二零一六年
 31 December 2016  十二月三十一日止年度
Revenue from external customers 來自外來客戶之收益 17,654,630 — 17,654,630
Segment loss 分部虧損 (61,153,869) — (61,153,869)
Depreciation of property,  物業、廠房及設備折舊
 plant and equipment  4,211,016 — 4,211,016
Impairment of property,  物業、廠房及設備減值
 plant and equipment  597,891 — 597,891
Impairment of other receivables 其他應收款項減值 18,700,000 — 18,700,000
Written off of property,  撇銷物業、廠房及設備
 plant and equipment  29,379,804 — 29,379,804

For the year ended  截至二零一五年
 31 December 2015  十二月三十一日止年度
Revenue from external customers 來自外來客戶之收益 19,884,379 — 19,884,379
Segment loss 分部虧損 (90,145,745) (3,139,860) (93,285,605)
Depreciation of property,  物業、廠房及設備折舊
 plant and equipment  4,691,183 — 4,691,183
Written off of trade receivables 撇銷應收賬款 4,302,023 3,139,860 7,441,883
Written off of property,  撇銷物業、廠房及設備
 plant and equipment  41,509,239 — 41,509,239

7. 經營分部資料

本集團的兩個可呈報分部如下：

— 酒店營運（酒店會籍卡銷售及酒店管

理服務的收入乃計入酒店營運分部

內）

本集團之可呈報分部乃提供不同產品及服

務之策略性業務單位。由於各業務要求不

同之技術及市場推廣策略，各可呈報分部

乃個別管理。

經營分部之會計政策與財務報表附註4所
述之會計政策相一致。分部損益不包括利

息收入、融資成本、核數師酬金、法律及

專業費用、總辦事處及企業開支。

本年度可呈報分部的分部資料載列如下：
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7. oPeRAtInG seGMent InFoRMAtIon 
(Continued)

A reconciliation of segment results to loss before income tax is 
provided as follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Total loss of reportable segments 可呈報分部虧損總額 (61,153,869) (93,285,605)
Unallocated corporate expenses, net 未分配企業開支淨額 (33,282,464) (21,074,398)
Interest income 利息收入 3,808 85,887
Finance costs 融資成本 (6,057,522) (187,296)
Written off of amounts due  撇銷應收合資公司款項

 from joint ventures  — (2,112,528)
Share of results of joint ventures 分佔合資公司業績 — (6,831,600)

Loss before tax 除稅前虧損 (100,490,047) (123,405,540)

Revenue from major customers:

All revenue was derived from external customers in the PRC 
and Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 
2015. No revenue derived from one customer represent 10% or 
more of the revenue of the Group for each of the years ended 31 
December 2016 and 2015.

The total of non-current assets other than deferred tax assets 
located in Hong Kong and the PRC were HK$8,638,877 (2015: 
HK$7,686,412) and HK$37,337,794 (2015: HK$49,731,596), 
respectively.

Breakdown of revenue from all activities is as follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Sales from hotel operations — 酒店營運的銷售額 —
 hotel room rental and  酒店房間租金及
 conference room rental  會議室租金 17,574,170 19,629,498
Sales of hotel membership cards 酒店會籍卡銷售 80,460 254,881

  17,654,630 19,884,379

7. 經營分部資料（續）

分部業績與除稅前虧損之對賬載列如下：

來自主要客戶之收益：

於截至二零一六年及二零一五年十二月

三十一日止年度，所有收益均來自中國及

香港的外來客戶。並無自一名客戶產生的

收益佔本集團於截至二零一六年及二零

一五年十二月三十一日止年度各年收益的

10%或以上。

位於香港及中國的非流動資產總值（不

包括遞延稅項資產）分別為8,638,877
港 元（ 二 零 一 五 年：7,686,412港 元 ）
及37,337,794港 元（ 二 零 一 五 年：

49,731,596港元）。

所有活動收益明細載列如下：
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8. eMPLoYee BeneFIt eXPenses 
(InCLUDInG DIReCtoRs’ eMoLUMents)

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Salaries, wages and allowances 薪金、工資及津貼 19,908,119 12,378,156
Pension obligations 退休金責任 1,612,485 1,508,225
Other benefits 其他福利 70,809 163,986

  21,591,413 14,050,367

9. DIReCtoRs’ eMoLUMents

(a) The emoluments of each director were as follows:

     salaries,
     allowances  Pension 
     and benefits  schemes 
   Fees Inducement in kind contribution total
     薪金、津貼及 退休金
   袍金 獎勵金 實物福利 計劃供款 總額
  Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  附註 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元

Year ended  截至二零一六年
 31 December 2016  十二月三十一日止年度

executive directors: 執行董事：
 Huang Yun  黃雲 (a) 720,000 — — — 720,000
 Dai Lifeng  戴立峰 (b) 518,000 — — — 518,000
 Wu Li Xin  吳立新 (c) 911,097 930,521 — — 1,841,618

non-executive directors: 非執行董事：
 Lu Zefeng  陸澤峰 (d) 54,839 — — — 54,839
 Law Fei Shing  羅輝城 (d) 671,081 — — 17,952 689,033

Independent non-executive 獨立非執行董事：
 directors: 
 Tso Hon Sai Bosco  曹漢璽 (a) 120,000 — — — 120,000
 Leung Siu Hong  梁兆康 (a) 120,000 — — — 120,000
 Wong Yiu Kit Ernest  黃耀傑 (c) 20,000 — — — 20,000
 Chung Wai Man  鍾偉文 (e) 100,000 — — — 100,000

   3,235,017 930,521 — 17,952 4,183,490

8. 僱員福利開支（包括董事薪酬）

9. 董事薪酬

(a) 各董事之薪酬載列如下：
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9. DIReCtoRs’ eMoLUMents (Continued)

(a) The emoluments of each director were as follows: (Continued)

     Salaries, 
     allowances  Pension
     and benefits  schemes
   Fees Inducement in kind contribution Total
     薪金、津貼及 退休金

   袍金 獎勵金 實物福利 計劃供款 總額

  Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  附註 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元

Year ended 截至二零一五年
 31 December 2015  十二月三十一日止年度

executive directors: 執行董事：
 Huang Yun  黃雲 (a) 372,000 — — — 372,000
 Fong Man Kelvin  方文 (f) — — 456,553 7,500 464,053
 Fong Nga  巫曼因 (f) — — 206,100 10,300 216,400
 Mak Yiu Cho  麥耀祖 (f) — — 103,050 5,150 108,200
 Law Fei Shing  羅輝城  — — 405,000 12,750 417,750

Independent non-executive 獨立非執行董事：
 directors:
 Tso Hon Sai Bosco  曹漢璽 (a) 62,000 — — — 62,000
 Leung Siu Hong  梁兆康 (a) 62,000 — — — 62,000
 Chung Wai Man  鍾偉文 (e) 62,000 — — — 62,000
 Wong Sui Chi  黃瑞熾 (f) 55,560 — — — 55,560
 Wong Hak Kun Jerry  黃克勤 (f) 55,560 — — — 55,560
 Frostick Stephen William  Frostick Stephen William (f) 55,560 — — — 55,560
 Liu Cheng Zhong  劉承忠 (f) 55,560 — — — 55,560

   780,240 — 1,170,703 35,700 1,986,643

9. 董事薪酬（續）

(a) 各董事之薪酬載列如下：（續）
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9. DIReCtoRs’ eMoLUMents (Continued)

(a) The emoluments of each director were as follows: (Continued)

Note:

(a) On 25 June 2015, Huang Yun was appointed as executive 
director and Tso Hon Sai, Bosco, Leung Siu Hong were 
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the 
Group.

(b) On 12 April 2016, Dai Lifeng was appointed as executive 
director of the Group.

(c) On 11 November 2016, Wu Li Xin was appointed as 
executive director and Wong Yiu Kit Ernest was appointed 
as independent non-executive director of the Group. On 1 
November 2016, Wu Li Xin was appointed as CEO of the 
Group.

(d) On 15 December 2016, Lu Zefeng was appointed as non-
executive director and Law Fei Shing was resigned as 
independent non-executive director of the Group.

(e) Chung Wai Man were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Group on 25 June 2015 and were 
resigned on 1 November 2016.

(f) On 27 July 2015, Fong Man Kelvin, Fong Nga and Mak Yiu 
Cho resigned as executive directors and Wong Sui Chi, Wong 
Hak Kun Jerry, Frostick Stephen William and Liu Cheng 
Zhong were resigned as independent non-executive directors 
of the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2016, HK$930,521 
(2015: nil) was paid by the Group to Wu Li Xin as an 
inducement to join or upon joining the Group and no (2015: 
nil) inducement paid by the Group to any of the directors as 
compensation for loss of office.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year 
included two (2015: one) director whose emoluments are 
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments 
of the remaining three (2015: four) individuals are set out 
below:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Salaries, wages and allowances 薪金、工資及津貼 4,816,667 1,965,947
Pension obligations 退休金責任 54,000 34,515

  4,870,667 2,000,462

9. 董事薪酬（續）
(a) 各董事之薪酬載列如下：（續）

附註：

(a) 於二零一五年六月二十五日，黃

雲獲委任為執行董事及曹漢璽、

梁兆康獲委任為本集團獨立非執

行董事。

(b) 於二零一六年四月十二日，戴立

峰獲委任為本集團執行董事。

(c) 於二零一六年十一月十一日，吳

立新獲委任為執行董事而黃耀傑

獲委任為本集團獨立非執行董

事。於二零一六年十一月一日，

吳立新獲委任為本集團行政總裁。

(d) 於二零一六年十二月十五日，陸

澤峰獲委任為非執行董事而羅輝

城辭任本集團獨立非執行董事。

(e) 鍾偉文於二零一五年六月二十五

日獲委任為本集團獨立非執行董

事並於二零一六年十一月一日辭

任。

(f) 於二零一五年七月二十七日，方

文、巫曼因及麥耀祖辭任執行董

事及黃瑞熾、黃克勤、Frostick 
Stephen William及劉承忠辭任本
集團獨立非執行董事。

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一

日止年度，本集團向吳立新支付

930,521港元（二零一五年：無）作
為加入或加入本集團時的獎勵，而

本集團並未向任何董事支付任何款

項（二零一五年：無）作為離職補償。

(b) 五名最高薪人士

年內，本集團五名最高薪人士包括

兩名（二零一五年：一名）董事，酬

金於上文呈列之分析中反映。其餘

三名（二零一五年：四名）人士的酬

金載列如下：
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9. DIReCtoRs’ eMoLUMents (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

 number of individuals
 人數

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 零港元至1,000,000港元 — 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001港元至1,500,000港元 1 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001港元至2,000,000港元 2 —

  3 4

During the year, HK$930,521 emoluments were paid by 
the Group to the highest paid individuals of the Group as 
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group and no 
emoluments were paid by the Group as compensation for 
loss of office.

10. otHeR InCoMe

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Interest income on non-current rental  按攤銷成本列賬的非流動

 deposits carried at amortised cost  租賃按金利息收入 — 84,225
Bank interest income 銀行利息收入 3,808 1,662
Income from TV drama series 電視劇收入 309,696 —
Others 其他 738,359 639,164

  1,051,863 725,051

9. 董事薪酬（續）

(b) 五名最高薪人士（續）

酬金範圍如下 :

年內，本集團向本集團之最高薪人

士支付930,521港元作為吸引加入
或加入本集團時之獎勵，而本集團

並無支付任何酬金作為離職補償。

10. 其他收入
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11. FInAnCe Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Finance cost on asset retirement  報廢資產復原債務的融資成本

 obligations  184,098 186,990
Interest on overdue payments 逾期付款的利息 — 306
Imputed interest costs  可換股債券應歸利息成本

 on convertible bonds  5,969,397 —

  6,153,495 187,296
Amount capitalised 資本化金額 (95,973) —

  6,057,522 187,296

12. InCoMe tAX (CReDIt)/eXPenses

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Deferred income tax (Note 19) 遞延所得稅（附註19） (2,200,814) 430,064

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and the 
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group 
has no assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 2016 
and 2015. The amount provided for the year ended 31 December 
2016 was calculated at 16.5% based on the assessable profit for 
the year.

No provision for PRC corporate income tax is required since the 
Group has no assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 
2016 and 2015. The amount provided for the year ended  
31 December 2016 was provided at the rate of 25% for the year.

11. 融資成本

融資成本分析如下：

12. 所得稅（抵免）╱開支

本集團於開曼群島及英屬處女群島（「英屬

處女群島」）毋須繳納稅項。

由於本集團於截至二零一六年及二零一五

年十二月三十一日止年度並無應課稅溢

利，故無須就香港利得稅計提撥備。於截

至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度撥備

之金額乃以本年度之應課稅溢利為基準按

稅率16.5%計算。

由於本集團於截至二零一六年及二零一五

年十二月三十一日止年度並無應課稅溢

利，故無須就中國企業所得稅計提撥備。

於截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度

撥備之金額乃以本年度稅率25%計提撥
備。
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12. InCoMe tAX (CReDIt)/eXPenses (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the 
product of loss before tax multiplied by tax rates applicable to 
profit or loss in the respective countries is as follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Loss before taxation 除稅前虧損 (100,490,047) (123,405,540)

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates  按適用於各國損益

 applicable to profits or loss in   的當地稅率計算的稅項
 the respective countries  (19,947,420) (24,283,372)
Tax effect of expenses that  不可扣除開支的稅務影響

 are not deductible  15,685,581 15,473,494
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 未確認稅項虧損的稅務影響 3,423,178 7,532,042
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not 使用先前未確認稅項虧損的

 previously recognised  稅務影響 (109,060) —
Tax effect of income not taxable 無須課稅收入的稅務影響 (567) —
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 分佔合資公司業績的稅務影響 — 1,707,900
Over-provision in prior years 以前年度超額撥備 (1,343,360) —
Unrecognised temporary difference 未確認暫時性差額 90,834 —

Income tax (credit)/expenses 所得稅（抵免）╱開支 (2,200,814) 430,064

12. 所得稅（抵免）╱開支（續）

所得稅開支與除稅前虧損乘以適用於各國

損益的稅率之乘積的對賬如下：
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13. Loss FoR tHe YeAR

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the 
following:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Auditor’s remuneration* 核數師酬金 * 1,000,000 1,200,000
Depreciation of property, plant  物業、廠房及設備折舊

 and equipment  4,211,016 4,691,183
Written off of amounts due  撇銷應收合資公司款項

 from joint ventures  — 2,112,528
Minimum lease payment under  經營租賃最低租賃付款

 operating lease  11,832,887 17,057,985
Net foreign exchange loss* 匯兌虧損淨額 * 82 106,855
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,  出售物業、廠房及設備

 plant, and equipment*  之（收益）╱虧損 * (611) 70,170
Share-based payment arising from  發行可換股債券產生

 the issue of convertible bonds  之以股份為基礎之付款 1,485,008 —
Impairment of property, plant  物業、廠房及設備減值（附註 (a)）
 and equipment (Note (a))  597,891 —
Impairment of other receivables 其他應收款項減值 18,700,000 —
Written off of property, plant 
 and equipment (Note (a)) 撇銷物業、廠房及設備（附註 (a)） 29,379,804 41,509,239
Written off of prepaid operating leases  撇銷預付經營租賃（附註 (b)）
 (Note (b))  8,931,190 618,338
Written off of rental deposits* 撇銷租賃按金 * 449,464 732,364
Written off of prepayments (Note (a)) 撇銷預付款項（附註 (a)） 1,100,000 23,864,028
Written off of other receivables* 撇銷其他應收款項 * — 552,484
Written off of trade receivables* 撇銷應收賬款 * — 7,441,883

Note:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2016, construction in progress 
of HK$29,379,804 (2015: HK$27,365,278) and prepayments of 
HK$1,100,000 (2015: HK$20,201,025) were written off as a result of 
the termination of developments of two hotels (2015: three hotels). 
Property, plant and equipment amount to HK$597,891 (2015: nil) 
were impaired in respected to one budget hotel in PRC is foreseed 
to make loss in the future.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the written off of prepaid 
operating leases of HK$8,931,190 (2015: HK$618,338) were written 
off as a result of the termination on one (2015: two) hotels.

* These items are included in “Other operating expenses” of the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

13. 本年度虧損

本集團於本年度之虧損乃經扣除╱（計入）

下列項目呈列：

附註：

(a) 截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年

度，由於終止開發兩間（二零一五年：三

間）酒店，撇銷在建工程29,379,804港
元（二零一五年：27,365,278港元）及
預付款項1,100,000港元（二零一五年：
20,201,025港元）。就中國的一間經濟型
酒店錄得物業、廠房及設備減值597,891
港元（二零一五年：無），預計該酒店未

來將錄得虧損。

(b) 截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年

度，由於一間（二零一五年：兩間）酒店

停業，撇銷預付經營租賃8,931,190港元
（二零一五年：618,338港元）。

* 該等項目乃列入綜合損益表中的「其他經

營開支」內。
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14. DIVIDenD

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for 
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

15. Loss PeR sHARe

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners 
of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable 
to owners of the Company of HK$98,289,233 (2015: 
HK$123,835,604) and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares of 393,525,000 (2015: 349,688,342) in issue 
during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

As the exercise of the Group’s outstanding convertible bonds 
for the year would be anti-dilutive and there was no dilutive 
potential ordinary shares for the Company’s outstanding 
options, the diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per 
share for both years.

14. 股息

於截至二零一六年及二零一五年十二月

三十一日止年度，董事概無建議派付任何

股息。

15. 每股虧損

(a) 每股基本虧損

本公司擁有人應佔每股基本虧損

的計算乃基於本公司擁有人應佔

本 年 度 虧 損98,289,233港 元（ 二
零一五年：123,835,604港元）及
於本年度已發行普通股加權平均

數393,525,000股（ 二 零 一 五 年：
349,688,342股）。

(b) 每股攤薄虧損

因於年內行使本集團尚未行使之可

換股債券具有反攤薄作用且概無有

關本公司之尚未行使購股權之潛在

攤薄普通股，故兩個年度之每股攤

薄虧損與每股基本虧損相同。
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16. PRoPeRtY, PLAnt AnD eQUIPMent

    Furniture 
   Leasehold  and office  Motor Construction 
   improvements fixtures equipments vehicles in progress total
   租賃物業裝修 傢俬及裝置 辦公室設備 汽車 在建工程 總額
  Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  附註 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元 港元

COST: 成本：

 1 January 2015  於二零一五年一月一日  53,222,037 6,601,638 1,363,037 2,700,847 57,830,113 121,717,672
 Additions  添置  9,464,095 1,501,031 1,490,187 — — 12,455,313
 Disposal  出售  — — — (1,941,752) — (1,941,752)
 Written off  撇銷  (49,832,556) (2,598,064) (309,029) (754,696) (27,365,278) (80,859,623)
 Exchange realignment  匯兌調整  (792,476) (176,394) (40,654) (4,399) (484,938) (1,498,861)

At 31 December 2015 and 於二零一五年十二月三十一日及

 1 January 2016  二零一六年一月一日  12,061,100 5,328,211 2,503,541 — 29,979,897 49,872,749
 Additions  添置  416,777 233,565 45,051 703,755 915,929 2,315,077
 Disposal  出售  — (7,330) — — — (7,330)
 Written off  撇銷 (a) — — — — (29,379,804) (29,379,804)
 Exchange realignment  匯兌調整  (502,176) (339,396) (89,263) — (600,093) (1,530,928)

At 31 December 2016 於二零一六年十二月三十一日  11,975,701 5,215,050 2,459,329 703,755 915,929 21,269,764

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  累計折舊及減值：
 AND IMPAIRMENT:
 1 January 2015  二零一五年一月一日  35,012,639 6,527,892 1,033,827 1,830,473 — 44,404,831
 Charge for the year  年內計提  4,423,287 52,913 108,152 106,831 — 4,691,183
 Eliminated on disposal  出售撇銷  — — — (1,179,749) — (1,179,749)
 Eliminated on written off  於撇銷時對銷 (b) (35,919,733) (2,579,155) (96,800) (754,696) — (39,350,384)
 Exchange realignment  匯兌調整  (561,648) (172,670) (34,605) (2,859) — (771,782)

At 31 December 2015 and 於二零一五年十二月三十一日及

 1 January 2016  二零一六年一月一日  2,954,545 3,828,980 1,010,574 — — 7,794,099
 Charge for the year  年內計提  3,413,650 341,033 327,311 129,022 — 4,211,016
 Eliminated on disposal  出售撇銷  — (611) — — — (611)
 Impairment loss for the  年內減值虧損
  year  (c) 563,387 22,939 11,565 — — 597,891
 Exchange realignment  匯兌調整  (84,562) (329,223) (85,955) — — (499,740)

At 31 December 2015 於二零一五年十二月三十一日  6,847,020 3,863,118 1,263,495 129,022 — 12,102,655

CARRYING AMOUNTS: 賬面值：

At 31 December 2016 於二零一六年十二月三十一日  5,128,681 1,351,932 1,195,834 574,733 915,929 9,167,109

At 31 December 2015 於二零一五年十二月三十一日  9,106,555 1,499,231 1,492,967 — 29,979,897 42,078,650

16. 物業、廠房及設備
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16. PRoPeRtY, PLAnt AnD eQUIPMent 
(Continued)

Note:

(a) Construction in progress of HK$29,379,804 (2015: HK$27,365,278) 
were written off as a result of the termination of developments of two 
hotels (2015: two hotels).

(b) Dur ing the year ended 31 December 2015, ( i )  leasehold 
improvements of HK$9,918,976 was written off due to rental 
agreement of the head office in the PRC was terminated; (ii) three 
operating hotels’ leasehold improvement of HK$2,963,020 were 
written off due to the operating hotels were renovated; and (iii) a 
sub-leased hotel’s leasehold improvement of HK$857,143 was 
written off due to the sub-leased hotel agreement with a tenant was 
terminated.

(c) During the year, the group has impaired property, plant and 
equipment amount to HK$597,891 (2015: HK$ Nil) due to an 
operating budgeted hotel in PRC expected to make loss in the future 
years.

(d) During the year, the Group had capitalised borrowing costs 
amounting to HK$95,973 (2015: HK$Nil) (Note 11) on qualifying 
assets.

16. 物業、廠房及設備（續）

附註：

(a) 由於終止開發兩間酒店（二零一五年：兩

間酒店），撇銷在建工程29,379,804港元
（二零一五年：27,365,278港元）。

(b) 截至二零一五年十二月三十一日止年

度，(i)因終止中國總辦事處的租賃協議
而撇銷租賃物業裝修費用9,918,976港
元；(ii)因年內翻新運營中的酒店而撇銷
三間運營中的酒店的租賃物業裝修費用

2,963,020港元；及 (iii)因終止與一名租
戶的酒店分租協議而撇銷一間分租酒店

的租賃物業裝修費用857,143港元。

(c) 於本年度，由於位於中國的一間運營中

的經濟型酒店預期於日後年度出現虧

損，故本集團已對物業﹑廠房及設備作

出減值597,891港元（二零一五年：零港
元）。

(d) 於本年度，本集團已就合資格資產資本

化借貸成本95,973港元（二零一五年：
零港元）（附註11）。
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17. PRePAYMents, DePosIts AnD otHeR 
ReCeIVABLes

   2016 2015
   二零一六年 二零一五年

  Notes HK$ HK$
  附註 港元 港元

Prepayments and deposit paid 預付款項及已付按金
Prepayment 預付款項 (a) 7,180,044 —
Prepaid operating lease 預付經營租賃 (b) — 9,256,945
Deposits paid 已付按金 (c) 23,988,000 —
Others 其他  762,008 1,521,287

   31,930,052 10,778,232

Deposits 按金
Rental deposits 租賃按金  3,241,518 3,493,002

other receivables 其他應收款項 (d) 21,000,000 18,808,762

Total prepayments, deposits  預付款項、按金

 and other receivables  及其他應收款項總額  56,171,570 33,079,996

The amounts of prepayments,  預付款項、按金及其他應收

 deposits and other receivables  款項金額分析如下：
 are analysed as follows:

non-current portion 非流動部分
Deposits paid 已付按金  23,988,000 —
Rental deposits 租賃按金  3,241,518 3,493,002
Prepaid operating lease 預付經營租賃  — 8,406,356
Prepayment and other receivables 預付款項及其他應收款項  7,180,044 2,000,000

   34,409,562 13,899,358

Current portion 流動部分
Prepayments and deposit paid 預付款項及已付按金  762,008 1,521,287
Prepaid operating lease 預付經營租賃  — 850,589
Other receivables 其他應收款項  21,000,000 16,808,762

   21,762,008 19,180,638

   56,171,570 33,079,996

17. 預付款項、按金及其他應收款
項
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17. PRePAYMents, DePosIts AnD otHeR 
ReCeIVABLes (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The amount of HK$7,180,044 represented the payments for 
enhancements for the PRC budget hotels.

(b) Prepaid operating lease of HK$9,256,945 included an amount of 
HK$8,931,190 written off during the year due to the management 
had not been able to find suitable new lessee to sublease the hotel 
premise in PRC.

(c) The amount of HK$23,988,000 represented deposit paid for 
proposed acquisition of 51% equity interest in a hotel.

(d) The amount of HK$21,000,000 represented refundable deposits 
paid for leasehold improvement and are refunded in January 2017.

18. otHeR Asset

  HK$
  港元

Cost: 成本：
 At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016  於二零一五年十二月三十一日及二零一六年一月一日 1,440,000
 Additions  添置 1,440,000

 At 31 December 2016 於二零一六年十二月三十一日 2,880,000

ACCUMULAteD DePReCIAtIon: 累計折舊：
 At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016  於二零一五年十二月三十一日及二零一六年一月一日 —
 Charge for the year  年內計提 480,000

 At 31 December 2016  於二零一六年十二月三十一日 480,000

CARRYInG AMoUnts: 賬面值：
 At 31 December 2016  於二零一六年十二月三十一日 2,400,000

 At 31 December 2015  於二零一五年十二月三十一日 1,440,000

The amount represents an investment in production of a TV drama 
series.

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has 
signed an agreement with an independent third party at a 
total contract amount of HK$2,880,000 (representing a 20% 
interest in the right on the TV drama series). During the year 
ended 31 December 2016, the interest in the right on the TV 
drama series changed to 25%. The copyright and ancillary 
income expected to be generated from this TV drama series 
would, after deducting the relevant expenses, be allocated to 
the Group by the interest of such investment.

(b) The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of 
its film rights with average useful life of one and half years 
in 2016 with regard to the market conditions of the Group’s 
products.

17. 預付款項、按金及其他應收款
項（續）
附註：

(a) 7,180,044港元為優化中國經濟型酒店的
款項。

(b) 由於管理層未能找到合適的新承租人分

租中國的酒店物業，故預付經營租賃

開支9,256,945港元包括於年內撇銷的
8,931,190港元。

(c) 23,988,000港元為建議收購一間酒店
51%股權的已付按金。

(d) 21,000,000港元為就租賃物業裝修已付
的可退還按金，且已於二零一七年一月

退還。

18. 其他資產

該金額為對製作一部電視連續劇的投資。

(a) 於截至二零一五年十二月三十一日

止年度，本集團已與一名獨立第三

方簽訂一份協議，合約總金額為

2,880,000港元（於有關電視連續劇
之權利中佔20%權益）。於截至二零
一六年十二月三十一日止年度，於

有關電視連續劇之權利中所佔權益

變為25%。在扣除相關費用後，由
該電視連續劇所產生的版權和其他

收入將按該投資之權益比例分配予

本集團。

(b) 經考慮本集團產品之市場情況，本

集團已於二零一六年檢討其影片權

利之可收回金額，而平均使用年期

為一年半。
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19. DeFeRReD InCoMe tAX Assets

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by the 
Group.

  Decelerated
  tax
  depreciation Provisions tax loss total
  遞減稅項折舊 撥備 稅項虧損 總額
  HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  港元 港元 港元 港元

At 1 January 2015 於二零一五年一月一日 213,601 1,474,783 — 1,688,384
Debited to profit or loss  年內扣自損益（附註12）
 for the year (Note 12)  (10,219) (419,845) — (430,064)
Exchange differences 匯兌差額 (7,033) (65,150) — (72,183)

At 31 December 2015  於二零一五年十二月三十一日

 and 1 January 2016  及二零一六年一月一日 196,349 989,788 — 1,186,137
Debited/(credited) to profit or  年內扣自╱（計入）損益
 loss for the year (Note 12)  （附註12） 1,002,778 (126,560) 1,324,596 2,200,814
Exchange differences 匯兌差額 (61,425) (79,261) (58,894) (199,580)

At 31 December 2016 於二零一六年十二月三十一日 1,137,702 783,967 1,265,702 3,187,371

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry 
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit 
through future taxable profits is probable. As of 31 December 
2016, the Group does not recognise deferred income tax assets 
of HK$13,658,704 (2015: HK$11,816,632) in respect of losses 
amounting to HK$69,719,338 (2015: HK$52,259,975) that can be 
carried forward against taxable income. Included in unrecognised 
tax losses are losses of HK$25,353,093 (2015: HK$37,573,367) 
that will expire in 2021. Other tax losses may be carried forward 
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of 
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of 
subsidiaries and joint ventures for which deferred tax liabilities 
have not been recognised is HK$439,911 (2015: HK$362,732). 
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences 
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of 
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

19. 遞延所得稅資產

下文為本集團確認的主要遞延稅項資產。

倘有關稅務利益可能透過抵銷未來應課稅

溢利變現，則會就所結轉之稅項虧損確

認遞延所得稅資產。截至二零一六年十二

月三十一日，本集團並無就可作結轉以抵

銷應課稅收入之虧損69,719,338港元（二
零一五年：52,259,975港元）確認遞延所
得稅資產13,658,704港元（二零一五年：
11,816,632港元）。未確認稅項虧損包括
將於二零二一年到期之25,353,093港元
（二零一五年：37,573,367港元）之虧損。
其他稅項虧損可無限期向日後結轉。

於報告期末，有關就附屬公司及合資公司

未分派盈利未確認遞延稅項負債的暫時性

差異總額為439,911港元（二零一五年：
362,732港元）。由於本集團可以控制暫時
性差異撥回的時間，且該差異於可見將來

可能不會撥回，故並未就上述差異確認負

債。
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20. tRADe ReCeIVABLes

The majority of the Group’s revenue from hotel operations are 
made via credit cards or cash. Hotel rooms are rented to corporate 
customers with an appropriate credit history on credit terms of 
30 days. Trade receivables of HK$17,805 (2015: HK$19,624) 
were past due but not impaired. Management considered that 
no recoverability problem on these trade balances as a result of 
subsequent settlement received up to the date of this report and 
the agreement of the revised repayment schedule with certain 
trade debtors.

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Trade receivables 應收賬款 64,555 262,600

The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Neither past due nor impaired 無逾期亦無減值 46,750 242,976

0-30 days past due 逾期0至30天 1,017 —
31-60 days past due 逾期31至60天 848 11,240
61-90 days past due 逾期61至90天 — 1,176
91-120 days past due 逾期91至120天 431 568
121-365 days past due 逾期121至365天 15,509 6,640

  17,805 19,624

  64,555 262,600

20. 應收賬款

本集團的酒店營運收益主要以信用卡或現

金結算。本集團為擁有合適信貸記錄的

企業客戶提供三十天的酒店客房租賃信貸

期。應收賬款17,805港元（二零一五年：
19,624港元）已逾期但並無減值。管理層
認為，由於截至本報告日期已收到其後結

算款項，並已與客戶就若干應收貿易賬款

之經修訂還款計劃達成協議，故該等貿易

結餘的收回並無問題。

該等應收賬款之賬齡分析如下：
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20. tRADe ReCeIVABLes (Continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables 
during the year are as follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

At 1 January 於一月一日 — 5,056,412
Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 — (77,991)
Amounts written off 撇銷金額 — (4,978,421)

At 31 December 於十二月三十一日 — —

21. ConVeRtIBLe BonDs

The convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) were issued on 14 June 
2016. The Bonds are convertible into ordinary shares of the 
Company at any time between the date of issue of the Bonds and 
the business day immediately prior to the maturity date (i.e. one 
year from the date of issue of the Bonds or if such date is not a 
business day the next business day). The face value of the bonds 
is HK$51,000,000. The Bonds are convertible to 54,838,708 
shares per HK$0.93 bond.

If the Bonds have not been converted, the Company will pay to 
the holders of the Bonds an amount equal to the aggregate of (i) 
100% of the principal amount of the Bonds outstanding; (ii) interest 
accrued and outstanding pursuant to terms and conditions of 
the Bonds; and (iii) a premium of 7% per annum of the principal 
amount of the Bonds outstanding. Interest of 8 per cent will be 
paid annually up until that the business day immediately prior to 
the maturity date (i.e. one year from the date of issue of the Bonds 
or if such date is not a business day, the next business day).

If the maturity date is extended or postponed pursuant to the 
terms and conditions of the Bonds, upon maturity of the Bonds on 
such extended maturity date, the Company will pay to the holders 
of the Bonds an amount equal to the aggregate of (i) 100% of the 
principal amount of the Bonds outstanding; (ii) interest accrued 
and outstanding pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 
Bonds; and (iii) a premium of 15% of the principal amount of the 
Bonds outstanding.

20. 應收賬款（續）

本年度應收賬款減值撥備之變動如下：

21. 可換股債券

本公司於二零一六年六月十四日發行可換

股債券（「債券」）。債券可於債券發行日

期至緊接到期日前之營業日（即債券發行

日期起計一年或倘該日期並非營業日，則

下一個營業日）隨時轉換為本公司之普通

股。債券面值為51,000,000港元。債券可
按每份債券0.93港元轉換為54,838,708
股股份。

倘債券未獲轉換，本公司將向債券持有人

支付相當於以下各項總和之金額：(i)債券
未償還本金額之100%；(ii)根據債券的條
款及條件之應計及未支付利息；及 (iii)債券
未償還本金額之每年7%溢價。8%之利息
將按年支付，直至緊接到期日前之營業日

（即債券發行日期起計一年或倘該日期並

非營業日，則下一個營業日）為止。

倘到期日根據債券的條款及條件延遲或推

遲，債券於有關經延遲到期日到期時，

本公司將向債券持有人支付相當於以下

各項總和之金額：(i)債券未償還本金額之
100%；(ii)根據債券的條款及條件之應計
及未支付利息；及 (iii)債券未償還本金額之
15%溢價。
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21. ConVeRtIBLe BonDs (Continued)

The net proceeds received from the issue of the Bonds have been 
split between the liability element and an equity component, as 
follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Fair value of the Bonds issued 已發行債券公平值 52,485,008 —
Issue cost 發行成本 (1,000,000) —
Equity component 權益部分 (4,301,492) —

Liability component at date of issue 於發行日期之負債部分 47,183,516 —
Interest charged (Note 11) 利息支出（附註11） 5,969,397 —

Liability component at 31 December 2016 於二零一六年

  十二月三十一日之負債部分 53,152,913 —

The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an 
effective interest rate of 22.88 per cent to the liability component.

Mr. Ding Yifan, the controlling shareholder of the Company, 
guaranteed the due payment of all sums expressed to be payable 
by the Company under the terms and conditions of the Bonds and 
pursuant to a personal guarantee given by Mr. Ding Yifan.

21. 可換股債券（續）

發行債券之所得款項淨額於負債部分與權

益部分之間分配如下：

本年度負債部分之利息支出乃按實際利率

22.88%計算。

本公司控股股東丁一凡先生擔保本公司根

據債券之條款及條件及根據丁一凡先生作

出的個人擔保妥為支付應付的所有款項。
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22. tRADe AnD otHeR PAYABLes

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Trade payables 應付賬款 218,855 2,124,015
Accruals and other payables 應計項目及其他應付款項 9,577,749 10,842,324

  9,796,604 12,966,339

The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

0-30 days 0至30天 155,256 729,766
31-60 days 31至60天 34,054 379,780
61-90 days 61至90天 10,669 266,170
Over 90 days 超過90天 18,876 748,299

  218,855 2,124,015

Accruals and other payables are analysed as follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Accruals 應計項目
Accrued staff costs 應計員工成本 2,775,644 695,993
Accrued audit and professional fee 應計審核及專業費用 1,205,023 1,266,000
Accrued effective rental payable 應計實際租金應付款項 1,203,757 3,989,898

  5,184,424 5,951,891

other payables 其他應付款項
Other tax payables 其他應付稅項 3,194,528 3,321,738
Payables to hotel constructors 應付酒店施工人員款項 757,020 757,020
Receipt in advance 預收款項 8,879 194,760
Others 其他 432,898 616,915

  4,393,325 4,890,433

total accruals and other payables 應計項目及其他應付款項總額 9,577,749 10,842,324

22. 應付賬款及其他應付款項

應付賬款的賬齡分析如下：

應計項目及其他應付款項的分析載列如

下：
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23. PRoVIsIon FoR Asset RetIReMent

Under the terms of the tenancy agreements signed with landlords, 
the Group shall vacate and re-instate the leased hotel premises at 
the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy agreements 
in 5 to 10 years (2015: 5 to 10 years). Provision is therefore made 
for the best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be 
incurred. Movements of provision for asset retirement are as 
follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

At 1 January 於一月一日 3,959,157 3,907,830
Finance cost on asset retirement  報廢資產復原債務的融資成本

 obligation (Note 11)  （附註11） 184,098 186,990
Exchange differences 匯兌差額 (347,739) (135,663)

At 31 December 於十二月三十一日 3,795,516 3,959,157
Less: non-current portion 減：非即期部分 (3,135,871) (3,959,157)

Current portion 即期部分 659,645 —

24. sHARe CAPItAL

   number of 
   shares Amount
   股份數目 金額
  Notes  HK$
  附註  港元

Authorised: 法定：

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01  每股面值0.01港元
 (2015: HK$0.01) each  （二零一五年：0.01港元）的普通股
At 1 January 2015,  於二零一五年一月一日、

 31 December 2015,   二零一五年十二月三十一日、
 1 January 2016 and   二零一六年一月一日及
 31 December 2016  二零一六年十二月三十一日  780,000,000 7,800,000

Issued and fully paid: 已發行及繳足：

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01  每股面值0.01港元
 (2015: HK$0.01) each  （二零一五年：0.01港元）的普通股
At 1 January 2015 於二零一五年一月一日  261,770,001 2,617,701
Exercise of share options 行使購股權  750,000 7,500
Issue of shares upon placing 配售發行股份 (a) 52,300,000 523,000
Issue of shares upon open offer 公開發售發行股份 (b) 78,704,999 787,049

At 31 December 2015,  於二零一五年十二月三十一日、

 1 January 2016 and  二零一六年一月一日及
 31 December 2016  二零一六年十二月三十一日  393,525,000 3,935,250

23. 報廢資產復原撥備
根據與業主簽訂的租賃協議條款，本集團

須於相關租賃協議租期（五至十年）（二零

一五年：五至十年）屆滿後由本集團出資

搬離及還原酒店租賃物業。因此已對預期

產生的還原成本以最貼近的估計進行撥

備。報廢資產復原撥備的變動如下：

24. 股本
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24. sHARe CAPItAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a) On 22 December 2014, the Company and Emperor Securities 
Limited entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placement 
of 52,300,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to independent 
investors at a price of HK$0.66 per share. The placement was 
completed on 9 January 2015 and net proceeds from such issue 
amounted to HK$33,930,215, out of which HK$523,000 and 
HK$33,407,215 were recorded in share capital and share premium, 
respectively.

(b) On 16 October 2015, the Company issued and allotted 78,704,999 
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.8 per 
ordinary share on the basis of one offer share for every four shares 
held on 21 September 2015, the record date of the open offer. Net 
proceeds from such issue amounted to HK$62,503,145, out of 
which HK$787,049 and HK$61,716,096 were recorded in share 
capital and share premium, respectively.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard 
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise 
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt 
and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The 
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments 
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of 
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, 
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted 
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted 
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash 
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity 
(i.e. share capital, share premium and other reserves) and includes 
some forms of subordinated debts.

24. 股本（續）

附註：

(a) 於二零一四年十二月二十二日，本公

司與英皇證券 (香港 )有限公司就向獨
立投資者以每股0.66港元的價格配售
52,300,000股每股面值0.01港元的普通
股訂立一項配售協議。配售於二零一五

年一月九日完成，發行股份的所得款項

淨額為33,930,215港元，其中523,000
港元及33,407,215港元乃分別計入股本
及股份溢價。

(b) 於二零一五年十月十六日，本公司按於

二零一五年九月二十一日（公開發售之

記錄日期）每持有四股股份獲配發一股

發售股份之基準以每股普通股0.8港元
之發行價發行及配發78,704,999股每股
面值0.01港元之普通股。自有關發行所
得款項淨額為62,503,145港元，其中
787,049港元及61,716,096港元分別計
入股本及股份溢價。

本集團資本管理的目標是保障本集團能繼

續營運，並通過優化資本負債比率給予股

東最大回報。

本集團按比例設定風險資本金額。本集團

管理其資本結構，並因應經濟狀況及相關

資產風險特徵的變化而調整。為了維持或

調整資本結構，本集團可能會調整股息支

付，發行新股份，回購股份，融入新債，

贖回現有債務或出售資產以減少債務。

本集團根據負債與調整后資本比率來監管

資本。該比率為負債淨額除以調整後資

本所得。負債淨額乃按借貸總額減現金及

現金等價物計算。調整後資本由全部權益

（即股本、股份溢價及其他儲備）組成，並

包括某種形式的次級債務。
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25. sHARe-BAseD PAYMents

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) 
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible 
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s 
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include employee 
and business associate of the Group. The Scheme became 
effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or 
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently 
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount 
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the 
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares 
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the 
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares 
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of shares 
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval 
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial 
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are 
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive 
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial 
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the 
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the 
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate 
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of 
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, 
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general 
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal 
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period 
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and 
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date 
which is not later than ten years from the date of the offer of the 
share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the 
Directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock 
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of 
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange 
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days 
immediately preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or 
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

25. 以股份為基礎之付款

本公司現行運作一項購股權計劃（「該計

劃」），以向對本集團業務成就作出貢獻之

合資格參與者提供激勵及獎勵。該計劃合

資格參與者包括本集團員工及業務夥伴。

該計劃於二零一一年六月二十二日生效，

且除非獲另行取消或修改，將於自生效日

起10年內有效。

目前根據該計劃批准授出之未獲行使購股

權最高數目，於行使時，相等於本公司於

任何時候已發行股份之30%。每名合資
格參與該計劃之人士於任何十二個月期間

內根據購股權計劃可獲發行之最高股份數

目不得超過本公司於任何時候已發行股份

1%。任何授出超過此上限之購股權須於
股東大會獲股東批准。

授出購股權予本公司董事、主要行政人員

或主要股東或彼等聯繫人，須事先經獨立

非執行董事批准。另外，任何授出購股權

予本公司主要股東或本公司獨立非執行董

事或彼等聯繫人，於任何十二個月期間內

任何時間多於本公司已發行股份0.1%或
按本公司股份於授出日期價格計算總值超

過5,000,000港元，須事先於股東大會獲
股東批准。

授出購股權之要約可於要約日起28日內
接受，承授人須繳付合共1港元之名義上
代價。授出的購股權之行使期限由董事決

定，於一段歸屬期後開始，並於不遲於購

股權要約日起十年或該計劃之到期日（以

較早者為準）終止。

購股權行使價由董事決定，惟不得低於 (i)
購股權要約日本公司股份在聯交所收市

價；及 (ii)緊接要約日前五個交易日本公
司股份在聯交所平均收市價（以較高者為

準）。

購股權並不賦予持有人享有股息或於股東

大會上投票之權利。



112 朸濬國際集團控股有限公司
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

notes to the Consolidated Financial statements
綜合財務報表附註
For the year ended 31 December 2016 截至二零一六年十二月三十一日止年度

25. sHARe-BAseD PAYMents (Continued)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

Date of grant Vesting period exercise period expiry date exercise price
授出日期 歸屬期 行使期間 屆滿日期 行使價
    HK$
    港元

8 October 2013 No vesting period 8 October 2013 to  7 October 2015 1.822
   7 October 2015
二零一三年十月八日 無歸屬期 二零一三年十月八日至 二零一五年十月七日

   二零一五年十月七日

Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as 
follows:

 2016 2015
 二零一六年 二零一五年

   Weighted   Weighted 
    average   average 
  number of share exercise  Number of share  exercise
  options price options  price
  購股權數目 加權平均 購股權數目 加權平均

   行使價  行使價

   HK$  HK$
   港元  港元

Outstanding at the beginning  年初未行使

 of the year  — — 6,450,000 1.822
Exercised during the year 年內已行使 — — (750,000) 1.822
Expired during the year 年內已逾期 — — (5,700,000) 1.822

Outstanding at the end of the year 年終未行使 — — — —

Exercisable at the end of the year 年終可行使 — — — —

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share 
options exercised during the year ended 31 December 2015 was 
HK$2.16. In 2016 and 2015, no options were granted.

25. 以股份為基礎之付款（續）

具體類型購股權之詳情如下：

若僱員離開本集團，則會喪失購股權。

年內已授出的購股權詳情如下：

於截至二零一五年十二月三十一日止年

度，於行使日期已行使購股權的加權平均

股價為2.16港元。於二零一六年及二零
一五年，並無授出購股權。
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26. stAteMent oF FInAnCIAL PosItIon oF 
tHe CoMPAnY

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

non-current assets 非流動資產
Investments in subsidiaries 於附屬公司之投資 35,149,168 60,474,217
Rental deposits 租賃按金 1,794,895 1,794,895

  36,944,063 62,269,112

Current assets 流動資產
Prepayments 預付款項 445,600 1,484,696
Cash and cash equivalents 現金及現金等價物 216,369 40,536,769

  661,969 42,021,465

Current liabilities 流動負債
Convertible bonds 可換股債券 53,152,913 —
Due to subsidiaries 應付附屬公司款項 23 636,932
Accruals 應計費用 1,047,200 1,266,000

  54,200,136 1,902,932

net current (liabilities)/assets 淨流動（負債）╱資產 (53,538,167) 40,118,533

net (liabilities)/assets （負債）╱資產淨值 (16,594,104) 102,387,645

eQUItY 權益
Share capital 股本 3,935,250 3,935,250
Reserves 儲備 (20,529,354) 98,452,395

Total (deficit)/equity （虧絀）╱權益總額 (16,594,104) 102,387,645

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 
March 2017.

Approved by:

 Huang Yun Dai Lifeng
 黃雲 戴立峰
 Director Director
 董事 董事

 Wu Li Xin
 吳立新
 Director
 董事

26. 本公司財務狀況表

於二零一七年三月三十日獲董事會

批准及授權刊發。

由以下人士審批：
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27. ReseRVes

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements 
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated 
statement of changes in equity.

(b) Company

   share-based Convertible
  share payment bonds equity  Accumulated
  premium reserve reserve losses total
   以股份為基礎之 可換股債券
  股份溢價 付款儲備 權益儲備 累計虧損 總額
  (Note (c)(i)) (Note (c)(iv)) (Note (c)(v))
  （附註 (c)(i)） （附註 (c)(iv)） （附註 (c)(v)）
  HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  港元 港元 港元 港元 港元

At 1 January 2015 於二零一五年一月一日 107,940,644 2,376,475 — (11,823,509) 98,493,610
Loss for the year 年內虧損 — — — (96,523,526) (96,523,526)
Exercise of share options  僱員行使購股權

 by employees  1,630,125 (271,125) — — 1,359,000
Issue of shares on placement 配售發行股份 33,995,000 — — — 33,995,000
Issue of shares on open offer 公開發售發行股份 62,176,948 — — — 62,176,948
Transaction costs attributable  配售應佔交易成本

 to placement  (587,785) — — — (587,785)
Transaction costs attributable  公開發售應佔交易成本

 to open offer  (460,852) — — — (460,852)
Lapse of share options 購股權失效 — (2,105,350) — 2,105,350 —

At 31 December 2015 and 於二零一五年十二月三十一日及

 1 January 2016  二零一六年一月一日 204,694,080 — — (106,241,685) 98,452,395
Loss for the year 年內虧損 — — — (123,283,241) (123,283,241)
Issue of convertible bonds 發行可換股債券 — — 4,301,492 — 4,301,492

At 31 December 2016 於二零一六年十二月三十一日 204,694,080 — 4,301,492 (229,524,926) (20,529,354)

27. 儲備

(a) 本集團

本集團儲備的金額及變動乃於綜合

損益及其他全面收入表以及綜合權

益變動表中列示。

(b) 本公司
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27. ReseRVes (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the 
funds in the share premium account of the Company 
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company 
provided that immediately following the date on 
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the 
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as 
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange 
differences arising from the translation of the financial 
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt 
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out 
in note 4 to the financial statements.

(iii) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, 
is appropriated from the profit after taxation of the 
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws 
and regulations in the PRC.

(iv) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair 
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised 
share options granted to employees of the Group 
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy 
adopted for equity-settled sharebased payments in 
note 25 to the financial statements.

27. 儲備（續）

(c) 儲備的性質及目的

(i) 股份溢價賬

根據開曼群島公司法，本公司

股份溢價賬的資金可分派予本

公司股東，惟緊隨建議派付

股息日期後本公司須有能力清

償於一般業務過程中到期的債

項。

(ii) 外匯儲備

外匯儲備由換算海外業務財務

報表產生的所有外匯差額構

成。該儲備乃根據財務報表附

註4所載的會計政策處理。

(iii) 法定儲備

法定儲備為不可分派，由本集

團中國附屬公司根據中國適用

法律及法規於除稅後溢利中轉

撥。

(iv) 以股份為基礎之付款

以股份為基礎之付款儲備指本

集團向僱員授出之未行使購股

權之實際或估計數目之公平

值，按財務報表附註25所載
就以權益結算以股份為基礎之

付款採納之會計政策確認。
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27. ReseRVes (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) Convertible bonds equity reserve

Under HKAS 32, convertible bonds issued are split 
into their liability and equity components at initial 
recognition by recognising the liability component at its 
fair value which is determined using market interest rate 
for equivalent non-convertible bonds and attributing 
to the equity component the difference between the 
fair value of the convertible bonds and the fair value 
of the liability component. The liability component is 
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity 
component is recognised in the convertible bonds 
equity reserve until the bonds are either converted 
(in which case it is transferred to share premium) or 
the bonds are redeemed (in which case it is released 
directly to retained earnings).

(vi) Other reserve

The other reserves represent the difference between 
the nominal value of the issued capital of Legend 
Strategy Limited, Lai Ying International Limited 
and Triple Leaf Limited, the then shareholders of 
Legend Strategy Limited and the nominal value of 
the 135,000,001 shares issued and allotted to the 
shareholders of the above companies by the Company.

28. ContInGent LIABILItIes

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant 
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

29. CAPItAL CoMMItMents

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting 
period are as follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Contracted but not provided for 已訂約但未撥備

 — Property, plant and equipment  — 物業、廠房及設備 — —
 — Other asset  — 其他資產 — 1,440,000

  — 1,440,000

27. 儲備（續）

(c) 儲備的性質及目的（續）

(v) 可換股債券權益儲備

根據香港會計準則第32號，
已發行可換股債券於初步確認

時分為負債及權益部分，負債

部分乃按採用等同不可換股債

券之市場利率釐定其公平值予

以確認，而可換股債券公平值

與負債部分公平值之差額則分

配至權益部分。負債部分其後

按攤銷成本列賬。權益部分於

可換股債券權益儲備確認，直

至可換股債券獲兌換（於此情

況下其將轉撥至股份溢價）或

可換股債券獲贖回（於此情況

下其將直接解除至保留溢利）。

(vi) 其他儲備

其他儲備指朸濬有限公司、勵

盈國際有限公司及朸濬有限公

司當時的股東三葉有限公司

之已發行股本面值與本公司向

上述公司股東發行及配發之

135,000,001股股份面值之間
的差額。

28. 或然負債

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，本集團並

無任何重大或然負債（二零一五年：無）。

29. 資本承擔

本集團於報告期末的資本承擔如下：
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30. oPeRAtInG LeAse CoMMItMents

The Group leases various hotel premises under non-cancellable 
operating lease agreements. The lease terms of the tenancy 
agreements are set out in Note 23. The leases have escalation 
clauses and renewal rights. The total future minimum lease 
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as 
follows:

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Within one year 一年內 15,314,521 18,664,303
In the second to fifth years inclusive 第二至第五年（包括首尾兩年） 16,054,412 46,141,030
After five years 五年後 — 11,276,410

  31,368,933 76,081,743

31. ReLAteD PARtY tRAnsACtIons

In addition to those related party transactions and balances 
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the 
following transactions with its related parties during the year.

(a) Key management compensation

  2016 2015
  二零一六年 二零一五年

  HK$ HK$
  港元 港元

Salaries, wages and allowance 薪金、工資及津貼 5,423,333 3,339,153
Pension obligations 退休金責任 57,000 88,781

  5,480,333 3,427,934

30. 經營租賃承擔

本集團的數個酒店物業以不可撤銷經營租

賃協議租賃。租賃協議的租期載列於附註

23。租賃合約內有自動加價條款及續租
權。不可撤銷經營租賃的未來應付最低租

賃付款總額如下：

31. 關連方交易

除財務報表其他內容披露的關連方交易及

結餘外，本集團於年內有以下關連方交

易。

(a) 主要管理人員補償
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32. LItIGAtIons

On 8 January 2016 the Company received a writ of summons 
endorsed with a statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”) 
dated 8 January 2016 (the “Writ”) issued by Fu Tat Credit 
Limited (the “Plaintiff”) as plaintiff in the High Court of the Court 
of First Instance (the “High Court”) of the Hong Kong Special 
Administrative Region (the “Action”), with Mr. Fong Man Kelvin (“Mr. 
Fong”) named as the 1st defendant and the Company as the 2nd 
defendant (subsequently becoming the fifth defendant pursuant 
to an amended Writ of Summons), in respect of an alleged 
loan arrangement made between the Plaintiff, Mr. Fong and the 
Company on 6 October 2014. At the relevant time, Mr. Fong was 
the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the 
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)), 
the chairman and executive director of the Company. Mr. Fong 
disposed of all his interest in the Company on or about 29 May 
2015 and resigned as the chairman, executive director, authorised 
representative and compliance officer of the Company on 27 July 
2015.

It was stated in the Statement of Claim that the Plaintiff, as a 
licensed money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance 
(Chapter 163 of the laws of Hong Kong), had entered into a loan 
agreement with Mr. Fong as the borrower and the Company 
as the guarantor on 6 October 2014 in respect of a sum of 
HK$3,500,000 (the “Loan”). Under the Statement of Claim, the 
Plaintiff claims against Mr. Fong and the Company for: (1) a sum of 
HK$2,092,871.02; (2) further interest accrued on the outstanding 
loan principal of HK$1,961,932.21 at the rate of 42% per annum 
from 6 January 2016 until payment in full; (3) further or other relief; 
and (4) costs of the proceedings on full indemnity basis. 

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 12 January 
2016, the Company denies and disputes the allegations made 
by the Plaintiff against the Company in the Statement of Claim. 
The Company has never authorised the provision of the alleged 
guarantee to the Plaintiff or anyone over the Loan nor has the 
Company ever passed any resolution to authorise the provision 
of the alleged guarantee over the Loan allegedly advanced by the 
Plaintiff to Mr. Fong. 

And as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 
23 December 2016, pursuant to the order granted by the High 
Court, the Plaintiff’s claim against the Company in the Action be 
dismissed with no order as to costs between the Plaintiff and the 
Company. The Action against the Company as a defendant has 
ceased. 

32. 訴訟

於二零一六年一月八日，本公司收到一份

日期為二零一六年一月八日之註有申索

陳述書（「申索陳述書」）之傳訊令狀（「令

狀」），為富達信貸有限公司（「原告」，作

為原告）在香港特別行政區高等法院原

訟法庭（「高等法院」）就方文先生（「方先

生」，作為第一被告）及本公司（作為第二

被告）（其後根據經修訂傳訊令狀成為第

五被告）發出（「法律行動」），內容有關原

告、方先生及本公司於二零一四年十月六

日作出之一項指稱貸款安排。於有關時

間，方先生為本公司控股股東（定義見聯

交所證券上市規則（「上市規則」））、主席

兼執行董事。方先生於二零一五年五月

二十九日或前後出售其於本公司之所有權

益，並於二零一五年七月二十七日辭任本

公司主席、執行董事、授權代表及合規主

任。

申索陳述書中註明，原告（作為香港法例

第163章放債人條例項下之持牌放債人）
已於二零一四年十月六日與方先生（作為

借款人）及本公司（作為擔保人）就有關金

額3,500,000港元（「該貸款」）訂立一份貸
款協議。根據申索陳述書，原告向方先生

及本公司申索：(1)金額2,092,871.02港
元；(2)自二零一六年一月六日起直至悉數
支付期間按年利率42%計尚未償還的貸款
本金金額1,961,932.21港元之應計進一步
利息；(3)進一步或其他補償；及 (4)悉數
彌償訴訟費。

誠如本公司二零一六年一月十二日之公告

所述，本公司否認及抗辯原告於申索陳述

書中針對本公司所作指控。本公司從未授

權就該貸款向原告或任何人士提供聲稱擔

保，且本公司亦無通過任何決議案授權就

原告墊付予方先生之聲稱貸款提供聲稱擔

保。

誠如本公司二零一六年十二月二十三日之

公告所披露，根據高等法院批准的命令，

原告人於法律行動中對本公司的申索被駁

回，而沒有對原告人與本公司之間的訴訟

金額作出命令。對本公司作為被告的法律

行動已經終止。
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33. InVestMents In sUBsIDIARIes

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as 
follows:

 Place of
 incorporation/  Percentage of 
 registration Issued and  ownership 
Company name and operation paid up capital interest Principal activities
 註冊成立╱ 已發行及 擁有人權益
公司名稱 註冊及經營地點 已繳足資本 百分比 主要業務

Legend Strategy International Limited The BVI 4 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% (direct) Investment holding
朸濬國際有限公司 英屬處女群島 每股1美元的4股普通股 （直接） 投資控股

Legend Strategy Limited Hong Kong HK$ 10,000,000 ordinary shares  100% (indirect) Investment holding
朸濬有限公司 香港 10,000,000港元普通股 （間接） 投資控股

Welcome Inn Management Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1 ordinary share 100% (indirect) Investment holding
悅來客棧酒店管理有限公司 香港 1港元普通股 （間接） 投資控股

Legend Strategy Management Limited The BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% (indirect) Investment holding
 英屬處女群島 每股1美元的1股普通股 （間接） 投資控股

Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$8,000,000 100% (indirect) Hotel operations
深圳悅來客棧旅業有限公司 中國 * 8,000,000港元 （間接） 酒店營運

Shenzhen Yingde Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$8,000,000 100% (indirect) Hotel operations
深圳盈的旅業有限公司 中國 * 8,000,000港元 （間接） 酒店營運

Shenzhen Modern Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$1,000,000 100% (indirect) Hotel operations
深圳摩登旅業管理有限公司 中國 * 1,000,000港元 （間接） 酒店營運

Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Co., Ltd. The PRC* HKD5,000,000 100% (indirect) Hotel operations
深圳悅來客棧有限公司 中國 * 5,000,000港元 （間接） 酒店營運

Grand China Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1 ordinary share 100% (indirect) General trading 
中國實業有限公司 香港 1港元普通股 （間接） and investment
    一般貿易及投資

Net Media Finance Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$ 20,000,000 ordinary shares  100% (indirect) Money lending
網信傳媒香港有限公司 香港 20,000,000港元普通股 （間接） 放債

* Wholly owned Foreign Enterprise

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which 
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

34. APPRoVAL oF FInAnCIAL stAteMents

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue 
by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2017.

33. 於附屬公司之投資

於二零一六年十二月三十一日，附屬公司

之詳情如下：

* 外商獨資企業

上表載列對本集團業績、資產或負債產生

主要影響的附屬公司詳情。

34. 批准財務報表

此等財務報表由董事會於二零一七年三月

三十日批准及授權發佈。
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Five-Year Financial summary
五年財務概要

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the 
last five financial years is as follows:

ResULts

 Year ended 31 December
 截至十二月三十一日止年度

  2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
  二零一六年 二零一五年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一二年

  HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  港元 港元 港元 港元 港元

Revenue 收益 17,654,630 19,884,379 29,700,841 57,968,906 91,155,199

(Loss)/profit before tax 除稅前（虧損）╱溢利 (100,490,047) (123,405,540) (60,178,163) (3,293,434) 43,726,938

Income tax (expense)/credit 所得稅（開支）╱抵免 2,200,814 (430,064) 8,634,678 (3,960,343) (10,855,270)

(Loss)/profit for the year 年內（虧損）╱溢利 (98,289,233) (123,835,604) (51,543,485) (7,253,777) 32,871,668

Attributable to: 以下人士應佔：
 Owners of the Company  本公司擁有人 (98,289,233) (123,835,604) (51,543,485) (7,253,177) 32,871,668
 Non-controlling interests  非控制性權益 — — — — —

  (98,289,233) (123,835,604) (51,543,485) (7,253,777) 32,871,668

Assets, LIABILItIes AnD non-ContRoLLInG 
InteRests

 As at 31 December
 於十二月三十一日

  2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
  二零一六年 二零一五年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一二年

  HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
  港元 港元 港元 港元 港元

Total assets 資產總額 81,090,605 125,659,405 162,087,990 185,630,140 176,160,788

Total liabilities 負債總額 (68,263,683) (18,291,715) (27,913,274) (35,160,151) (57,095,783)

Non-controlling interests 非控制性權益 — — — — —

  12,826,922 107,367,690 134,174,716 150,469,989 119,065,005

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial 
statements.

本集團過往五個財政年度的業績以及資產及負

債的概要如下：

業績

資產、負債及非控制性權益

上述概要並不構成經審核財務報表之一部分。


